
Please Note:  Board Agendas, Back-up Documentation, and Attachments are Available at the Lakeside Union School District Office (12335 
Woodside Avenue, Lakeside, CA) in the Lobby or Upon Request or Can be Viewed at www.lsusd.net. 

LLAAKKEESSIIDDEE  UUNNIIOONN  SSCCHHOOOOLL  DDIISSTTRRIICCTT  
Office of the Superintendent 

12335 Woodside Avenue 
Lakeside, California 92040 

(619) 390-2600 
 February 13, 2025 
 Closed Session: 5:30 p.m. 
 Open Session: 6:00 p.m. 
  

NOTICE OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 

Members of the public who require disability modification or accommodation in order to participate in the meeting should contact the 
Superintendent’s Office at (619) 390-2606 or in writing, at least twenty-four (24) hours before the meeting.  (Government Code section 
54954.2).  
 
If you wish to speak under Public Comment, complete the Public Comment Form. Advance written information regarding the subject will be 
appreciated so that all might be better informed regarding the matter. In the interest of time and order, presentations from the public are limited 
to four (4) minutes per person. 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL – 5:30PM 
  
  

B. OPPORTUNITY FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC TO ADDRESS THE BOARD ON ANY ITEM 
DESCRIBED IN THIS NOTICE (GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54954.3) Public Comment Form 

 Opportunity for Members of the Public to address the Board on any item on or off the agenda. In the interest of time and 
order, presentations from the public are limited to four (4) minutes per person. An individual speaker's allotted time may 
not be increased by a donation of time from members of the public in attendance. If you wish to speak under Public 
Comment or Public Hearings, follow the directions for speaking to agenda items as listed above.  

  
C. CLOSED SESSION – 5:30PM 

  
 1. Public Employee Employment; Superintendent Search, pursuant to Government Code §54957. 
   

D. OPENING PROCEDURES – 6:00PM 
  

 1. Reconvene  
 2. Welcome Visitors 
 3. Closed Session Report 
 4. The Pledge of Allegiance will be led by students from Lindo Park. Following the pledge, Principal 

Tessa Green, will share highlights from the school. 
   

E. PUBLIC HEARING-BARONA CHARTER SCHOOL RENEWAL 
   

 1. PUBLIC HEARING: The Board of Trustees will conduct a public hearing pursuant to Education 
Code 47605(b) to consider the renewal petition of Barona Charter School (formally known as 
Barona Indian Charter School) for the period of July 1, 2015-June 30, 2030.  

   
  A. Presentation: Barona Charter School, formally known as Barona Indian Charter School 

Principal, Julie Cushman and Barona Tribal Council Chairman/BICS Board Chairman, 
Raymond Welch, will present information related to the charter school’s renewal petition 
submitted to Lakeside Union School District.  

    
  B. Public comment will be heard related to the renewal petition of Barona Indian Charter School.  
    
    

http://www.lsusd.net/
https://docs.google.com/forms/d/1uO3kAFtNXcOvdsYA8LpoUYtWAnr6AsYuAVw86sKM0a8/edit
https://docs.google.com/forms/d/1uO3kAFtNXcOvdsYA8LpoUYtWAnr6AsYuAVw86sKM0a8/edit


Lakeside Union School District  
Board of Trustees Agenda 
February 13, 2025 

“Igniting Passion in Today’s Students for Tomorrow’s Opportunities” 2 

F. TRUSTEE REPORTS AND COMMENTS 
  
 Trustees will report and comment as desired. 
  

G. OPPORTUNITY FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC TO ADDRESS THE BOARD ON ANY ITEM 
DESCRIBED IN THIS NOTICE (GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54954.3) Public Comment Form 

 Opportunity for Members of the Public to address the Board on any item on the agenda. In the interest of time and order, 
presentations from the public are limited to four (4) minutes per person. An individual speaker's allotted time may not be 
increased by a donation of time from members of the public in attendance. If you wish to speak under Public Comment 
or Public Hearings, follow the directions for speaking to agenda items as listed above.  

  
H. PRESENTATIONS 
   
   1. Kristie Summers, Director of Child Nutrition, will present an update on the LUSD Child Nutrition 

Program. 
   
 2. Dr. Natalie Winspear, Assistant Superintendent, will present the LCAP Mid-Year Update. 

  
I. ITEMS OF BUSINESS 
   

 1.1 Designate consent agenda items. 
  Note: Consent agenda items are generally routine items of business. The Board will designate those 

items to be approved as a whole, unless a member of the public requests consideration of an item 
on an individual basis. The Board will review and act on the remaining items of business. 

   
 1.2 Discussion/adoption of consent agenda items. 
  
 SUPERINTENDENT 
   
 2.1 Approval is requested of the minutes of the regular board meeting of January 16, 2025. 
   
 2.2 Selection is requested of six (6) candidates for the California School Boards Associations’ 

Delegate Assembly for Region 17 (San Diego County). 
   
 2.3 Adoption is requested of Resolution No. 2025-10, designating the week of March 3-7th, 2025 as 

“Love of Reading Week” in the Lakeside Union School District and urging members of the 
community to participate by reading their favorite stories to district students. 

   
 EDUCATION SERVICES 
  

 3.1 Notification is provided to the board of the Extended School Year dates for 2024-2025: June 23-
July 18, 2025 with a preparation day for teachers on June 20th.   

   
 HUMAN RESOURCES 
   
 4.1 Approval/Ratification is requested of Personnel Assignment Order 2025-10. 
   
 4.2  Approval is requested of an Affiliation Agreement with The Board of Trustees of Southern Illinois 

University for a Speech Language Pathologist intern agreement.  
   
   
   
   

https://docs.google.com/forms/d/1uO3kAFtNXcOvdsYA8LpoUYtWAnr6AsYuAVw86sKM0a8/edit


Lakeside Union School District  
Board of Trustees Agenda 
February 13, 2025 

“Igniting Passion in Today’s Students for Tomorrow’s Opportunities” 3 

 BUSINESS SERVICES 
   
 5.1 Approval is requested of the following monthly business reports: A) Commercial Warrants; B) 

Revolving Cash; C) Purchase Orders and Change Orders; and D) Purchase Card Expenditures. 
   
 5.2 Approval is requested of the purchase of one relocatable building through American Modular the 

piggyback bid and previous Resolution No. 2024-11 (Santa Cruz City Schools contract) extended 
to June 30, 2025. The building will be used for Extended Student Services at Tierra Del Sol Middle 
School. Projected cost of project is $629,630.00 and will be paid from ELOP funds.  

   
 5.3 Approval is requested of the 2024-2025 After School Education and Safety Program (ASES) 

Grant Memorandum of Understanding.  
   
 5.4 Approval of the Cerebrate Software program for DREAM Academy in the amount of $1,275.00. 
   
 5.5 Approval is requested of the contract with Home Turf in the amount of $16,340.00 for the turf 

playground area at Winter Gardens Elementary, paid by ELOP funds. 
   
 5.6 Approval is requested of the following annual contracts for the 2024-2025 school year: A)   Easy 

Open Garage Door Co (ESS), B) Solana Center for Environmental Innovation (Lakeview), C) 
Dinah Brown (Lakeview), D) Fire Safe Kids-Burn Institute (Lindo Park), E) Brian Moehl, San 
Diego Bird Alliance (Lindo Park), F) City Heights Music School (RIA/WG), G) Catapult Learning 
West (Ed Services), H) American Modular Building (ESS)  

   
 5.7 Approval is requested of an out-of-county field trip for DREAM Academy to Knott’s Berry Farm 

Physics Day on March 13, 2025.  
   
 5.8 Approval is requested of the following gifts to the District: A) Veterans of Foreign Wars (VFW) 

(LMS); B) Frank Hilliker (LMS); C) Lakeside Kiwanis Club (Lindo Park); D) Lakeside Farms 
PTA (Fall Carnival): E) Lakeside Farms PTA (Put In Cups); F) Lemon Crest PTA (Fall Carnival); 
Lakeview PTA (Biztown Transportation) 

   
 BOARD POLICIES, ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATIONS AND/OR EXHIBITS 
   
 6.1 Adoption is requested for Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 3515.5: Sex Offender 

Notification. 
   
 6.2 Adoption is requested of Board Bylaw 9240: Board Training.  
   
 6.3 Adoption is requested of Board Policy and Regulation 1250: Visitors/Outsiders.  
   
J. DISCUSSION ITEMS 

  
 Miscellaneous: 

 1. Enrollment Report for Month 5 (December 9, 2024-January 3, 2025) 
 2. Quarterly Investment Reports, San Diego County Treasury Investment Pool as of quarter ended 

December 31, 2024. 
 3. Legislative Updates 
   
 First Readings: 
 4. Board Policy 5030: Student Wellness. 
 5. Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 3100: Budget 



Lakeside Union School District  
Board of Trustees Agenda 
February 13, 2025 

“Igniting Passion in Today’s Students for Tomorrow’s Opportunities” 4 

 DISCUSSION ITEMS (CONTINUED) 
   
 6. Board Policy and Administrative Regulation 3280: Sale or Lease of District-Owned Real Property. 
 7. Board Policy 3320: Claims and Actions Against the District.  AR 3320: Proposed for deletion.  
 8. Administrative Regulation 5116.1: Intradistrict Open Enrollment. 
   

K. REPORTS TO THE BOARD 
  

 1. Union Representatives: 
  A. Kerry Strong, will present comments as the Lakeside Teachers Association President. 
  B. David Myers, will present comments as the California School Employees Association 

President. 
  

 2. District Superintendents 
  A. Lisa Davis will present business and operations updates. 
  B. Robin Ballarin will present human resources updates. 
  C. Dr. Natalie Winspear will present educational services updates. 
  D. Dr. Rhonda Taylor  
   

L. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
 

Rhonda L. Taylor, Ed.D. 
Superintendent 





Barona Charter School 

A Charter School Renewal Petition 
Presented to 

The Governing Board of the Lakeside Union School District 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared in compliance with the terms, conditions, and requirements of  
Education Code 47600 et seq. - The Charter Schools Act 

 
Charter Renewal Term: 

July 1, 2025 - June 30, 2030 
 

 



1 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

I. AFFIRMATIONS/ASSURANCES .................................................................................... 2 

II. RENEWAL CRITERIA/ ACCOMPLISHMENTS / EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ............. 5 

III. EDUCATIONAL PHILOSOPHY AND PROGRAM (A) ............................................... 18 

IV. MEASURABLE STUDENT OUTCOMES AND OTHER USES OF DATA (B) (C).... 31 

V. GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE (D) ................................................................................ 39 

VI. HUMAN RESOURCES (E) ............................................................................................. 45 

VII. RETIREMENT BENEFITS (K) ....................................................................................... 48 

VIII. EMPLOYEE RETURN RIGHTS (M).............................................................................. 49 

IX. HEALTH AND SAFETY (F) ........................................................................................... 50 

X. DISPUTE RESOLUTION PROCESS (N) ....................................................................... 53 

XI. STUDENT ADMISSIONS POLICIES AND PROCEDURES (H) ................................. 54 

XII. RECRUITMENT AND DEMOGRAPHIC BALANCE OF PUPILS (G) ....................... 56 

XIII. PUBLIC SCHOOL ATTENDANCE ALTERNATIVES (L) .......................................... 57 

XIV. SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION PROCEDURES (J) ................................................. 58 

XV. FINANCIAL PLANNING, REPORTING, AND ACCOUNTABILITY ........................ 60 

XVI. AUDITS (I) ....................................................................................................................... 62 

XVII. CLOSURE PROTOCOL (O) ............................................................................................ 63 

XVIII. IMPACT ON THE CHARTER AUTHORIZER .............................................................. 65 

APPENDICES 

Appendix A – iReady Diagnostic Growth Reports 

Appendix B – Special Education Procedural Handbook  

Appendix C – Articles of Incorporation and Corporate Bylaws 

Appendix D – Conflict of Interest Code 

Appendix E – Pupil Suspension and Expulsion Policy 

Appendix F – Operational Budget, Cashflow, and Financial Projections  



2 

I. AFFIRMATIONS/ASSURANCES 

As the authorized lead petitioner, I, Julie Cushman, hereby certify that the information submitted in 
this application for the renewal of the Barona Charter School (“Charter School” or “BCS”) to be 
located within the boundaries of the Lakeside Union School District (“District”), is true to the best of 
my knowledge and belief. In accordance with Education Code Section 47605(b), I hereby certify that 
I deem this renewal petition to be complete for purposes of commencing the timelines for the District’s 
review and approval. I also certify that this application does not constitute the conversion of a private 
school to the status of a public charter school; and further, I understand that if awarded a charter 
renewal, the Charter School: 

• Shall meet all statewide standards and conduct the student assessments required, pursuant to 
Education Code Section 60605 and any other statewide standards authorized in statute, or 
student assessments applicable to students in non-charter public schools. [Ref. Education Code 
Section 47605(d)(1)] 

• Shall be deemed the exclusive public school employer of the employees of the Charter School 
for purposes of the Educational Employment Relations Act. [Ref. Education Code Section 
47605(c)(6)] 

• Shall be non-sectarian in its programs, admissions policies, employment practices, and all other 
operations. [Ref. Education Code Section 47605(d)(1)] 

• Shall not charge tuition. [Ref. Education Code Section 47605(e)(1)] 

• Shall admit all students who wish to attend the Charter School, and who submit a timely 
application, unless the Charter School receives a greater number of applications than there are 
spaces for students, in which case each application will be given equal chance of admission 
through a public random lottery process. Except as required by Education Code Section 
47605(e)(2), admission to the Charter School shall not be determined according to the place of 
residence of the student or of that student’s parent or legal guardian within the State.  
Preference in the public random drawing shall be given as required by Education Code Section 
47605(e)(2)(B)(i)-(iv). In the event of a drawing, the chartering authority shall make 
reasonable efforts to accommodate the growth of the Charter School in accordance with 
Education Code Section 47605(e)(2)(C). [Ref. Education Code Section 47605(e)(2)(A)-(C)] 

• Shall not discriminate on the basis of the characteristics listed in Education Code Section 220 
(actual or perceived disability, gender, gender expression, gender identity, nationality, race or 
ethnicity, religion, sexual orientation, or any other characteristic that is contained in the 
definition of hate crimes set forth in Section 422.55 of the Penal Code, including immigration 
status, or association with an individual who has any of the aforementioned characteristics). 
[Ref. Education Code Section 47605(e)(1)] 

• Shall adhere to all applicable provisions of federal law related to students with disabilities 
including, but not limited to, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1974, Title II of the 
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 and the Individuals with Disabilities in Education 
Improvement Act of 2004. 



3 

• Shall meet all requirements for employment set forth in applicable provisions of law, including, 
but not limited to credentials, as necessary. [Ref. Title 5 California Code of Regulations Section 
11967.5.1(f)(5)(C)] 

• Shall ensure that teachers in the Charter School hold a Commission on Teacher Credentialing 
certificate, permit, or other document required for the teacher’s certificated assignment.  The 
Charter School may use local assignment options authorized in statute and regulations for the 
purpose of legally assigning certificated teachers, in accordance with all of the requirements of 
the applicable statues and regulations in the same manner as a governing board of a school 
district.  The Charter School shall have authority to request an emergency permit or a waiver 
from the Commission on Teacher Credentialing for individuals in the same manner as a school 
district. [Ref. California Education Code Section 47605(l)] 

• Shall at all times maintain all necessary and appropriate insurance coverage. 

• Shall, for each fiscal year, offer at a minimum, the number of minutes of instruction per grade 
level as required by Education Code Section 47612.5(a)(1)(A)-(D) 

• If a pupil is expelled or leaves the Charter School without graduating or completing the school 
year for any reason, the Charter School shall notify the superintendent of the school district of 
the pupil’s last known address within 30 days, and shall, upon request, provide that school 
district with a copy of the cumulative record of the pupil, including report cards or a transcript 
of grades, and health information. [Ref. California Education Code Section 47605(e)(3)] 

• May encourage parental involvement, but shall notify the parents and guardians of applicant 
students and currently enrolled students that parental involvement is not a requirement for 
acceptance to, or continued enrollment at, the Charter School.  [Ref. California Education Code 
Section 47605(n)] 

• Shall not discourage a student from enrolling or seeking to enroll in the Charter School for any 
reason, including, but not limited to, academic performance of the pupil or because the pupil 
exhibits any of the characteristics described in Education Code Section 47605(e)(2)(B)(iii). 
[Ref. California Education Code Section 47605(e)(4)(A)]  

• Shall not request a student’s records or require a parent, guardian, or student to submit the 
student’s records to the Charter School before enrollment. [Ref. California Education Code 
Section 47605(e)(4)(B)] 

• Shall not encourage a student currently attending the Charter School to disenroll from the 
Charter School or transfer to another school for any reason, including, but not limited to, 
academic performance of the student or because the student exhibits any of the characteristics 
described in Education Code Section 47605(e)(2)(B)(iii).  This subparagraph shall not apply 
to actions taken by the Charter School pursuant to the procedures by which student can be 
suspended or expelled from the Charter School for disciplinary reasons or otherwise 
involuntarily removed from the Charter School for any reason. [Ref. California Education 
Code Section 47605(e)(4)(C)]  



4 

• Shall comply with Education Code Section 47605(e)(4)(D) by posting the appropriate notice 
on the Charter School’s website and providing a copy to a parent or guardian, or student if the 
student is 18 years of age or older, as required. 

• Shall meet all the facility requirements as specified in Education Code 47610. 

• Will follow any and all other federal, state, and local laws and regulations that apply to the 
Charter School, including, but not limited to: 

 The Charter School shall maintain accurate and contemporaneous written records that 
document all pupil attendance and make these records available for audit and inspection.  
[Ref. California Education Code Section 47612.5(a)(2)] 

 The Charter School shall on a regular basis consult with its parents, legal guardians, and 
teachers regarding the Charter School’s education programs.  [Ref. California Education 
Code Section 47605(d)(2)] 

 The Charter School shall comply with any jurisdictional limitations to locations of its 
facilities.  [Ref. California Education Code Section 47605 and 47605.1] 

 The Charter School shall comply with all laws establishing the minimum and maximum 
age for public school enrollment.  [Ref. California Education Code Section 47612(b) and 
47610] 

 The Charter School shall comply with Education Code Section 47604.1 and be subject to 
the Ralph M. Brown Act, the Public Records Act, the Political Reform Act, and 
Government Code Section 1090 et seq. 

 The Charter School shall comply with the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act. 

 The Charter School shall meet or exceed the legally required minimum number of school 
days pursuant to Title 5 California Code of Regulations Section 11960. 

 

 
         12/17/2024   

Julie Cushman, Lead Petitioner     Date 
Principal/Director, Barona Charter School 

 



5 

II. RENEWAL CRITERIA/ ACCOMPLISHMENTS / EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

RENEWAL CRITERIA  

There are three “tracks” for renewal under AB 1505 (2019) based on a school’s Dashboard indicators, 
and Barona Charter School is in the “middle” track.  (See Charter School Performance Category Data 
File published by the CDE on March 12, 2024.)  Under Education Code section 47607.2(b)(1), for 
schools in the “middle” track, the District “shall consider” the school’s performance on the state and 
local Dashboard indicators, but the District “shall provide greater weight” to measurements of 
academic performance (e.g., ELA and Math).  As shown on the 2023 Dashboard for Barona Charter 
School: 

 Our students “increased significantly” schoolwide on both ELA and Math, with growth of 20.6 
points in ELA and 32.5 points in Math. 

 Three of the four student groups with data available on the Dashboard “increased significantly” 
in ELA: 

o American Indian students increased by 35.1 points. 

o Hispanic students increased by 20.9 points. 

o Students with Disabilities increased by 36.1 points. 

 All four student groups with data available on the Dashboard increased in Math, and three of 
the four “increased significantly:” 

o American Indian students increased by 21.6 points. 

o Hispanic students increased by 58.3 points. 

o Students with Disabilities increased by 12 points. 

o Socioeconomically Disadvantaged students increased by 26.7 points. 

 We maintained a 0% suspension rate for the second year in a row, resulting in the best possible 
Dashboard color (Blue). 

 Our chronic absenteeism rate “declined significantly” by 7.4% schoolwide, resulting in a 
Yellow Dashboard color.  

 Three of the five student groups with data available on the Dashboard declined in chronic 
absenteeism rate: 

o Hispanic students declined by 14.1% 

o Students with Disabilities declined by 3.4%. 

o White students declined by 5.7%. 



6 

 We have met all of the Local Indicators every year that Dashboard data was published.   

CDE has not yet updated the Charter School Performance Category Data File based on the 2024 
Dashboard, but Barona is expected to remain in the “middle” track.  As shown on the 2024 Dashboard: 

 Our students “increased significantly” in ELA by 21.2 points and “maintained” their score in 
Math.   
 

 All four student groups with data available on the Dashboard “increased significantly” in ELA: 

o American Indian students increased by 17.3 points. 

o Hispanic students increased by 35.4 points. 

o Students with Disabilities increased 50.2 points. 

o Socioeconomically disadvantaged students increased by 50.4 points 

 Three of the four student groups with data available on the Dashboard increased in Math: 

o American Indian students increased by 12.5 points. 

o Students with Disabilities increased by 27.5 points. 

o Socioeconomically Disadvantaged students increased by 10.3 points. 

 We maintained a 0% suspension rate for the third year in a row, resulting in the best possible 
Dashboard color (Blue). 

 Our two numerically significant student groups (American Indian and Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged) declined in chronic absenteeism rate. 

 We again met all of the Local Indicators.   

In addition to the Dashboard indicators, to the extent verified data is provided by the Charter School, 
the District is required to consider clear and convincing evidence showing that the school achieved 
measurable increases in academic achievement, as defined by at least one year’s progress for each year 
in school.  (Ed. Code, § 47607.2(b)(3).)  Although the Charter school is not required to provide 
additional academic data as part of its charter renewal due to being placed in the “middle” track, as 
shown below, the Charter School has experienced recent increases in academic achievement: 

The California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress (“CAASPP”) is on the “verified data” 
list adopted by the State Board of Education for purposes of charter renewal.  Based on 2023 CAASPP 
scores: 

 The percentage of students schoolwide who met or exceeded standards in ELA increased from 
24.08% in 2021-22 to 24.52% in 2022-23. 

 The percentage of students schoolwide who met or exceeded standards in Math increased 
from 3.70% in 2021-22 to 18.86% in 2023-24. 



7 

Based on 2024 CAASPP scores: 

 The percentage of students schoolwide who met or exceeded standards in ELA increased over 
the current charter term, going from 26.23% in 2017-18 to 36% in 2023-24. 

 The percentage of students schoolwide who met or exceeded standards in Math increased over 
the current charter term, going from 13.12% in 2017-18 to 18.36% in 2023-24. 

Barona Charter School began using iReady Assessments K-8 by Curriculum Associates during the 2023-
24 school year, which is also on the “verified data” list for purposes of charter renewal.  Based on our 
2023-24 iReady data, our students have experienced measurable increases in academic achievement: 
 
 The median percent progress towards “Typical Growth” was 126% in Reading.  “Typical 

Growth” is the average annual growth for a student at their grade and baseline placement level 
(i.e., one year’s progress).  This means that the majority of our students surpassed their average 
annual growth target in 2023-24. 

 In seven of the nine grade levels tested in Reading (grades 1-7), at least 50% of students met 
their Typical Growth target.  This is evidence that a majority of our students achieved at least 
one year’s progress in 2023-24 by meeting or exceeding their average annual growth target. 

 The median percent progress towards “Typical Growth” was 100% in Math.  This means that 
the majority of our students surpassed their average annual growth target in 2023-24. 

 In seven of the nine grade levels tested in Math (grades 1-4 and 6-8), at least 50% of students 
met their Typical Growth target.  This is evidence that a majority of our students achieved at 
least one year’s progress in 2023-24 by meeting or exceeding their average annual growth 
target. 

Copies of our iReady Diagnostic Growth reports are attached as Appendix A. 
 
We are proud of our students’ continued growth in terms of academic achievement, but we are always 
working to use data to improve our program so that our students are prepared for high school and life 
beyond.  Several of the ways that Barona Charter School has used data driven instruction in the current 
charter term are described in detail in the “Accomplishments” section below.  Renewing the charter for 
Barona Charter School is in the best interest of students. 
 
Barona Charter School more than meets the legal standard for a five-year charter renewal under 
Education Code section 47607.2(b)(7). 

ACCOMPLISHMENTS AND UPDATES 

Barona Charter School has established a comprehensive and deliberate process to fully implement the 
expectations outlined in our charter. At the core of this initiative is a commitment to becoming a fully 
standards-based organization, one that not only adheres to state and national benchmarks but also 
places an emphasis on the unique needs of each student. This dual focus on standards and 
individualization is critical to ensuring that all students, regardless of their background or abilities, can 
achieve academic success and personal growth within our school environment. This commitment is 



8 

reflected in our tailored educational programs, which aim to engage all learners and promote their 
individual growth. 

Since our last charter renewal, we have successfully maintained our enrollment numbers, 
demonstrating our appeal and reliability within the community. Additionally, we pride ourselves on 
being fiscally strong, allowing us to invest in resources and initiatives that enhance our educational 
offerings. The school’s financial stability, allowing us to allocate more resources toward student 
support services, enrichment programs, and professional development for our staff. This also provides 
greater organizational flexibility, enabling us to respond more dynamically to emerging needs, whether 
it be the development of new academic programs, addressing the socio-emotional needs of our 
students, or improving our facilities to create a more conducive learning environment. In essence, this 
growth allows us to maintain a responsive, adaptable approach to our mission, which is crucial for 
meeting both current and future demands. 

To increase ADA and reduce chronic absenteeism, the school has created and funded the 
position of Family Resource Coordinator. Our continuous efforts to increase our Average Daily 
Attendance (ADA) are supported by a multi-faceted approach, which includes targeted outreach 
and engagement strategies. Our Family Resource Coordinator plays a crucial role in this process, 
working closely with students and their families to identify and overcome obstacles that may 
hinder consistent attendance. This includes providing support for counseling services, and 
connecting families with community resources that promote student well-being. The Family 
Resource Coordinator collaborates with families to offer practical solutions that help ensure their 
children attend school regularly and on time. Addressing chronic absenteeism is a team effort, 
with Barona Charter School partnering with various external organizations, including the County 
Office of Education, Southern Indian Health, and multiple psychological service providers. 
Emphasizing the importance of consistent attendance is a crucial part of the strategy to reduce 
chronic absenteeism.  
 

We have undertaken a thorough evaluation of our existing programs to identify areas where 
improvements could be made to better serve our students. This evaluation was essential in highlighting 
both the successes and challenges of our current model. To enhance student learning outcomes, we 
have set a clear objective: to implement changes that are not only rapid in addressing immediate needs 
but also sustainable over the long term. This ensures that the improvements we make now will continue 
to benefit future generations of students, creating a solid foundation for continued academic excellence. 

To achieve this, we are implementing several critical components that will drive these improvements. 
First, we are focusing on curriculum enhancement, ensuring that it is not only aligned with state 
standards but also responsive to the diverse learning needs and interests of our students. This includes 
integrating more project-based learning opportunities, hands-on experiences, and culturally relevant 
materials that reflect our students’ backgrounds and the community we serve. 

Second, we are adopting data-driven instructional practices, utilizing both formative and summative 
assessments to monitor student progress in real time and adjust our teaching strategies accordingly. By 
closely analyzing student data, we can provide targeted interventions to those who need additional 
support and challenge those who are excelling. 



9 

Third, we are prioritizing professional development for our staff, ensuring that teachers and 
support staff are equipped with the latest instructional strategies and tools to meet the evolving 
needs of our students. Recent professional development activities include Math Transformations, 
the Arise Literacy Grant, staff-wide training on the Leader in Me Program, and technical training 
for the new interactive flat panels used in the classroom. Barona Charter School recognizes that 
ongoing professional development is crucial for sustaining high instructional quality and 
promoting a culture of continuous improvement. 
. 

Finally, we are integrating innovative teaching methodologies into the classroom. This includes a focus 
on differentiated instruction, technology integration, and collaborative learning models, all of which 
are designed to engage students more deeply and cater to a wide range of learning styles. By 
personalizing the learning experience, we aim to create a more inclusive and equitable environment 
where all students can thrive academically, socially, and emotionally. 

Barona Charter School continues to be dedicated to serving a diverse student body that includes not 
only the Native American population but also students from surrounding communities and the Barona 
work community. We embrace all children who reside in the area or choose to attend our school, 
fostering an inclusive environment where every student feels valued and empowered to succeed. 

Personnel 

The core of the teaching and learning experience lies in the teacher’s ability to create meaningful 
connections with students, inspire growth, and foster a dynamic learning environment. Teachers at 
Barona Charter School are central to sparking curiosity, motivating students to excel, and supporting 
both their academic and personal development. They serve as mentors, adapting lessons to meet the 
unique needs of their students while ensuring that learning is engaging and relevant. The ability to 
personalize instruction and build strong relationships is fundamental to student success. 

Barona Charter School is committed to hiring the most qualified staff members to ensure a high-quality 
educational experience for our students. However, this goal presents unique challenges due to our 
school's relatively small size and remote location. With a total staff of only 14, including 6 teachers, 
the departure of even a single team member can significantly affect our school community and the 
learning environment. In a small school setting, opportunities for professional growth and leadership 
development can be limited, which poses a challenge for staff retention. To address this issue, we 
actively work to minimize turnover by thoroughly educating prospective employees about our staffing 
structure and the distinct dynamics of our school. We also offer competitive salaries that are 
commensurate with their experience and qualifications 

Research consistently shows that highly effective teachers significantly impact student achievement, 
particularly those with specialized expertise. Teachers with these qualifications can provide 
differentiated instruction, design tailored lessons, and use innovative methods to address diverse 
student needs. This approach is especially important for students requiring additional support or 
coming from underserved communities. At Barona Charter School, six highly qualified teachers bring 
specialized knowledge and a commitment to continuous professional growth. This focus on teacher 
excellence aligns with LCAP (Local Control and Accountability Plan) goals, ensuring that every 
student has access to skilled teachers and high-quality resources. 



10 

Professional development plays a crucial role in maintaining high teaching standards. Barona Charter 
School offers weekly Friday faculty meetings that encourage collaboration and discussion on 
instructional practices, student learning, and school-wide expectations. These sessions ensure that 
teachers are continuously improving, sharing strategies, and staying aligned in their goal of enhancing 
teaching quality. A significant part of professional development is the implementation of the iReady 
Diagnostic assessment system, which provides detailed insights into student performance. iReady 
helps teachers design targeted lessons for high-achieving students while offering additional support for 
those who need it, ensuring that instruction is tailored to individual student needs. The system also 
allows for real-time monitoring of student progress, enabling teachers to make timely adjustments for 
continuous growth. 

The overarching goal at Barona Charter School is to ensure that every student reaches their full 
academic potential. By leveraging data from iReady and other assessments, teachers can make 
informed instructional decisions, identify students requiring additional support, and provide 
enrichment for those excelling. This data-driven approach creates a learning environment that is 
inclusive, personalized, and focused on growth for each student. 

By prioritizing highly qualified educators, fostering strong partnerships with specialized service 
providers, and emphasizing data-driven professional development, Barona Charter School is 
positioned to meet the diverse needs of its students. This holistic approach ensures the improvement 
of teaching and learning outcomes, while fostering a supportive school community dedicated to every 
student’s success. 

Facilities 

The Barona Charter School Board of Directors is unwavering in its commitment to maintaining the 
school’s facilities to the highest standards. The campus is in excellent condition, reflecting the respect 
and pride that students have for their environment. This positive attitude is evident in their care for 
shared spaces, contributing to an overall atmosphere of responsibility and community. 

Regular and systematic maintenance is not just a routine task; it is a cornerstone of the Board’s 
proactive support for the school. From routine repainting to ensure bright, inviting classrooms, to 
projects that enhance safety and functionality, every aspect of facility upkeep is approached with 
diligence and a keen eye for detail. Repairs are handled swiftly to minimize disruption, while 
landscaping efforts beautify the grounds and create welcoming outdoor spaces for learning and 
recreation. 

Recently, the addition of a brand-new cafeteria marks a significant milestone in our efforts to enhance 
the National Lunch Program initiative. This state-of-the-art facility not only provides nutritious meals 
for our students but also serves as a vibrant gathering space that fosters community and connection. 
The Board remains dedicated to creating an enriching environment that supports both academic and 
social development for all students. 

Scheduling 

As a charter school, Barona Charter School has both the flexibility and the responsibility to adapt our 
educational programs to best meet the learning needs of our students. This unique opportunity has 
enabled us to thoughtfully adjust our instructional day to create an optimized schedule that enhances 
learning outcomes. The daily schedule prioritizes core subjects such as math, reading, and language 



11 

arts, with teachers encouraged to integrate arts, science, and STEM into these core areas. Like many 
schools, the lasting effects of COVID are still felt. At BICS, we recognize the importance of our 
students' health and wellness. Each day, students are welcomed during morning meetings with their 
teacher and classmates, providing an opportunity to share challenges and receive support. Additionally, 
all grade levels participate in regular PE and health classes For our youngest learners in grades K-2, 
we have designed a schedule that maximizes engagement and provides the developmental support 
necessary for foundational skills. In grades 3-8, we have created two dedicated instructional blocks for 
core subject areas, such as math, which allow for extended, uninterrupted learning sessions that build 
both knowledge and skills. This schedule allows our teachers to tailor their instruction to be responsive 
and effective, ensuring that every student has the best possible learning experience.. 

Curriculum/Instructional Materials 

Since the last reauthorization, the category of curriculum/instructional materials has undergone a 
transformation. The emergence of digital media and mobile platforms have profoundly changed how 
learning and teaching occur at BCS. The following is list of educational materials currently utilized at 
BCS: 

• Math/Reading/ELA:    
o iReady Diagnostic Pathways - For all students TK-8 

• Reading/ ELA:         
o Magnetic Reading and Reading Core - For grades TK-5 
o Amplify ELA - For grades 6-8 

• Mathematics:            
o Savvas Envision Math - For grades TK-5 
o Amplify Desmos - For grades 6-8 

• Science (NGSS):          
o Twig Science (pilot) - For grades TK-8 
o Mystery Science - For grades TK-5 
o Generation Genius - For grades 6-8 

• Social Studies:   
o Studies Weekly TK-8 

• Supplemental Materials for Math:       
o Reflex/Frax Math 
o ESGI Diagnostic 
o Math Transformations 

 
Pedagogy 

Barona Charter School is committed to preparing students for success beyond high school by fostering 
a curriculum that emphasizes college and career readiness. To support our students in meeting the 
demands of an increasingly rigorous academic environment, we utilize research-based instructional 
strategies proven to enhance student achievement. One of our primary focuses is creating a culture that 
encourages students to embrace challenges, develop resilience, and understand that sustained effort 
leads to academic growth and mastery. 

To promote active student participation and deeper learning, we prioritize Effective Questioning 
techniques in our classrooms. These techniques are designed to stimulate critical thinking, deepen 



12 

comprehension, and encourage students to engage in meaningful discussions with both their peers and 
teachers. By asking open-ended questions and encouraging students to analyze, evaluate, and 
synthesize information, we help them build essential problem-solving and analytical skills that are vital 
for college and career success. 

Additionally, our curriculum promotes student ownership of learning by fostering an environment 
where students feel empowered to set personal academic goals, track their progress, and reflect on their 
achievements. These strategies are integral to our mission of creating a dynamic and academically 
rigorous environment where students are equipped with the skills, knowledge, and confidence to 
navigate future educational and career opportunities successfully. 

School Climate/Culture 

Barona Charter School acknowledges the growing importance of our students' socio-emotional needs. 
In partnership with organizations such as Southern Indian Health and contracted counseling services, 
we strive to support students who may be experiencing stress following the COVID-19 pandemic. We 
believe that this support is essential for enhancing our students' learning experiences. 

In the 2021-22 school year, Barona Charter School implemented the Leader in Me program, which is 
founded on the principle that everyone has the potential to lead. This comprehensive TK-12 framework 
promotes student leadership, fosters a culture of trust, and enhances academic achievement. The 
program equips students, educators, and families with vital leadership and life skills, ensuring they are 
well-prepared for success. Our students take on active leadership roles in their own education, starting 
by learning to lead themselves before progressing to lead others. Leader n Me focuses on three key 
areas: leadership, culture, and academics. 

Leadership: 

• Modeling by Adults: All adults involved in student achievement learn and exemplify effective 
practices at school, home, and in the community. 

• Student Leadership Opportunities: We create systems that allow students to lead, teach, and 
learn from one another in all areas of their educational experience. 

Culture: 

• Empowering Environment: Staff, students, and families work together to create and sustain 
an environment that empowers students and recognizes the worth and potential of everyone. 

• Shared Leadership: We build systems to genuinely involve students in the ongoing 
improvement of the school and community, providing them with real opportunities to lead, 
innovate, and collaborate. 

Academics: 

• Goal Awareness: Everyone understands and can articulate the goals and the current progress 
toward achieving them. 



13 

• Learner Empowerment: Students utilize Leadership Portfolios to take primary ownership of 
updating, assessing, and reflecting on their progress toward personal and academic objectives. 

The success of the Leader in Me program is driven by measurable results, which are integral to our 
implementation. 

Maintaining communication with parents and guardians remains a priority. We utilize various 
methods—telephone, text, email, and our SIS, Infinite Campus—to ensure that families are connected 
with the school. They can stay informed about classroom and school events through teacher and school 
websites. 

A distinctive aspect of our school is the integration of our cultural program. Students learn about the 
history and culture of the Kumeyaay Tribe on a weekly basis through collaborative classes with the 
Barona Cultural Center & Museum. Additionally, they learn the fundamentals of the Kumeyaay 
language during library sessions. We take great pride in the culture projects completed by our students, 
which have been showcased in local San Diego museums, including the Mingei Museum, San Diego 
Museum of Contemporary Art, and the Children’s Museum. 

Attendance 

Barona Charter School aims for the following attendance standards for all students: 
1. A maximum of 3 unexcused absences in a school year. 
2. A maximum of 10 excused absences in a school year. 
3. No more than 3 tardies (≤ 30 minutes late) in a school year. 

 
To achieve these goals, BCS staff is dedicated to: 

• Reducing the number of students arriving late to class. 
• Decreasing the number of students who miss five or more school days. 
• Raising parental awareness about the significance of attendance, punctuality, and available 

resources. 
• Recognizing students with perfect attendance (no absences) monthly at an awards assembly. 
• Honoring students with perfect attendance for the entire school year at a year-end awards 

assembly. 
 

When absenteeism becomes a recurring issue, the Family Resource Coordinator works closely with 
families to identify and address the underlying challenges contributing to chronic absenteeism. This 
process often involves open communication and support, allowing the coordinator to understand any 
barriers the family may be facing, such as transportation difficulties, health concerns, or other 
personal circumstances impacting regular attendance. The Family Resource Coordinator may provide 
resources, referrals to community services, or guidance on creating a supportive routine to help 
improve the student's attendance.  

If these interventions and support efforts are unsuccessful in improving the student’s attendance, the 
school staff is prepared to initiate the School Attendance Review Board (SARB) process. This 
process involves a formal meeting with parents or guardians, the student, and relevant school and 
community representatives to address the issue comprehensively. The SARB process serves as a 
structured opportunity to develop a tailored attendance improvement plan, outline expectations, and, 



14 

when necessary, set consequences for continued absenteeism. The goal is to work collaboratively 
with the family to ensure that every student has the opportunity to attend school regularly, thereby 
supporting their academic success and overall well-being. Barona Charter School continues to face 
significant challenges related to chronic absenteeism, particularly within our Native American 
student population. This issue not only affects academic performance but also impacts students' 
social development and overall well-being. To combat this, we are dedicated to implementing a 
multifaceted approach that involves educating parents about the importance of regular school 
attendance and its long-term benefits for their children’s future. 

We aim to build strong, trusting relationships with families, recognizing that open communication is 
essential for understanding the unique challenges they face. By actively engaging with parents, we 
can identify and address specific obstacles that may be preventing students from attending school 
consistently, such as transportation issues, health-related concerns, or lack of access to resources. 

In addition, we will offer support services and programs designed to encourage attendance, including 
mentorship opportunities, attendance incentives, and workshops that equip families with tools to 
prioritize education. Through these efforts, we hope to foster a school culture that values consistent 
attendance and empowers students to thrive both academically and personally. 

Technology 

Barona Charter School is committed to staying at the forefront of educational technology, ensuring 
that students are prepared to succeed in a digitally connected world. Each classroom is equipped with 
high-speed internet access, available through both cable and Wi-Fi, creating a seamless online 
environment for learning and engagement. In grades 3-8, each student is provided with an individual 
Chromebook, which allows them to access digital resources, receive assignments, collaborate on 
group projects, and complete assessments with ease. For younger students in transitional 
kindergarten through grade 2, personal iPads are available, allowing them to engage with age-
appropriate educational apps and activities designed to build foundational skills. 

The school has adopted the iReady platform, a robust digital tool that provides personalized learning 
paths tailored to each student's individual needs. This platform adapts to students' performance levels 
in subjects like math and reading, helping them strengthen skills and grow at their own pace. With 
iReady, students can practice skills in areas where they need improvement and progress through 
more challenging material as they gain confidence and competence. 

Each classroom is also outfitted with interactive flat panels, which serve as dynamic teaching tools 
that engage students through visual and interactive elements. These panels enable teachers to 
incorporate multimedia presentations, interactive lessons, and digital whiteboards, enhancing the 
overall learning experience. By integrating these advanced technologies, Barona Charter School 
fosters a modern, engaging, and responsive educational environment that prepares students for future 
academic and career success. 

Assessment/Evaluation 

At Barona Charter School, reliable, current, and standards-aligned assessments are a cornerstone of 
our approach to achieving sustainable improvements in student learning. By implementing a strategic 



15 

combination of comprehensive trimester assessments and the iReady platform, we equip our faculty 
with immediate, data-driven insights specifically designed to address the unique academic needs of 
each student. These assessments are carefully aligned with state standards and offer an accurate 
reflection of students' progress, allowing educators to continuously monitor and respond to their 
learning trajectories. 

The trimester assessments provide a broad view of students' mastery in core subjects, offering a 
snapshot of their knowledge and skills at key intervals throughout the year. This enables teachers to 
identify patterns, trends, and areas in need of focus, ensuring that instructional strategies can be 
adjusted to support both individual and class-wide needs. Meanwhile, the iReady platform delivers 
tailored insights on an ongoing basis, allowing for real-time monitoring and the implementation of 
targeted interventions. With iReady’s adaptive assessments, teachers gain a deeper understanding of 
each student's specific strengths and challenges, helping to create individualized learning experiences 
that support every learner's development. 

Additionally, the interactive nature of the iReady assessments actively engages students in the 
learning process by presenting material in a dynamic and accessible format. This interactivity helps 
students stay invested in their own progress, as they can clearly see how their efforts directly 
contribute to their academic growth. By giving students opportunities to track their progress and 
witness tangible improvements over time, this approach fosters a sense of accountability and 
motivation in their educational journey. The combined use of trimester assessments and iReady data 
provides our teachers with the necessary tools to deliver responsive, evidence-based instruction, 
ensuring that each student receives the support they need to thrive academically. This commitment to 
data-driven practices not only enhances current academic performance but also lays a strong 
foundation for long-term academic success. 

Name Change 
 
Changing the name of Barona Indian Charter School to Barona Charter School is an important step in 
fostering inclusivity, respect, and cultural sensitivity within the educational community and beyond. 
The term “Indian” is an outdated and, for many, an insensitive term that does not accurately reflect 
the unique identities and rich cultures of Indigenous communities. By choosing a name that avoids 
this term, the school demonstrates a commitment to respecting the preferences and dignity of the 
Barona Band of Mission Indians, honoring their heritage in a way that feels relevant and respectful to 
the community today. 

The new name “Barona Charter School” not only preserves the connection to the Barona community 
but also positions the school as a modern, inclusive institution that embraces diverse cultural 
identities and aims to provide an environment of mutual respect and understanding. This change 
signals to students, families, and the broader public that the school values progressiveness and 
sensitivity in representing Indigenous cultures. Furthermore, the shift can positively influence the 
learning atmosphere, promoting a sense of pride among Native students and encouraging cultural 
awareness among all students, helping them to become more understanding and empathetic members 
of society. 



16 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Our students and families deserve access to an outstanding education within a system that not only 
upholds but actively promotes opportunity and choice for everyone. This charter is thoughtfully 
designed to provide a distinctive educational opportunity that places a premium on accountability, 
flexibility, and innovation, offering students a customized pathway to success. We foster a 
collaborative environment where parents, teachers, and staff work closely together, creating an open 
channel for meaningful parent-teacher involvement that enhances student learning and development. 

Our commitment to parent choice allows families to engage deeply in the educational journey, 
tailoring it to align with their values, goals, and children’s unique needs. Through strong 
partnerships, we leverage diverse resources and expertise, further enriching the educational 
experience. This collaborative approach empowers us to deliver a well-rounded, future-focused 
education that not only equips students with essential skills and knowledge but also cultivates 
confidence, resilience, and a lifelong love of learning. Together, we are building a supportive and 
inclusive environment that not only addresses today’s educational demands but also lays a strong 
foundation for students to thrive in the world of tomorrow. 

Vision 

BCS empowers and equips students with the skills to achieve success in a rapidly changing world 
while maintaining the unique traditions and character of the Kumeyaay people. Our children soar 

to success, while standing on a culturally rich foundation with a global perspective, to become 
leaders that shape our future. 

The Barona Band of Mission Indians would like to continue to invest in the future of young people in 
the community and those children of the Barona work community by providing a small, nurturing, and 
academically challenging educational environment. They acknowledge that children learn best in their 
own traditional settings and would like to share their cultural traditions and values with their own 
children as well as other non-Native American children. However, as a public charter school, Barona 
Charter School is open to all students who want to attend, regardless of their racial or ethnic 
background. 

Barona Charter School is deeply committed to maintaining the highest standards of educational 
excellence and student development. High expectations for student performance are reinforced not 
only by parents, administrators, faculty, and staff but also by dedicated community members and local 
business partners. This shared commitment creates a strong support network that empowers students 
to reach their fullest potential. Each student is provided with rich opportunities to develop essential 
leadership skills, exhibit good citizenship, cultivate a robust work ethic, and establish a core value 
system that will guide them throughout their lives. 

Parents play an integral role as active participants in their children's educational journey, regularly 
engaging with the school to support and reinforce academic and personal growth. This involvement 
fosters a partnership that strengthens the school community and enhances student success. 

Our teachers are exceptional professionals who go above and beyond, committed to high achievement 
through a multifaceted approach that combines collaboration, continuous staff development, rigorous 
accountability, and personalized attention to student needs. Regular professional learning sessions 



17 

ensure that faculty are equipped with the latest pedagogical strategies and tools, enabling them to adapt 
to each student’s unique learning style and pace. Through collaborative planning and peer feedback, 
teachers work together to create a cohesive, supportive environment that prioritizes academic 
excellence, cultural respect, and individual well-being. This approach ensures that every child not only 
meets but often exceeds the school’s high standards, preparing them for future challenges and 
successes. 

Mission 

We strive to educate all students 
to reach the highest level of academic achievement through individualized teaching, small 

classroom settings, and culturally rich programs. 

Barona Charter School’s small school environment and class sizes enable us to meet both educational 
and emotional needs. Teachers are in the practice of greeting their students daily and addressing any 
personal needs a child may express by communicating with parents, and school personnel including 
our counselor and previous teachers. This is all possible due to the small class sizes. When teachers 
notice a child struggling academically, modifications can more easily be made due to the ease of 
teacher communication and accessibility to one another. This is all achieved due to our commitment 
to maintaining small class sizes. 

Cultural diversity is celebrated in several ways such as: Thank You Native America, TK-6 Culture 
class with collaboration with the Barona Cultural Center and Museum, and the 7/8th grade Heritage 
Project with the Museum Coordinator. Teachers are always conscious and aware of student 
backgrounds and tailor their instruction to teach about multiple point-of-view and also ensure that 
students can identify their own background in the subjects they are studying. The school is naturally 
accepting of the Kumeyaay culture and traditions. For example, staff members regularly speak with 
family members outside of the nuclear family. In this environment, parents and other family members 
work side-by-side with their children, as guided and supported by the school staff and community. The 
Barona Charter School is also dedicated to developing an appreciation of service to the community. 
Students work with the Barona Community to design and develop lessons that teach their traditional 
customs and unique perspectives. 

Barona Charter School’s curriculum aligns with the Common Core State Standards (“CCSS”). We 
have adopted ELA, Math, Social Studies, and Science curriculum that aligns with the California 
academic content standards, including the California CCSS, History-Social Science Content Standards 
for California Public Schools, and the Next Generation Science Standards.  

To promote student accountability and individual ownership of their learning, the school utilizes both 
standardized assessment and internal diagnostic assessment data. Each student follows a personalized 
learning pathway that includes both standard and stretch goals, allowing them to track their progress 
and celebrate their achievements throughout the school year..  

General Description  

In September 2002, the Barona Charter School opened in the Lakeside Union School District. The 
school served approximately 80 students in Kindergarten through Eighth Grade in its first year. For 
the academic year 2023-24, enrollment reached 81 students on Census Day. 



18 

III. EDUCATIONAL PHILOSOPHY AND PROGRAM (A) 

Governing Law: A description of the educational program of the charter school, designed, among 
other things, to identify those whom the charter school is attempting to educate, what it means to be 
an “educated person” in the 21st century, and how learning best occurs. The goals identified in that 
program shall include the objective of enabling pupils to become self-motivated, competent, and 
lifelong learners. A description of the annual goals for the charter school for all pupils and for each 
subgroup of pupils identified pursuant to Section 52052, to be achieved in the state priorities, as 
described in subdivision (d) of Section 52060, that apply for the grade levels served, and specific 
annual actions to achieve those goals. A charter petition may identify additional school priorities, the 
goals for the school priorities, and the specific annual actions to achieve those goals. 

-- California Education Code Section 47605(c)(5)(A) 

WHOM THE SCHOOL IS ATTEMPTING TO EDUCATE 

The Barona Charter School will educate students in grades K-8 from the Barona community, 
surrounding community, children of workers of the Barona community, and other area children who 
by virtue of residence or choice, elect to attend the school. 

The Barona Charter School responds to community needs by offering a school program that currently 
operates Monday through Thursday from 8:00 AM to 2:30 PM. Friday classes currently run from 8:00 
AM to 1:30 PM, thereby allowing for professional development activities at the conclusion of formal 
instructional time. There are currently 180 instructional days in the school year. Afternoon programs 
of day care, tutoring, athletics, and enrichment opportunities  are currently offered to students on a 
volunteer basis, through school clubs and the Barona Recreation Center. 

WHAT IT MEANS TO BE AN “EDUCATED PERSON” IN THE 21ST CENTURY 

The purpose of education today is to prepare individuals to lead meaningful, productive lives and fully 
exercise their rights to “life, liberty, and the pursuit of happiness” in an ever-evolving 21st century. In 
the modern era, an educated person will understand the shift from a product-based society to an 
information-driven one, where managing, analyzing, and applying vast amounts of information is 
essential for both productivity and personal growth. This individual will possess a comprehensive 
understanding of technology in its many forms, equipped to recognize opportunities for its application 
in solving emerging social and personal challenges. Additionally, they will seek knowledge and 
solutions to life’s complexities with an awareness of diverse cultural, social, and individual influences. 

Educated individuals will have the skills to apply knowledge practically, connecting insights from 
history, community needs, and personal strengths to today’s diverse contexts. In these varied settings, 
they will be capable of gathering, analyzing, interpreting, explaining, sharing, and evaluating 
information. Yet, while embracing a fast-paced, information-rich world, the educated person will 
balance this with an appreciation for the humanistic dimensions of life, seeking understanding and 
enrichment through art, music, dance, physical well-being, and character development. 

In the 21st century, an educated person will: 

• Use self-awareness to identify learning goals and personal needs 



19 

• Strategize their own learning journey 

• Reflect and adapt their strategies as needed 

• Address needs through social skills and interpersonal insight 

• Experience and appreciate the diversity of knowledge found in frameworks like those in 
California 

• Think critically, exploring and responding thoughtfully to new information 

• Work collaboratively and build connections through shared learning 

HOW LEARNING BEST OCCURS 

Barona Charter School is dedicated to applying the best research-proven strategies to provide a rich 
and rigorous academic program. Our approach is rooted in the belief that learning best occurs in a 
supportive, collaborative, and culturally reflective environment tailored to meet the diverse needs of 
all students. 

Small School, Big Impact: Barona Charter School benefits from a low student-to-teacher ratio, 
creating a close-knit and supportive learning environment. Research consistently shows that smaller 
school sizes lead to better learning outcomes, as they foster positive social relationships, increase 
trust among students and staff, and reduce issues such as violence and conflict. These enhanced 
relationships directly contribute to improved student achievement, higher attendance rates, and lower 
dropout rates. 

Parental Engagement: Learning is strengthened when parents actively participate in the educational 
journey. Our small school environment naturally encourages parental involvement, which has been 
further facilitated by modern technology, including mobile apps, websites, and social media 
platforms. These tools enable parents to stay engaged in their child’s progress, fostering continuous 
learning at home and strengthening the school-community connection. 

Collaboration at the Core: A collaborative environment is essential for educational success. At 
Barona Charter School, we prioritize collaboration among all stakeholders – teachers, students, 
parents, administrators, and the community. By fostering a cooperative culture, we create a space 
where knowledge and ideas are shared freely, supporting a dynamic and engaging learning 
experience. 

Goal-Oriented Instruction: We believe in the importance of setting measurable goals, allowing us 
to "begin with the end in mind." Our standards-based system ensures that academic programs are 
clearly directed and focused on student proficiency. To track and support student progress, we utilize 
the Curriculum Associates iReady platform, which provides personalized learning paths and regular 
assessment data. iReady allows teachers to monitor student growth and identify areas needing 
targeted support, helping us to meet individual learning needs effectively. 

Data-Driven Accountability: Accountability is integral to our educational approach. By 
continuously collecting and analyzing data, we ensure that our academic programs are responsive 



20 

and effective. This transparency allows students, parents, teachers, and administrators to stay 
informed and involved in the learning process, supporting ongoing improvement. 

Highly Qualified Staff: The expertise and qualifications of our teachers are critical to student 
success. Barona Charter School invests in specialized staff development programs to equip our 
teachers with the skills and knowledge needed for high-quality instruction. In collaboration with the 
Lakeside Union School District, our staff regularly participates in professional development 
opportunities to stay current with best practices and innovative teaching methods. 

Strong Literacy Foundation: Literacy is a cornerstone of academic success. Our program includes a 
strong emphasis on literacy, particularly in the early years, ensuring that students develop the reading 
and language skills needed to thrive. For those who require additional support, we offer targeted 
interventions to help close learning gaps and foster growth. 

Technology Integration: As a 21st-century learning institution, Barona Charter School recognizes 
the transformative power of technology. We integrate digital tools and resources into our curriculum 
to enhance communication, engagement, and skills development. Technology not only supports 
learning in the classroom but also prepares students to navigate the digital and social landscapes of 
the modern world. 

Cultural Relevance in Education: Learning flourishes in an environment that reflects and respects 
students’ cultural backgrounds. Barona Charter School values cultural education as part of our 
language arts program and beyond. By incorporating cultural elements into our curriculum, we create 
a more inclusive, affirming, and enriching educational experience, enabling students to see 
themselves in their studies and connect meaningfully with their heritage. 

This comprehensive approach ensures that Barona Charter School provides a holistic education, 
empowering students to succeed academically, socially, and personally, while preparing them for 
future challenges and opportunities. 

EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM 

Barona Charter School provides a curriculum which addresses the needs of the community: emphasis 
on literacy education, skills programs to enhance the learning of students who have fallen behind in 
the traditional public school system, and reliance on standards-based curricula which are measurable 
and accountable. 

The academic focus relies on implementing effective research-based programs, emphasizing Language 
Arts (especially phonics for reading in the kindergarten through second grade curriculums), 
Computation and Mathematical reasoning, a rigorous Science and History/Social Studies program, and 
instructionally appropriate uses of technology. Reduced class sizes and an emphasis on using 
instructional time effectively has allowed for a more focused learning experience. The following 
research-based methodologies and programs will be utilized: 

• Flexible grouping for effective learning and instruction 
• Accommodating individual learning styles 
• Providing direct instruction 
• Utilizing small group work, learning centers, and cooperative learning,  



21 

• Project-based learning 
• Individualized tutorial sessions 
• Thematic instruction 
• Guest speakers to talk on a variety of topics that may include career options, self-esteem 

building, peer relationships, citizenship, social skills, good manners, and playground etiquette 
• Educational field trips 
• Enrichment programs 
• Utilization of a standards-based assessment system that allows for targeted instruction and 

learning 

The focus of instruction will be on student learning as measured by achievement on regularly scheduled 
standards-based assessments. Student performance data will determine the scope and sequence of the 
curriculum. California State Framework/Content Standards provide the content and skill levels to be 
attained by the students. The instructional program will exceed the minimum number of instructional 
minutes set forth in the Education Code Section 47612.5(a)(1). Instruction will be provided in the 
content areas of Language Arts/English, Social Studies/History, Math, Science, Spelling and Physical 
Education. Important curricular aspects of the program include: 

• Implementation of Common Core State Standards in all curriculum including standards based 
benchmarks for learning at all grade levels; 

• Individualized educational plans with individualized challenge or reteach goals will be initiated 
and refined quarterly and collaboratively by teachers with parent input; 

• A strong phonemic awareness and phonics program utilizing the Magnetic Reading and Ready 
Core grades TK-5. 

• Amplify ELA6/7/8. 
• NGSS focused instruction and hands on science labs  
• Envision Math Program TK-5th and Amplify Desmos 6th- 8th 
• Studies Weekly Social Studies series for Grades TK-8. Social studies programs will be 

enhanced by the partnership with the Barona Museum Educational Program. 

PLAN FOR ENGLISH LEARNERS 

Overview 

The Charter School will meet all applicable legal requirements for English Learners (“EL”) to ensure 
they receive a high-quality education that addresses their language development and academic needs, 
including, but not limited to, annual notification to parents, student identification, placement, program 
options, EL and core content instruction, teacher qualifications and training, re-classification to fluent 
English proficient status, monitoring and evaluating program effectiveness, and standardized testing 
requirement. The Charter School will implement policies to assure proper placement, evaluation, and 
communication regarding ELs and the rights of students and parents.  The Charter School will offer a 
range of program options to support English language acquisition while also delivering core content 
instruction, ensuring that EL students can fully engage with the curriculum. 

To support this commitment, the Charter School will ensure that all teachers are qualified and trained 
to effectively teach EL students, equipping them with strategies and tools to support language 
development alongside academic growth. The school has clear criteria and procedures for 
reclassification, enabling EL students to transition to fluent English proficient (FEP) status when they 



22 

demonstrate readiness. In addition, the Charter School will implement ongoing monitoring and 
evaluation processes to assess the effectiveness of its EL programs, making adjustments as needed to 
enhance outcomes. The school will also fulfill standardized testing requirements for EL students, 
ensuring they are evaluated fairly and receive the support they need to succeed. Finally, the Charter 
School will maintain transparent communication with families, providing information on program 
placement, student progress, and their rights, fostering a strong partnership with EL families in support 
of student success. 

Home Language Survey 

The Charter School will administer the home language survey upon a student’s initial enrollment into 
the Charter School (on enrollment forms). 

ELPAC Testing 

All students who indicate that their home language is other than English will be ELPAC tested within 
thirty days of initial enrollment1 and at least annually thereafter until re-designated as fluent English 
proficient. 

The Charter School will notify all parents of its responsibility for ELPAC testing and of ELPAC results 
within thirty days of receiving results from publisher. The ELPAC shall be used to fulfill the 
requirements under the Elementary and Secondary Education Act for annual English proficiency 
testing. 

Strategies for English Language Learner Instruction and Intervention 

Teachers will be trained to use Specially Designed Academic Instruction in English (SDAIE) 
techniques to meet the needs of English language learners. 

The instructional design model to be used by the Charter School places a heavy emphasis on 
differentiating instruction to meet the needs of English Language Learners based on their academic 
and language readiness. Through the well-defined professional development plan that accompanies 
this instructional design model, teachers will be trained in a variety of instructional strategies to be 
used specifically with English Learners. 

Strategies used within the classroom to meet the needs of students include: small group rotations that 
utilize EL resources such as leveled readers, grammar specifically designed to meet language 
acquisition needs, assisted technology to make grade-level instruction accessible to English Learners, 
and Dictation exercises designed to improve student’s writing.  

Reclassification Procedures 

Reclassification procedures utilize multiple criteria in determining whether to classify a pupil as 
proficient in English including, but not limited to, all of the following: 

                                                 
1 The thirty-day requirement applies to students who are entering a California public school for the first time or for 
students who have not yet been ELPAC tested. All other students who have indicated a home language other than 
English will continue with annual ELPAC testing based upon the date last tested at the prior school of enrollment. 



23 

• Assessment of language proficiency using an objective assessment instrument including, but 
not limited to, the ELPAC (Summative ELAPC Overall Performance Level 4; Summative 
Alternate ELPAC Performance Level 3). 

• Participation of the pupil’s classroom teachers and any other certificated staff with direct 
responsibility for teaching or placement decisions of the pupil to evaluate the pupil’s 
curriculum mastery. 

• Parental opinion and consultation, achieved through notice to parents or guardians of the 
language reclassification and placement including a description of the reclassification process 
and the parent’s opportunity to participate, and encouragement of the participation of parents 
or guardians in the reclassification procedure including seeking their opinion and consultation 
during the reclassification process. 

• Comparison of the pupil’s performance in basic skills against an empirically established range 
of performance and basic skills based upon the performance of English proficient pupils of the 
same age that demonstrate to others that the pupil is sufficiently proficient in English to 
participate effectively in a curriculum designed for pupils of the same age whose native 
language is English. 

PLAN FOR STUDENTS WHO ARE LOW ACHIEVING 

At-risk students at Barona Charter School benefit from a comprehensive approach tailored to address 
their unique needs. Small class sizes and low teacher-to-student ratios allow for individualized 
attention and support, ensuring that each student receives a learning experience adapted to their 
strengths and challenges. Teachers create individualized instructional plans that guide their approach 
to each student’s learning, providing additional tutoring and targeted support when necessary. Within 
each classroom, teachers utilize a mix of whole-group and small-group instruction, and they modify 
the curriculum to align with each student’s needs. This flexible approach enables teachers to adapt 
quickly when students struggle, delivering personalized support in real-time. 

Teachers continuously monitor students’ progress and achievement, remaining attentive to any signs 
that a student may be falling behind. When students are not meeting academic standards, teachers 
initiate Tier II Interventions to provide additional support. Small class sizes make it possible for 
teachers to swiftly modify the curriculum or mode of instruction, ensuring that interventions are 
effectively implemented. Tier II Interventions used at Barona Charter School include reteaching 
specific lessons tailored to the student’s learning style in a one-on-one setting, utilizing peer 
assistance, modifying assignments by reducing repetitive questions, using instructional aides for 
extra support, incorporating assistive technology where needed, and offering alternative seating 
arrangements to enhance focus and engagement. 

If Tier II Interventions in the regular classroom setting do not yield the desired improvements, the 
Charter School remains dedicated to helping students achieve at expected levels. For students 
performing below grade level or experiencing behavior issues, the school initiates a Student Study 
Team (SST) process. The SST process is a collaborative approach involving teachers, administrators, 



24 

and other relevant staff members who work together to develop a personalized support plan for the 
student.  

The SST operates using a systematic problem-solving approach to address issues that may be 
interfering with a student’s academic success. This team clarifies specific problems and concerns, 
develops strategies to address them, organizes resources to support the student, and establishes 
accountability measures to track progress. The SST also acts as a resource for parents, offering them 
support and guidance, and serving as a bridge between the school and home. Importantly, the SST 
process is a general education function, making it accessible to all students without requiring a 
formal special education designation. 

Students eligible for SST support include those performing below grade level, those who have 
experienced emotional trauma, students with behavioral challenges, and those facing difficulties with 
language acquisition. Any individual connected to a student, such as teachers, parents, counselors, 
doctors, administrators, or social workers, can refer the student for an SST evaluation if they have 
concerns. All relevant parties who have insight into the student’s strengths, concerns, and previous 
strategies can participate in the SST meeting, providing a well-rounded understanding of the student’s 
needs. This collaborative meeting is designed to foster positive outcomes by encouraging open 
dialogue, sharing resources, and developing a shared plan of action to help the student succeed 
academically, socially, and emotionally. Through this approach, Barona Charter School strives to bring 
out the best in each student, creating an inclusive and supportive environment where all students have 
the opportunity to thrive. 

The Charter School SST meeting steps shall include: 

1. Team members introduce themselves and their roles 
2. Purpose and process of the meeting are stated 
3. Timekeeper is appointed 
4. Strengths are identified 
5. Concerns are discussed, clarified and listed 
6. Pertinent information and modifications are listed 
7. Concerns are synthesized with one or two chosen for focus 
8. Strategies to deal with are chosen; concerns are brainstormed 
9. Team chooses best strategies to carry into actions 
10. Individuals make commitments to actions 
11. Person responsible and timelines for actions are recorded 
12. Follow-up date is set 

 
After implementation of an SST plan and follow up, if the problem continues, revisions to the plan 
may be discussed, or if necessary, a referral for special education or Section 504 assessment might be 
deemed necessary by the SST team. 

PLAN FOR STUDENTS WHO ARE HIGH ACHIEVING 

Students who are performing above grade level are identified by teachers through a combination of 
ongoing progress monitoring, placement tests, course assessments, standardized assessments, and 
careful observations by both parents and teachers. These various measures provide a comprehensive 
understanding of each student’s strengths and areas of advanced knowledge, allowing teachers to 
recognize those who may benefit from a more challenging curriculum. 



25 

At Barona Charter School, small class sizes and low teacher-to-student ratios create an ideal 
environment for meeting the needs of high-performing students. Teachers can develop individualized 
instructional plans tailored to these students, ensuring that the curriculum remains engaging and 
challenging. This personalized approach enables teachers to adjust the pace and complexity of lessons, 
introduce advanced content, and encourage critical thinking, problem-solving, and creativity. 

Teachers may also implement enrichment activities that align with students' interests and strengths, 
offering opportunities for deeper exploration in subjects where they excel. This could include 
independent research projects, advanced reading materials, collaborative group work with other high-
achieving peers, or access to online resources and technology that enhance learning. Additionally, these 
students may be invited to participate in special programs or extracurricular activities that further 
support their growth and intellectual curiosity. 

Through this differentiated approach, Barona Charter School ensures that high-performing students 
continue to progress and reach their full academic potential. By providing the right level of challenge 
and support, we foster an environment where all students, regardless of their starting point, can thrive 
academically and develop a lifelong love of learning. 

Serving Students with Disabilities 

Overview 

The Barona Charter School shall comply with all applicable State and Federal Laws in serving students 
with disabilities, including, but not limited to, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act (“Section 504”), 
the Americans with Disabilities Act (“ADA”), the Individuals with Disabilities in Education 
Improvement Act of 2004 (“IDEIA”), and applicable Education Code requirements. 

The Barona Charter School is a Local Education Agency (“LEA”) member of the East County Special 
Education Local Plan Area (“East County SELPA”) in compliance with Education Code Section 
47641(a). As an LEA member of the East County SELPA the Barona Charter School shall assure that 
a free appropriate public education (“FAPE”) is provided for all children with disabilities attending the 
Charter School in accordance with Education Code Section 56000 et seq. and the IDEIA as well as all 
other state and federal laws related to the provision of special education instruction and related services. 

The Barona Charter School shall comply with all requirements of the East County SELPA. A full 
continuum of special education programs and related services shall be provided by the Barona Charter 
School as required by an eligible student’s Individualized Education Program (“IEP”). No student 
otherwise eligible to enroll in the Barona Charter School will be denied enrollment due to their 
disability. 

The Barona Charter School shall comply with all East County SELPA policies and procedures; and 
shall utilize appropriate East County SELPA forms. 

The Barona Charter School shall be solely responsible for its compliance with Section 504 and the 
ADA. The facilities to be utilized by the Barona Charter School shall be accessible for all students with 
disabilities. 



26 

Services for Students Under the “IDEIA” 

As stated above, the Charter School provides special education instruction and related services in 
accordance with the IDEIA, Education Code requirements, and applicable policies and practices of the 
East County SELPA. The Charter School intends to remain an independent LEA as part of the East 
County SELPA pursuant to Education Code Section 47641(a), but a change in LEA status or SELPA 
membership shall not require a material revision of this Charter. 

When students require an initial evaluation to determine if they meet eligibility requirements to receive 
special education, the Charter School generates a referral for special education; monitors all legal 
timelines; develops an assessment plan (offering testing in all areas of suspected area of disability); 
coordinates qualified personnel to provide the required testing; distributes written assessment reports 
to the parent prior to the IEP meeting; generates an IEP meeting; develops and facilitates the IEP 
meeting; and distributes copies of the IEP to appropriate personnel. As requested, East County SELPA 
will be provided duplicate copies of all IEPs for purposes of conducting state required Coordinated 
Compliance Reviews (“CCR”). The Barona Charter School agrees to adhere to all East County SELPA 
policies and procedures with regards to collecting and submitting California Special Education 
Management Information System (“CASEMIS”) data.  

At least once every three years, a student is reassessed to determine their continued eligibility to receive 
special education services. The identical process used during an initial evaluation is replicated at each 
triennial reevaluation. Following any initial or triennial assessment, if a student has a documented 
learning or related disability, but does not meet other eligibility requirements allowing them to receive 
special education services, a 504 Team will be convened to consider whether the child qualifies for 
accommodations and/or services under Section 504. A data base is maintained and updated weekly to 
insure all initial, annual, and triennial reviews are held within mandated timelines. 

The East County SELPA shall allocate funding to the Barona Charter School for the provision of 
special education services in accordance with the SELPA Funding Plan. 

The Barona Charter School will contribute to, participate in, and receive the benefits of any services 
provided through the East County SELPA in accordance with its local plan. 

The Barona Charter School will contract for, or hire staff to provide special education services with 
qualified providers who possess appropriate special education credential(s). The Barona Charter 
School shall be responsible for all special education costs in excess of revenues received. The Charter 
School’s administrators, general and special education teaching staff, as well as other appropriate 
faculty and staff members, will attend professional development and/or training meetings necessary to 
comply with state and federal special education laws, including training sponsored by the SELPA. 

The Barona Charter School, in cooperation with the East County SELPA, shall document that all state 
and federal special education funds are used for the sole purpose of providing special education 
instruction and/or services to identified students with disabilities. Such funds shall be used to 
supplement and not supplant other sources of federal, state, and local funds apportioned to the Barona 
Charter School. 

More information about our special education program can be found in our Special Education 
Procedural Handbook, which has been reviewed by District staff as part of ongoing oversight.  A 
current copy is publicly available on our website and attached as Appendix B. 



27 

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act 

The Charter School recognizes its legal responsibility to ensure that no qualified person with a 
disability shall, on the basis of disability, be excluded from participation, be denied the benefits of, or 
otherwise be subjected to discrimination under any program of the Charter School. Any student, who 
has an objectively identified disability which substantially limits a major life activity including but not 
limited to learning, is eligible for accommodation by the Charter School. 

A 504 team will be assembled by the Principal/Director and shall include the parent/guardian, the 
student (where appropriate) and other qualified persons knowledgeable about the student, the meaning 
of the evaluation data, placement options, and accommodations. The 504 team will review the student’s 
existing records; including academic, social and behavioral records, and is responsible for making a 
determination as to whether an evaluation for 504 services is appropriate. If the student has already 
been evaluated under the IDEIA but found ineligible for special education instruction or related 
services under the IDEIA, those evaluations may be used to help determine eligibility under Section 
504. The student evaluation shall be carried out by the 504 team who will evaluate the nature of the 
student’s disability and the impact upon the student’s education. This evaluation will include 
consideration of any behaviors that interfere with regular participation in the educational program 
and/or activities. The 504 team may also consider the following information in its evaluation: 

• Tests and other evaluation materials that have been validated for the specific purpose for which 
they are used and are administered by trained personnel. 

• Tests and other evaluation materials include those tailored to assess specific areas of 
educational need, and not merely those which are designed to provide a single general 
intelligent quotient. 

• Tests are selected and administered to ensure that when a test is administered to a student with 
impaired sensory, manual or speaking skills, the test results accurately reflect the student’s 
aptitude or achievement level, or whatever factor the test purports to measure, rather than 
reflecting the student’s impaired sensory, manual or speaking skills. 

The final determination of whether the student will or will not be identified as a person with a disability 
is made by the 504 team in writing and notice is given in writing to the parent or guardian of the student 
in their primary language along with the procedural safeguards available to them. If during the 
evaluation, the 504 team obtains information indicating possible eligibility of the student for special 
education per the IDEIA, a referral for assessment under the IDEIA will be made by the 504 team. 

If the student is found by the 504 team to have a disability under Section 504, the 504 team shall be 
responsible for determining what, if any, accommodations or services are needed to ensure that the 
student receives the FAPE. In developing the 504 Plan, the 504 team shall consider all relevant 
information utilized during the evaluation of the student, drawing upon a variety of sources, including, 
but not limited to, assessments conducted by the School’s professional staff. 

The 504 Plan shall describe the Section 504 disability and any program accommodations, 
modifications or services that may be necessary. 

All 504 team participants, parents, guardians, teachers and any other participants in the student’s 
education, including substitutes and tutors, must have a copy of each student’s 504 Plan. The site 



28 

administrator will ensure that teachers include 504 Plans with lesson plans for short-term substitutes 
and that he/she review the 504 Plan with a long-term substitute. A copy of the 504 Plan shall be 
maintained in the student’s file. Each student’s 504 Plan will be reviewed at least once per year to 
determine the appropriateness of the Plan, needed modifications to the plan, and continued eligibility. 

TECHNOLOGY 

The Barona Charter School acknowledges that in today’s increasingly digital world, access to and 
effective use of technology are vital components in preparing students not only for secondary and 
postsecondary education but also for successful careers in the business and professional sectors. 
Technology literacy empowers students with essential skills for critical thinking, collaboration, 
communication, and problem-solving—skills that are indispensable in a modern workforce where 
digital tools and platforms play a central role. 

We understand, however, that many low-income families face significant barriers to technology access, 
often lacking reliable internet connections, up-to-date devices, or exposure to digital resources at home. 
This digital divide can place students from low-income backgrounds at a disadvantage, limiting their 
access to valuable learning resources and educational opportunities available online, such as research 
databases, interactive educational platforms, and virtual collaboration tools. 

To bridge this gap, Barona Charter School is committed to providing equitable access to technology 
within our classrooms and school facilities. We equip students with devices such as Chromebooks and 
iPads to ensure they can engage fully with the digital curriculum. Additionally, our classrooms are 
outfitted with high-speed internet, interactive flat panels, and other advanced technology to create a 
digitally rich learning environment where students can build the skills necessary for future success. 

Beyond access within the school, we are exploring ways to support low-income families in accessing 
the "information highway" at home. This may include partnerships with local organizations or internet 
providers to offer affordable or subsidized internet services to families in need. We also strive to 
educate both students and parents on digital literacy, helping them understand how to navigate online 
resources responsibly and safely, which is crucial for lifelong learning and responsible digital 
citizenship. 

By taking a proactive approach to addressing these barriers, Barona Charter School is dedicated to 
ensuring that all students, regardless of their socioeconomic background, have the tools and 
opportunities they need to succeed in a technology-driven world. Our goal is to empower every student 
with the confidence and skills to pursue their academic and career aspirations in an increasingly 
interconnected and digital global landscape. 

To this end, a comprehensive Technology Plan has been developed to include the following: 

• Acquisition of appropriate software, hardware, and routing access to the information highway; 
• Implementation of a student data and management program; 
• An instructional plan that encourages daily student access to computers; 
• Course competencies in computer literacy; 
• Utilization of technologically advanced software to supplement the core curriculum and 

promote the practice of higher-level thinking skills; 
• Parent access to literacy courses and a management plan to promote homebased use in order 

to strengthen the role of parents in homework assistance and class work skill reinforcement; 



29 

• Appropriate safeguards to ensure access to educationally appropriate information only, and 
• Creating an internet capable, wireless network utilizing laptop computers. 

TEACHERS 

Barona Charter School will be staffed with teachers who hold a Commission on Teacher Credentialing 
certificate, permit, or other document required for the teacher’s certificated assignment, in accordance 
with Education Code Section 47605(l). The Charter School may use local assignment options 
authorized in statute and regulations for the purpose of legally assigning certificated teachers, in 
accordance with all of the requirements of the applicable statutes or regulations in the same manner as 
a governing board of a school district. The Charter School shall have authority to request an emergency 
permit or a waiver from the Commission on Teacher Credentialing for individuals in the same manner 
as a school district.   

At Barona Charter School, we recognize that early literacy skills are foundational for academic success. 
To ensure students in Kindergarten through 2nd grade receive the strongest possible start, our teachers 
in these grades will receive specialized training in early literacy instruction, equipping them with 
strategies to effectively teach phonics, phonemic awareness, vocabulary, comprehension, and fluency. 
This training emphasizes evidence-based approaches that support young learners in building essential 
reading skills, fostering a love for reading, and developing the confidence to become independent 
readers. 

To further support early literacy and other essential skills, we will hire classroom aides who can provide 
additional assistance to students, reinforcing instruction and offering individualized support where 
needed. Additionally, community volunteers will be enlisted to help with auxiliary programs, such as 
reading groups, storytelling sessions, or literacy-based activities, allowing students more opportunities 
to practice their skills in engaging, supportive settings. These aides and volunteers will be trained to 
work alongside teachers, reinforcing key concepts and providing a nurturing environment for young 
learners. 

Barona Charter School holds all faculty and staff accountable for ensuring that their students meet the 
highest academic and developmental standards. We are committed to building a team of educators who 
are not only highly skilled but also passionate about teaching and child development. Teachers will be 
selected based on their enthusiasm, confidence, and dedication to creating a child-centered learning 
environment that prioritizes each student’s growth. We aim to attract high-performing teachers who 
value collaboration and innovation and who are eager to implement and refine effective teaching 
methods in a supportive and collaborative environment. 

To attract and retain top teaching talent, Barona Charter School offers entry-level salaries that are 
competitive with those of surrounding districts, ensuring that our compensation aligns with regional 
standards. Additionally, where funding allows, we offer performance-based incentives to recognize 
and reward teachers’ dedication and success in improving student achievement. These incentives create 
an environment where educators are motivated to achieve high standards and feel valued for their 
contributions to student growth. 

By investing in skilled and dedicated educators, providing additional classroom support, and offering 
competitive compensation and incentives, Barona Charter School is committed to creating a nurturing 
and academically rigorous environment that supports each child’s journey to literacy and lifelong 



30 

learning. This strategic approach ensures that students receive the best possible foundation in their 
earliest years of education, setting them on a path to success. 

A professional development program has been instituted, centered on the single goal of improving the 
learning of all students. The following elements of the professional development program support the 
continuous improvement of student learning: 

• Faculty embraces the essentials of collaboration and communication 
• Utilizes resources solely to improve student learning 
• Uses disaggregated student data to determine learning priorities, monitor progress, and sustain 

continuous improvement 
• Uses multiple sources of information to guide improvement and demonstrate its impact 
• Prepares faculty members to apply research to decision making 
• Uses learning strategies appropriate to the intended goal. 
• Applies knowledge about human learning and change 
• Utilizes collaboration as a staff norm 
• Deepens faculty content knowledge, provides them with research-based instructional strategies 

to assist students in meeting rigorous academic standards 
• Provides faculty with knowledge and skills to involve families and other stakeholders 

appropriately. 

ANNUAL GOALS AND ACTIONS 

Pursuant to Education Code Section 47605(c)(5)(A)(ii), Section II below contains a table describing 
annual goals to be achieved in the state priorities and specific annual actions to achieve those goals. 
The Charter School will annually update its goals and annual actions using the Local Control and 
Accountability Plan (“LCAP”) template adopted by the State Board of Education.  The Charter School 
shall comply with all requirements of Education Code section 47606.5, including, but not limited to, 
holding at least one public hearing to solicit the recommendations and comments of members of the 
public, presenting a report on the annual update and budget overview to the board on or before February 
28 each year, posting the LCAP on the website.   



31 

IV. MEASURABLE STUDENT OUTCOMES AND OTHER USES OF DATA (B) (C) 

Governing Law: The measurable pupil outcomes identified for use by the charter school. “Pupil 
outcomes,” for purposes of this part, means the extent to which all pupils of the charter school 
demonstrate that they have attained the skills, knowledge, and attitudes specified as goals in the charter 
school’s educational program. Pupil outcomes shall include outcomes that address increases in pupil 
academic achievement both schoolwide and for all pupil subgroups served by the charter school, as 
that term is defined in subdivision (a) of Section 52052. The pupil outcomes shall align with the state 
priorities, as described in subdivision (d) of Section 52060, that apply for the grade levels served by 
the charter school. 

-- California Education Code Section 47605(c)(5)(B) 

Governing Law: The method by which pupil progress in meeting those pupil outcomes are measured. 
To the extent practicable, the method for measuring pupil outcomes for state priorities shall be 
consistent with the way information is reported on a school accountability report card. 

-- California Education Code Section 47605(c)(5)(C) 

The Barona Charter School will meet all statewide standards and conduct the student assessments 
required pursuant to Education Code Section 60605, and any other statewide standards authorized in 
statute, or student assessments applicable to students in non-charter public schools. 

ANNUAL GOALS AND ACTIONS AND MEASURABLE STUDENT OUTCOMES 

Below is an overview of the Charter School’s goals, actions to achieve those goals, and measurable 
student outcomes as reflected in the current LCAP.  For more detailed information, a copy of the 
Charter School’s LCAP is available on our website.   
 

 OVERVIEW OF LOCAL CONTROL AND ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN 

GOAL #1 
Provide rigorous instruction and curriculum to improve student learning and 
demonstrate annual growth in California Standards in the areas of math and ELA, 
particularly in low-income and Special Education populations. 

Related State Priorities: 
☐ 1         ☒ 4         ☒ 7  
☒ 2         ☐ 5         ☐ 8   
☐ 3         ☐ 6          

Specific Annual Actions to Achieve Goal 
Action 1.1 – Improve Programs: Classroom teachers will fully adopt approved Curriculum and Supplemental 
Material for all grade levels. Teachers will review student achievement data to determine progress. Teachers 
will utilize curriculum tools and assessments to support student achievement, including students with 
disabilities and socioeconomically disadvantaged students. Math Coach will provide bi-weekly consultations 
with teachers by grade level to support the implementation of Envision Math to keep them on track with pacing 
and reviewing student achievement data to determine when students need additional support and interventions. 
Teachers will be able to fully implement the program with fidelity for all students. BCS will utilize Project 
ARISE (Accelerating Reading Intervention for Systemic Excellence). This program provides evidence-based 



32 

resources and support to educators with literacy instruction. Teachers will have access to online and in-person 
guidance to support students with disabilities, students with dyslexia, multilingual learners, and students who 
are dually identified. 
 
Action 1.2 – Instructional Specialist: BCS will employ fully qualified Instructional Specialists for 
intervention services to improve student learning and academic achievement by increasing monitoring and 
support for students needing additional math and reading help. The Instructional Specialists will support 
students with disabilities and socioeconomically disadvantaged students. Students who receive interventions 
will show increased achievement levels in Math and Reading. 
 
Action 1.3 – Summer School/After School Support for ELA/Math: BCS will offer a Summer School 
program that is designed for all students, giving priority to below grade level, student with disabilities and 
socioeconomically disadvantaged students, for extended support and intervention during the summer break. 
Our program will focus primarily on Math and ELA skills and also include STEAM activities for a broad 
learning experience. Progress will be measured by local assessment data to show academic progress for these 
students. BCS will provide After school support for struggling students and students requiring structured time 
for homework, support and intervention, for those students with learning disabilities, and support for 
socioeconomically disadvantaged students. In addition, our after school programs are designed to engage and 
enrich our students' educational experience. 
 
Action 1.4 – Maintain Small Class Size: BCS will hire sufficient, qualified staff to maintain small class sizes 
with a maximum of a teacher to student ratio as follows: Grades TK-2: 1:16 teacher to student ratio 
Grades 3-8: 1:24 teacher to student ratio Small class size will allow more individualized attention and provide 
students with quality academic support, to address the specific needs of each students, including 
socioeconomically disadvantaged – both in the Special Ed and General Ed settings. 
 
1.5 – Academic and Behavior Supports for Students (MTSS): Classroom instructional aides will provide 
focused academic interventions utilizing data analysis from local assessments from iReady, ESGI and Reflex 
Math, to enhance learning outcomes for all students, including socioeconomically disadvantaged pupils and 
students with disabilities. Classroom instructional aides will also provide behavior support to contribute to 
positive class culture. 

Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes  
Outcome 1.1: CAASPP English Language Arts Measured by points distance from standard 

APPLICABLE  
STUDENT GROUPS Baseline Target for Year 3 Outcome 

All Students (Schoolwide) including all 
numerically significant student subgroups  

47.9 points below standard 40 points below standard 

Outcome 1.2: CAASPP Math Measured by points distance from standard 
 

APPLICABLE  
STUDENT GROUPS Baseline Target for Year 3 Outcome 

All Students (Schoolwide) including all 
numerically significant student subgroups 

73.7 points below standard 62 points below standard 

Outcome 1.3: iReady Language Arts/Reading Scores Measured by Annual Typical Growth of Median Progress 



33 

APPLICABLE  
STUDENT GROUPS Baseline Target for Year 3 Outcome 

All Students (Schoolwide) including all 
numerically significant student subgroups  

85% of Annual Typical Growth 100% of Annual Typical Growth 

Outcome 1.4: iReady Math Scores Measured by Annual Typical Growth of Median Progress 
 

APPLICABLE  
STUDENT GROUPS Baseline Target for Year 3 Outcome 

All Students (Schoolwide) including all 
numerically significant student subgroups 

76% of Annual Typical Growth 100% of Annual Typical Growth 

 

GOAL #2 
To support the social, emotional, and physical well-being of our students and staff, 
and promote self-awareness, self-management, responsible decision-making, and 
relationship skills. 

Related State Priorities: 
☐ 1         ☐ 4         ☐ 7  
☐ 2         ☒ 5         ☐ 8   
☒ 3         ☒ 6          

Specific Annual Actions to Achieve Goal 
Action 2.1 – Improve Overall Attendance: BCS understands consistent attendance contributes to higher 
academic achievement and a positive school climate. We will approach the issue of chronically absent students 
with multiple strategies.  
 
ATTENDANCE RATE: BCS will improve attendance rates with systematically monitoring attendance. BCS 
will continue with Infinite Campus, to monitor and track students attendance data and communicate with 
families. 
 
CHRONIC ABSENTEEISM: BCS will retain a Family Resource Coordinator to build positive relationships 
with families and create systems to reduce the barriers leading to chronic absenteeism. Our Family Resource 
Coordinator will increase monitoring and support for socioeconomically disadvantaged students, and students 
with disabilities with the goal of decreasing Chronic Absenteeism rates. BCS will strategically focus on 
building trusting relationships and providing supports to our Native American students through outreach from 
our family resource coordinators, as well as services through Southern Indian Health Services. 
 
Action 2.2 – Maintain Suspension and Expulsion rate of < 1%: BCS will maintain Suspension and 
Expulsion rates of <1% by continuing to build a positive school culture and utilize a behavioral intervention 
program to promote student well-being. BCS will provide behavioral improvement programs; school 
connectedness plan; and other student well-being initiatives. Teachers and staff will participate in professional 
development to fully implement our SEL program to provide social and emotional support services for all 
students. 
 
Action 2.3 – Student and Staff Well-Being Initiative: The adoption and full implementation of a new 
schoolwide SEL program will address social-emotional learning, equity, achievement gaps, resilience and 
trauma-informed practices for our school. Teachers and staff will receive training to integrate strategies and 
systems into classrooms and across campus. Improve and/or increase services to support the social, emotional, 
and physical well-being of students and promote compassionate care for self, others, and the community. 



34 

Provide social and emotional supports for students with disabilities and socioeconomically disadvantaged 
student groups. Improve staff communication through multiple strategies including SEL program 
implementation and assessments for positive workplace culture. BCS will conduct an annual student survey to 
determine the level of safety and connectedness felt by students. 
 
Action 2.4 – California Healthy Kids Surveys (Grades 5 to 8): BCS will administer student, faculty and/or 
parent survey, to improve school climate, pupil engagement, parent involvement, and academic achievement, 
using data from California Healthy Kids Survey, to identify the needs of vulnerable subgroups. Improve and/or 
increase services to support the social, emotional, and physical well-being of students and promote 
compassionate care for self, others, and the community. 
 
Action 2.5 – Physical Education and Nutrition: BCS will enhance its Physical Education program to 
promote increased physical activity and healthy nutrition for our all students. The Physical Education teacher 
will administer annual the Physical Fitness Test in grades 5 and 7, for the purpose of helping students build 
habits of regular physical activity. In addition, weekly health classes will help students to develop healthy 
lifestyle habits. 
 
Action 2.6 – Mental Health and Counseling Services: Southern Indian Health Counsellors will hold bi-
weekly diversity group meetings with students in grades 3rd thru 8th to strengthen social connections and 
emotional wellness. 
 
Action 2.7 – Partner with Families BCS will provide opportunities for school - family interactions (school 
events, parent in-put meetings, volunteer opportunities, community involvement) in order to create stronger 
relationships between parents, students, community and school to strengthen the students overall academic 
achievement and emotional wellbeing. 

Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes  
Outcome 2.1: School Attendance Rates Measured by percentage of students present of enrolled school days 

APPLICABLE  
STUDENT GROUPS Baseline Target for Year 3 Outcome 

All Students (Schoolwide) including all 
numerically significant student subgroups  

94% 95% 

Outcome 2.2: Chronic Absenteeism Rates Measured by students absent 10% or more of enrolled school days 

APPLICABLE  
STUDENT GROUPS Baseline Target for Year 3 Outcome 

All Students (Schoolwide) including all 
numerically significant student subgroups 

25.6% 15% 

Outcome 2.3: Suspension and Expulsion Rates Measured by Percentage of Students Suspended at Least One 
Time 

APPLICABLE  
STUDENT GROUPS Baseline Target for Year 3 Outcome 

All Students (Schoolwide) including all 
numerically significant student subgroups 

0% 0% 

 
 



35 

GOAL #3 
Barona Charter school will provide a safe and well-maintained campus to promote 
a better learning environment for our students and faculty. 

Related State Priorities: 
☐ 1         ☐ 4         ☐ 7  
☐ 2         ☒ 5         ☐ 8   
☐ 3         ☒ 6          

Specific Annual Actions to Achieve Goal 
Action 3.1 – Facilities: BCS will conduct routine inspections of our facilities to ensure all buildings and 
structures are in excellent condition and free from safety hazards. Repairs to grounds, playground structure and 
facilities will be completed as necessary by the Facility Maintenance Crew. This will ensure a healthy and safe 
environment for our students. 
 
Action 3.2 – Campus Improvements: BCS will provide adequate furniture, equipment and structures to 
maintain a campus that is efficient and effective for all students and staff to learn and work. 
 
Action 3.3 – Campus supervisor and attendants: BCS will fully staff our school with a Campus Supervisor 
and Campus Attendants that are trained to oversee the safety of our students and the conditions of our facility, 
which will create a sense of well-being with all of our students and staff. 

Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes  
Outcome 3.1: Routine inspection of buildings and grounds and replacement of broken furniture and equipment 

APPLICABLE  
STUDENT GROUPS Baseline Target for Year 3 Outcome 

All Students (Schoolwide) including all 
numerically significant student subgroups  

Annual inspection of all 
building and grounds 

Tri-annual inspection of all 
buildings and grounds to support 

a well-maintained campus 
Outcome 3.2: Daily cleaning and sanitizing of all classrooms and offices 

APPLICABLE  
STUDENT GROUPS Baseline Target for Year 3 Outcome 

All Students (Schoolwide) including all 
numerically significant student subgroups 

Classrooms and offices are 
cleaned on a daily basis 

Maintain Baseline 
 

 

GOAL #4 
Equitable Access to Arts Education for All Students TK-8th Grade. Related State Priorities: 

☒ 1         ☒ 4         ☒ 7  
☒ 2         ☒ 5         ☒ 8   
☒ 3         ☒ 6          

Specific Annual Actions to Achieve Goal 



36 

Action 4.1 – Hire arts instructor to serve all grade levels TK-8: BCS will hire a qualified Arts Instructor to 
launch the Arts program for students in TK-8th Grade. 
 
Action 4.2 – Ensure access to high-quality arts instruction in dance, music, theatre, visual arts, for all 
students, in all grade levels: BCS will develop a structured, well-rounded Arts Program, accessible to 
all students, including socioeconomically disadvantaged and students with disabilities. 
 
Action 4.3 – Build stronger ties with parents, students, staff and community through the Arts program: 
BCS will utilize the "Meet The Masters" Arts Program to increase classroom and after-school arts 
programming through partnerships with parent volunteers, community members, and local arts organizations. 
 
Action 4.4 – Professional development for classroom (non-arts) teachers: Provide professional learning 
opportunities for teachers to learn arts integration strategies to use across curriculum and instruction. 

Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes  
Outcome 4.1: Staff for Arts Instruction 

APPLICABLE  
STUDENT GROUPS Baseline Target for Year 3 Outcome 

All Students (Schoolwide) including all 
numerically significant student subgroups  

No baseline established Qualified Arts teachers for 
instruction in Visual Arts, 

Performing Arts and Music 
Outcome 4.2: Number of hours for all students to participate in arts education 

APPLICABLE  
STUDENT GROUPS Baseline Target for Year 3 Outcome 

All Students (Schoolwide) including all 
numerically significant student subgroups 

No baseline established 288 Hours of Arts education per year 
school-wide 

Outcome 4.3: Number of opportunities for families and community members to engage in the Arts program 

APPLICABLE  
STUDENT GROUPS Baseline Target for Year 3 Outcome 

All Students (Schoolwide) including all 
numerically significant student subgroups 

No baseline established 10 opportunities to include classroom 
volunteers and arts 

events/performances per year 
Outcome 4.4: Hours of professional development for classroom (non-arts) teachers 

APPLICABLE  
STUDENT GROUPS Baseline Target for Year 3 Outcome 

All Students (Schoolwide) including all 
numerically significant student subgroups 

No baseline established 10 hours of professional development 
per year 

 
Methods of Measurement The academic performance of students at Barona Charter School is evaluated 
using a variety of assessments, including the following standardized assessments required by law: 

• Grades 3-8: Smarter Balanced Assessment Consortium (SBAC or CAASPP) 
• Grades 5 and 8: California Science Test (CAST) 



37 

• Grades 5 and 7: Physical Fitness Test (PFT) 
• All grades: English Language Proficiency Assessments for California (ELPAC; English 

Learners only) 

The Charter School also currently utilizes the iReady Assessments K-8 by Curriculum Associates to 
track student growth during the school year in Reading and Math.  The iReady diagnostic provides 
teachers with a complete picture of student performance relating to their grade level and national norms.  
It enables teachers to evaluate progress using short adaptive assessments and adjust their lesson plan 
accordingly. Using the diagnostic assessment gives teachers a clearer picture of how students are 
progressing so educators can adjust their lessons to help them achieve their goals. 

Faculty review student achievement data on an ongoing basis to drive decision-making and improve the 
educational program. Parents/guardians and students are routinely informed of student progress through 
progress reports, report cards, and regularly scheduled meetings. 

ACTION PLAN TO PROMOTE GROWTH 

Collaboration and communication will serve as the primary framework for fostering ongoing growth 
and improvement at Barona Charter School. Each year, specific achievement goals will be 
established based on statewide and local assessment data. Benchmark goals and assessments will be 
identified to guide teachers in planning and pacing their instruction effectively. Standards-based 
lessons and formative assessments will be developed, providing clear metrics for student progress. 
Results from these formative and benchmark assessments will be reviewed collaboratively by 
teachers and administration, allowing for the collective development of action steps and instructional 
modifications. After these modifications are implemented, the team will continue to monitor student 
achievement and make further refinements as needed to ensure positive outcomes. 

Another critical component to enhance student achievement will be regular progress review and goal-
setting meetings involving students, teachers, and families. Progress based on the Curriculum 
Associates iReady Diagnostic platform will be analyzed three times annually. During these meetings, 
goals for future learning will be identified, and strategies to support achievement of those goals will 
be discussed. It is especially important for students to understand and articulate their own progress, 
recognizing how their activities in school connect to their academic objectives. Over time, students 
will be given increasing responsibility in these meetings, with the ultimate goal of empowering them 
to lead their own conferences, fostering a sense of ownership and accountability in their educational 
journey. 

The staff at Barona Charter School is dedicated to promoting a culture of continuous improvement. 
We believe that effort and perseverance are key factors in achieving success for both students and staff. 
To ensure that this belief is integrated throughout the school’s culture, the staff is committed to 
implementing best practices that support and encourage a focus on effort-based progress. Assessments 
will also be administered twice annually to monitor the extent to which these principles are reflected 
in individual students, classrooms, and amongst staff members, ensuring a cohesive and supportive 
environment where everyone is encouraged to reach their full potential. 



38 

USE AND REPORTING OF DATA 

Near the end each academic year, the Barona Charter School will prepare an annual accountability 
report (“SARC”) for parents, the community, and the District. A copy of the report will be sent to the 
District. This report will contain measures of student academic progress in math and language arts, 
student and staff attendance statistics, results of parent surveys, and budget descriptions. 



39 

V. GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE (D) 

Governing Law: The governance structure of the charter school, including, but not limited to, the 
process to be followed by the charter school to ensure parental involvement. 

-- California Education Code Section 47605(c)(5)(D) 

NON-PROFIT PUBLIC BENEFIT CORPORATION 

The Barona Charter School is a public charter school within the Lakeside Union School District, 
operating under the jurisdiction of the District’s Board of Education. Its operational management shall 
be the responsibility of a non-profit organization which shall operate within the terms and conditions 
specified in this petition. In the event the Board of Education revokes the charter for the Barona Charter 
School, the school will retain the right to petition another school District for approval to act as a charter 
school. 

In accordance with Education Code Section 47604, the Barona Charter School operates as a non-profit 
public benefit corporation and is governed in accordance with its adopted bylaws, applicable California 
Corporations Code sections, and all applicable laws. The Charter school complies with Education Code 
Section 47604(b)(1) and shall not operate as, or be operated by, a for-profit corporation, a for- profit 
educational management organization, or a for-profit charter management organization. 

Pursuant to California Education Code Section 47604(c), the District shall not be liable for the debts 
and obligations of the Charter School, operated by a California non-profit benefit corporation or for 
claims arising from the performance of acts, errors, or omissions by the charter school as long as the 
District has complied with all oversight responsibilities required by law. 

Attached, as Appendix C, please find the Articles of Incorporation and Corporate Bylaws. 

The school will comply with federal, state and local laws that are applicable to independent public 
charter schools; it will retain its own legal counsel when necessary, purchase and maintain general 
liability, automotive liability, errors and omissions, property, workers’ compensation and 
unemployment insurance policies as necessary. The Barona Charter School will be non-sectarian in its 
programs, admissions policies, employment practices, and all other operations, shall not charge tuition, 
and shall not discriminate against any student or staff member on the basis of the characteristics listed 
in Education Code Section 220 (actual or perceived disability, gender, gender identity, gender 
expression, nationality, race or ethnicity, religion, sexual orientation, or any other characteristic that is 
contained in the definition of hate crimes set forth in Section 422.55 of the Penal Code, including 
immigration status, or association with an individual who has any of the aforementioned 
characteristics). 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

As provided in the California Corporations Code, the Barona Charter School will be governed by its 
Charter School Board of Directors, understanding that it has a legal and fiduciary responsibility for the 
wellbeing of the school. As such the charter school will set the terms and working conditions for all 
employees, will do so consistent with state and federal law, and shall be the employer of the Charter 
School employees (as opposed to the Lakeside Union School District) for collective bargaining 
purposes. 



40 

Current Board members are: 

Raymond J. Welch 
Chairman 
A third generation Barona leader, Raymond J. Welch, is currently serving his first term as the Chairman 
of the Barona Charter School and his first term as Chairman of the Barona Tribal Council. Prior to his 
newly elected position, Chairman Welch served as Vice-Chairman for six years. He has called the 
Barona Reservation home his entire life. 
 
Taking a cue from his upbringing and predecessors, Chairman Welch encompasses the same ethical 
and moral responsibility to lead and stand by his Tribe. He believes that with success comes the 
responsibility to speak up for and help his brothers and sisters that are less fortunate. Happily married 
to Sandy Welch for 32 years, they have three children and one granddaughter. When asked what the 
word family means to him, he responded, "everything" – which is no surprise since he is most happy 
when spending time with his family. 
 
Tawnya Phoenix 
Vice Chairperson 
 Vice Chairperson and Barona Tribal Councilwoman Tawnya Phoenix grew up on the Barona 
Reservation in a family that was steadfast in serving the Barona community through service and faith. 
Her late mother, Linda Curo, created the Barona Charter School in 2000. 
 
Councilwoman Phoenix has served as a member of the Board of Directors since 2002, thus highlighting 
her commitment to the Barona community and education. She continues to be a strong proponent of 
the school’s small class model that incorporates Barona culture, history, language and art. 
Councilwoman Phoenix and her husband, Frank, have been married for 32 years. They have three sons, 
and seven grandkids and they all live on the reservation. She delights in their company every day.  
 
Danthia Little Raven Gil 
Board Member 
Haawka, Danthia Little Raven Gil is a married mother of four. Her two youngest attend the Barona 
Charter School. She is a tribal member from Barona and has lived on the reservation her entire life. 
She’s on the enrollment committee and a small business owner. She love her community and is very 
involved. She believes education is the key to success in life. 
 
Darla Boller 
Board Member 
Darla Boller resides on the Barona Reservation with her husband Scott, and their three children. Two 
of their children attend BCS. Her goals are to work toward the students attending BCS to have a safe, 
and rewarding education experience. She believes this can be accomplished by supporting the Principal 
and staff. She also believes parent involvement is crucial. May we as a School Board have a positive 
effect on the students, parents, and community of Barona. 
 
Melanie Villa 
Secretary/Treasurer 
Melanie Villa is a Barona Tribal Member who lives on the reservation with her husband and daughters. 
She is active in her community both on and off the reservation and enjoys gathering with loved ones. 
For the past 12 years she has worked at a local Christian school, 9 of which she served as a 2nd grade 
teacher. Her experience in the classroom and desire to serve her community are the inspiration of her 



41 

joining the Barona Charter School Board of Directors.  With the help of her fellow board members, 
she hopes to continue the great progress that has begun and looks forward to sharing in upholding 
values and tradition.  
 
In accordance with Education 47604(c), the District is entitled to a single representative on the Board. 
The Charter School Board will be responsible for: 

• Adoption of the general policies of the Charter School. 
• Adoption of the school budget and any budget revisions. 
• Oversee the receipt of funds for the operation of the school in accordance with charter school 

laws. 
• Reviewing the school’s personnel policies and receiving from the School Principal/Director, 

reports relative to their implementation, such policies being consistent with any applicable 
laws. 

• Confirming that all other responsibilities provided for in the California Corporations Code, the 
Articles of Incorporation, Bylaws, and Charter necessary to ensure the proper operation of the 
school are being carried out. 

• Reviewing operations reports from the Principal/Director and audit reports. 
• Assisting in the dispute resolution procedure as specified in the Charter. 
• Hire, supervise, discipline and dismiss the Principal/Director of the Charter School. 
• Approve contractual agreements in accordance with the Charter School’s fiscal policies and 

procedures. 
• Contract with an external independent auditor to produce an annual financial audit according 

to generally accepted accounting practices. 
• Establish operational committees as needed. 
• Regularly receive reports regarding progress of both student and staff performance. 
• Involve parents and the community in school related programs. 
• Execute all applicable responsibilities provided for in the California Corporations Code. 
• Strategic Planning. 
• Approve the school calendar and schedule of Board meetings. 
• Approve material revisions to the charter for submission to the District.  
• Approve annual fiscal audit and performance report. 

The Board may initiate and carry on any program or activity or may otherwise act in a manner which 
is not in conflict with or inconsistent with or preempted by any law and which are not in conflict with 
the purposes for which schools are established. 

All Board meetings shall comply with the Brown Act and Education Code section 47604.1. The Charter 
School has adopted a Conflict of Interest Code, which is attached as Appendix D. 

The Board may execute any powers delegated by law to it and shall discharge any duty imposed by 
law upon it and may delegate to an employee of the Charter School any of those duties with the 
exception of budget approval or revision, approval of the fiscal and performance audits, and the 
adoption of Board policies. The Board however, retains ultimate responsibility over the performance 
of those powers or duties so delegated. Such delegation will: 

 Be in writing, 
 Specify the entity designated; 



42 

 Describe in specific terms the authority of the Board of Directors being delegated, any 
conditions on the delegated authority or its exercise and the beginning and ending dates of the 
delegation; and 

 Require an affirmative vote of a majority of Board members. 

The governance of the school will be accountable on several levels: 

• Annual audits and District oversight visits; 
• Independent professional monitors of the curriculum, measurement, and accountability 

practices; 
• Evaluations of teacher performance by the Principal/Director and evaluation of 

Principal/Director performance by the Board of Directors; 
• Evaluations of teacher and administrative staff performance by parents and students; 
• Oversight of school operations by the Charter School Board; and 
• Periodic charter renewal. 

THE PRINCIPAL/DIRECTOR 

The Principal/Director will be the leader of the school. The Principal/Director will ensure that the 
curriculum is implemented in order to maximize student-learning experiences. The Principal/Director 
must report directly to the Charter School Board of Directors, and s/he is responsible for the orderly 
operation of the school and the supervision of all employees in the school. 

The Principal/Director is assigned to perform assigned tasks directed from the Charter School Board 
of Directors and is required to undertake some or all of the tasks detailed below. These tasks may 
include but are not limited to the following: 

• Ensure the charter school enacts its mission 
• Hire, supervise, evaluate, and dismiss teachers and staff 
• Communicate and report to the Charter School Board of Directors 
• Oversee school finances to ensure financial stability 
• Participate in and develop professional development workshops as needed 
• Ensure compliance with all applicable state and federal laws and help secure local grants 
• Communicate with parents, recruit new families and students, and assure families of academic 

growth 
• Take responsible steps to secure full and regular attendance at school of the students enrolled 

in accordance with policies established by the Board of Directors 
• Complete and submit required documents as requested or required by the charter and/or Charter 

School Board of Directors and/or the District 
• Identify the staffing needs of the school and offer staff development as needed 
• Maintain up-to-date financial records 
• Ensure that appropriate evaluation techniques are used for both students and staff 
• Establish and maintain a system to handle organizational tasks such as student records, teacher 

records, teacher credentialing information, contemporaneous attendance logs, purchasing, 
budgets, and timetables 

• Hire qualified substitute teachers as needed 
• Ensure the security of the school building 



43 

• Promote the Charter School in the community and promote positive public relations and 
interact effectively with media 

• Encourage and support teachers in on-going professional development 
• Attend District meetings as requested by the District and stay in direct contact with the District 

regarding changes, progress, etc. 
• Attend meetings with the Chief Financial Officer of the District on fiscal oversight issues once 

monthly or as otherwise agreed upon 
• Provide all necessary financial reports as required for proper ADA reporting 
• Develop the School annual performance report and SARC 
• Present fiscal audit to the Charter School Board of Directors and after review by the Board of 

Directors present audit to the District Board of Education and the County Superintendent of 
Schools, the State Controller and the California Department of Education 

• Manage student discipline, as necessary participate in the suspension and expulsion process 
• Participate in special education meetings as necessary 

The above duties, with the exception of personnel matters, may be delegated or contracted as approved 
by the Board of Directors to a business administrator of the School or other employee, or to a third 
party provider. 

PARENT PARTICIPATION 

Parent and community involvement in the governance of the school is assured by virtue of their 
integrated participation in the Charter School Board, and Parent Teacher Organization. Parents will be 
strongly encouraged to contribute to the Charter School. The Principal/Director shall maintain a 
comprehensive list of volunteer opportunities including but not limited to the following: volunteering 
in the classroom/school (including at-home assistance); tutoring, attending parent-teacher conferences; 
attendance at meetings of the following school bodies: the Charter School Board of Directors (as 
member or observer), or any applicable Parent group functions (e.g., School Site Council or Parent 
Advisory Committee); participation in the planning of, or attendance at, fundraising or Academic/Arts 
Events; or, other activities.  

Parents are provided the opportunity to sign a contract stating they will attend the new parent 
orientation meeting and donate volunteer service hours. A service form is sent home with the school 
newsletter for parents to complete and return. The aim of our suggestion to volunteer is to ensure that 
all families are informed and actively involved in the school and to provide assistance to faculty and 
staff. Parental involvement is encouraged, but parental involvement is is not a requirement for 
acceptance to, or continued enrollment at, the Charter School. No student or parent is panelized for 
failure or inability to comply with our parent participation contract. 

Parents are encouraged to become active in developing their child’s learning plan and the school’s 
curriculum, evaluation process, and other programs. 

With the direction of the Charter School Board, external consultant/s may be employed to assist the 
Board in various areas, including, but not limited to: 

• The development and execution of an operational Business Plan which focuses on student 
achievement; 



44 

• Providing and implementing a Professional Development Plan for staff consistent with the 
overall school mission; 

• Developing a Communications Plan for parent and community involvement in support for 
school programs and change efforts; 

• Measurement of progress towards achieving both student and staff performance; 
• Preparing a human resource model for career and compensation. 
• Curriculum development guidelines, textbook recommendations, student assessment 

guidelines, accreditation planning, special education consultation, handbook development, 
operations consultation on attendance requirements, ADA compliance, legal compliance, 
charter compliance and review, litigation, District communication, budget, and accounting 
model implementation 

 



45 

VI. HUMAN RESOURCES (E) 

QUALIFICATIONS OF SCHOOL EMPLOYEES 

Governing Law: The qualifications to be met by individuals to be employed by the charter school. 

-- California Education Code Section 47605(c)(5)(E) 

ADMINISTRATOR’S QUALIFICATIONS 

The Principal/Director, Lead Teacher/Curriculum Director, and any other administrator at Barona 
Charter School should possess leadership abilities and a comprehensive educational vision that is 
consistent with the school’s mission and educational program. In addition, the Principal/Director 
should possess skills in hiring and supervising excellent teachers, technological and data analysis 
experience, and if possible, business experience. Experience in a school serving high risk populations, 
including children from historically underrepresented backgrounds, is desirable. 

The Principal/Director shall have the following qualifications: 

1. possesses a valid California Administrative Services Credential 
2. understands leadership models and the difference between leading and managing; 
3. understands group dynamics and uses group processes regularly; 
4. understands and is open to the opinions of others; 
5. enjoys challenges and is stimulated by the dynamics of a growing organization; 
6. shows awareness of and knowledge about existing educational models and can articulate their 

philosophy; 
7. is committed to education and can distinguish between long term and short term educational 

goals; 
8. embraces the mission and vision of the charter school and can articulate it; 
9. seeks to create a school that supports the school mission; 
10. can act as a liaison between the charter school and the community at large; 
11. can act as a liaison between the charter school and the Lakeside Union School District; 
12. encourages an active partnership between teachers, children and parents; 
13. is accessible to parents and expresses empathy and support for families; 
14. expresses faith in and respect for children; 
15. has classroom teaching experience and understands the challenges of today’s teachers; 
16. possesses a California Teaching Credential; 
17. articulates an active supervision model which encourages high staff performance and 

accountability; 
18. is aggressive in securing recognition of the needs of the school; 
19. can challenge the ordinary and routine ways of seeking answers and solving problems; 
20. is respectful, thoughtful, decisive, fair and possesses integrity in all his/her dealings with the 

school community; 
21. uses effective conflict resolution skills as needed on a regular bases with children, staff, and 

parents; 
22. empowers staff, children, and parents to grow and learn within the school community and has 

high expectations for such; and 
23. is a collaborative leader who leads collaboratively at every level within the school. 
 



46 

TEACHERS’ QUALIFICATIONS: 

The most important qualifications for our teachers are caring about our students; familiarity with or 
willingness to be trained in the school’s curriculum sequence and learning styles; a demonstrable 
effectiveness in teaching; and a willingness to work hard and to take responsibility and exercise 
leadership for the school as a whole. Specific qualifications include: 

1. Teachers shall hold a Commission on Teacher Credentialing certificate, permit, or other 
document required for the teacher’s certificated assignment in accordance with Education Code 
Section 47605(l)(1). 

2. knowledge of child development; specifically of physical, emotional, and developmental 
patterns; 

3. knowledge of general learning theories and curriculum development; 
4. preference of one to two years of elementary teaching experience; 
5. a team player with experience working in an environment dedicated to a team approach; 
6. professional manner and appearance; 
7. understands children as a focus; 
8. ability to communicate with parents and sees parents as a resource; 
9. possesses conflict resolution skills; 
10. possesses the ability to use a reflective process in his/her professional endeavors; 
11. is patient and caring and possesses a sense of humor; 
12. uses good organizational skills to meet the needs of his/her class; 
13. subscribes to the concept that a successful learning process is a collaborative effort between 

student, teacher, and parent; 
14. is open to input and feedback regarding professional growth and performance; 
15. is open to innovative and creative approaches to meeting educational goals; 
16. supports the value of tolerance and embraces anti-bias education; 
17. promotes and supports multiculturalism and is culturally sensitive; 
18. is sensitive to gender differences and needs; 
19. possesses the ability to work with small and large classroom groups; and 
20. possesses personality traits of adaptability and flexibility. 

 
SUPPORT STAFF QUALIFICATIONS: 

Specific qualifications for our instructional and non-instructional support staff include: 

1. Behavior modification and conflict resolution strategies and techniques.  
2. General concepts of child growth and development and student behavior characteristics.  
3.  Policies, rules and regulations concerning appropriate student behavior.  
4.  Interpersonal skills using tact, patience and courtesy.  
5.  Typical playground games and activities.  
6.  Organizational and school emergency procedures including fire drills, intruder on 

campus and others.  
7.  Basic first aid.  
8. Maintain a positive and safe playground environment.  
9.  Learn procedures, functions and limitations of assigned duties.  
10.  Monitor, observe and report students' behavior according to approved procedures.  
11.  Communicate effectively.  



47 

12.  Work with groups and individuals in basic instruction.  
13.  Understand and work within scope of authority.  
14.  Be sensitive to and understand the diverse academic, socioeconomic, cultural, and ethnic 

backgrounds of district personnel, students, parents and the communities served by the 
district.  

15.  Maintain consistent, punctual and regular attendance.  
16.  Develop and maintain effective interpersonal relations using tact, patience and courtesy  

 
 



48 

VII. RETIREMENT BENEFITS (K) 

Governing Law: The manner by which staff members of the charter schools will be covered by the 
State Teachers’ Retirement System, the Public Employees’ Retirement System, or federal social 
security. 

-- California Education Code Section 47605(c)(5)(K) 

Employees of the Charter School will participate in the State Teachers’ Retirement System (“STRS”), 
the Public Employees’ Retirement System (“PERS”), and/or Social Security, depending upon each 
individual’s eligibility. The Principal/Director or designee is responsible for coordinating participation 
of employees in the appropriate retirement plans and ensuring that appropriate arrangements for 
coverage have been made.  The Barona Charter School shall ask the District to forward any required 
payroll deductions and related data to STRS and/or PERS as required by Education Code Section 
47611.3. The District may charge the Barona Charter School its actual costs for the provision of such 
services. 



49 

VIII. EMPLOYEE RETURN RIGHTS (M) 

Governing Law: The rights of an employee of the school district upon leaving the employment of the 
school district to work in a charter school, and of any rights of return to the school district after 
employment at a charter school. 

-- California Education Code Section 47605(c)(5)(M) 

No public school district employee shall be required to work at the Charter School. All staff at Barona 
Charter School shall be considered the exclusive employees of Barona Charter School and not of the 
District, unless otherwise mutually agreed in writing.  Employment by the Charter School provides no 
rights of employment at any other entity.  Employees of the District who choose to leave the 
employment of the District to work at the Charter School shall have no automatic right to employment 
or reemployment in Lakeside Union School District, unless specifically granted by the District through 
a leave of absence or other agreement.  Charter School employees shall have any rights of return to 
employment in the District, or any other local educational agency, after employment in the Charter 
School that the District or any other local educational agency may specify.  Absent agreement with 
Lakeside Union School District to the contrary, staff of Barona Charter School shall not continue to 
earn service credit (tenure) at Lakeside Union School District while employed by Barona Charter 
School. 



50 

IX. HEALTH AND SAFETY (F) 

Governing Law: The procedures that the charter school will follow to ensure the health and safety of 
pupils and staff. These procedures shall require all of the following: 

i. That each employee of the charter school furnish the charter school with a criminal record 
summary as described in Section 44237. 

ii. For all schools, the development of a school safety plan, which shall include the safety topics 
listed in subparagraphs (A) to (K), inclusive, of paragraph (2) of subdivision (a) of Section 
32282. For schools serving pupils in any of grades 7 to 12, inclusive, the development of a 
school safety plan shall also include the safety topic listed in subparagraph (L) of paragraph 
(2) of subdivision (a) of Section 32282. 

iii. That the school safety plan be reviewed and updated by March 1 of every year by the charter 
school.  

-- California Education Code Section 47605(c)(5)(F) 

The school maintains on file records documenting compliance with fire, health, and structural safety 
requirements. The school additionally maintains a copy of facility inspections that will be available for 
inspection. Appropriate disaster and safety plans have been developed and posted. 

The following is a summary of the health and safety policies and procedures of the School (not intended 
to be a comprehensive list): 

FINGERPRINTING/BACKGROUND CHECK 

The Barona Charter School shall comply with all provisions of Education Code 44237 and 45125.1, 
including the requirement that employees and contractors must submit two sets of fingerprints to the 
California Department of Justice for the purpose of obtaining a criminal record summary. The 
requirements for criminal records review shall meet or exceed District personnel standards. The 
Principal/Director of the school shall monitor compliance with this policy and report to the Charter 
School Board of Directors on a regular basis. The Board President shall monitor the fingerprinting and 
background clearance of the Principal/Director. Volunteers who will work with students outside of the 
direct supervision of a credentialed employee shall be fingerprinted and receive background clearance 
prior to volunteering without the direct supervision of a credentialed employee. 

TUBERCULOSIS TESTING 

Employees and volunteers who have frequent or prolonged contact with students will be assessed and 
examined (if necessary) for tuberculosis prior to commencing employment and working with students, 
and for employees at least once each four years thereafter, as required by Education Code Section 
49406. 

STUDENT IMMUNIZATIONS 

Barona Charter School will require all enrolling students to provide documentation of immunizations 
in accordance with requirements of the Health and Safety Code Sections 120325 et seq. and Title 17 



51 

California Code of Regulations Sections 6000-6075. Records of student immunizations shall be 
maintained. 

ROLE OF STAFF AS MANDATED CHILD ABUSE REPORTERS 

All Charter School staff will be mandated child abuse reporters and will follow all applicable reporting 
laws.  The Charter School shall provide mandated reporter training to all employees annually in 
accordance with Education Code Section 44691. 

MEDICATION IN SCHOOL 

The Barona Charter School will adhere to Education Code Section 49423 regarding administration of 
medication in school. 

VISION, HEARING, SCOLIOSIS 

Students will be screened for vision, hearing and scoliosis. The Barona Charter School will adhere to 
Education Code Section 49450 et seq., as applicable to the grade levels served by the school. 
DIABETES 

The Charter School shall provide legally required notice to students regarding Type 1 diabetes.  

BLOOD BORNE PATHOGENS 

The Barona Charter School shall meet state and federal standards for dealing with blood borne 
pathogens and other potentially infectious materials in the work place. The Board shall establish a 
written infectious control plan designed to protect employees and students from possible infection due 
to contact with blood borne viruses, including human immunodeficiency virus (“HIV”) and hepatitis 
B virus (“HBV”). 

Whenever exposed to blood or other bodily fluids through injury or accident, staff and students shall 
follow the latest medical protocol for disinfecting procedures. 

DRUG FREE/ALCOHOL FREE/SMOKE FREE ENVIRONMENT 

The Barona Charter School shall maintain a drug, alcohol and tobacco free environment. 

SCHOOL SAFETY PLAN 

The Charter School has adopted a comprehensive school safety plan, which is reviewed and updated 
by March 1 of every year, and will include all the required topics pursuant to Education Code Section 
47605(c)(5)(F)(ii).  A copy of the plan is available to the District at any time upon request.  

FACILITY SAFETY 

The Charter School shall comply with Education Code 47610 by utilizing facilities that are either 
compliant with the Field Act or facilities that are compliant with the California Building Standards 



52 

Code.  The Charter School agrees to test sprinkler systems, fire extinguishers, and fire alarms annually 
at its facilities to ensure that they are maintained in an operable condition at all times. The Charter 
School shall conduct fire drills as required under Education Code Section 32001. 

COMPREHENSIVE ANTI-DISCRIMINATION AND HARASSMENT POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 

The Barona Charter School is committed to providing a school that is free from discrimination and 
harassment, including any harassment based upon the actual or perceived characteristics of race, 
religion, creed, color, national origin, ancestry, age, medical condition, marital status, sexual 
orientation, disability, or on the basis of a person’s association with a person or group with one or more 
of these actual or perceived characteristics, or any other basis protected by applicable law. The Barona 
Charter School has developed policies to prevent and immediately remediate any concerns about 
discrimination or harassment at the Barona Charter School (including employee to employee, 
employee to student, and student to employee misconduct). Misconduct of this nature is very serious 
and will be addressed in accordance with the Barona Charter School policies. 

The Barona Charter School will develop further health, safety, and risk management guidelines as 
appropriate in consultation with District insurance carriers and risk management experts. 

 



53 

X. DISPUTE RESOLUTION PROCESS (N) 

Governing Law: The procedures to be followed by the charter school and the chartering authority to 
resolve disputes relating to provisions of the charter. 

-- California Education Code Section 47605(c)(5)(N) 

In the event that the Barona Charter School or Lakeside Union School District have disputes regarding 
the terms of this charter or any other issue regarding the Charter School and District’s relationship, 
both parties agree to the following process. 

First, both parties agree to apprise the other in writing of the specific disputed issue(s). In the event the 
District believes the dispute relates to an issue that could lead to revocation of the charter, this shall be 
specifically noted in the written dispute statement the District provides the Charter School. Within 30 
days of sending written correspondence, or longer if both parties agree, a Charter School representative 
and a District representative, or their respective designees, shall meet and confer in an attempt to 
resolve the dispute. If this joint meeting fails to resolve the dispute, the Charter School representative 
and the District representative or designee(s) shall meet again within 15 days, or longer if both parties 
agree, to identify a neutral, third party mediator to assist in dispute resolution. The cost of the mediator 
shall be split equally between the District and the Charter School. The format of the third-party 
mediation process shall be developed jointly by the representatives unless jointly agreed, the process 
involving the assistance of a third-party mediator shall conclude within 45 days. 

In the event the third-party mediation process does not result in resolution of the dispute, both parties 
agree to continue good faith negotiations. If the matter cannot be mutually resolved, and the matter 
involves an issue for which the District could proceed to revocation pursuant to Education Code 
Section 47607, the Charter School shall be given a reasonable period of time to correct the violation, 
unless the District Board of Directors makes written findings that the violation constitutes a severe and 
imminent threat to the health and safety of the school’s pupils. Lakeside Union School District shall 
reserve the right to take any action it deems appropriate and the Charter School reserves the right to 
seek legal redress for any such actions under the law. In addition, the dispute is not required to be 
referred to mediation in those cases where the District Board of Directors determines and notifies the 
Charter School in writing that the violation constitutes a severe and imminent threat to the health and 
safety of the school’s pupils. 



54 

XI. STUDENT ADMISSIONS POLICIES AND PROCEDURES (H) 

Governing Law: Admission policies and procedures, consistent with [Education Code Section 47605] 
subdivision (e). 

-- California Education Code Section 47605(c)(5)(H) 

Charter schools are schools of choice. All students in the Lakeside Union School District and all other 
districts in CA are eligible to attend the Barona Charter School and will be considered for admission 
without regard to any of the characteristics listed in Education Code Section 220. Proof of meeting 
minimum age requirements for admission and immunizations is required prior to admission. 

The Barona Charter School will be open to all students who wish to attend up to the Charter School’s 
capacity. The School shall hold at least one open application period where it collects applications from 
prospective students. At the close of the application period(s), should the Barona Charter School 
receive applications from students exceeding the number of spaces available within the school, the 
school will conduct a random public drawing. Preference in the public random drawing, except for 
existing pupils of the Charter School,2 shall be given in the following order: 

1) Siblings of existing pupils. 
2) Children of Employees. 
3) District residents. 
4) All others. 

 
The public random drawing shall be conducted using the following rules and procedures, which will 
be communicated to all interested parties prior to holding the random public drawing: 

1. The school may enlist the services of an outside agency or auditor (preferably the 
District or an entity recommended by the District) to monitor and verify the fair 
execution of all activities related to holding the public random drawing. 

2. The lottery will take place within 30 days of closing the open application period, which 
will be at least 30 days long. 

3. The lottery will take place on the school’s campus in a facility large enough to allow 
all interested parties to observe the drawing, or at another public venue near the school 
large enough to accommodate all interested parties. 

4. The lottery will take place on a weekday evening or other time when most interested 
parties who wish to attend may do so. 

5. All interested parties will know, prior to the holding of the lottery, how many openings 
are available in the school and in the different grades served by the school. 

6. The ballots shall be drawn by a representative of the outside agency or organization 
confirming the results of the lottery, if one is used. 

7. The drawing shall continue until all names are drawn. Those individuals whose names 
are drawn after all spaces have been filled will be placed on the waiting list in the order 
drawn, except if the preferences described above require otherwise. 

8. Potential students on the waiting list shall provide contact information to be used in the 
event space becomes available. Families promoted off of the waiting list shall be 

                                                 
2 Existing pupils of the School are guaranteed enrollment in the following school year, subject to the suspension and 
expulsion and involuntary disenrollment provisions provided herein. 



55 

informed in writing and shall have 10 business days from the date of postage to 
respond. In addition, the school shall attempt on at least two separate occasions to 
contact the parents/guardians of promoted students by telephone. Those families not 
responding within the 10-day period will forfeit their right to enroll their student in the 
school for that school year. 

9. The outside organization or agency verifying the fair execution of the lottery, if one is 
used, shall confirm in writing the lottery was conducted fairly, and the school shall 
keep on record copies of that confirmation. 

 
The Charter School reserves the right to amend its admissions policies and procedures from time to 
time without the need to amend the charter so long as the amendments comply with legal 
requirements.  

   



56 

XII. RECRUITMENT AND DEMOGRAPHIC BALANCE OF PUPILS (G) 

Governing Law:  The means by which the charter school will achieve a balance of racial and ethnic 
pupils, special education pupils, and English learner pupils, including redesignated fluent English 
proficient pupils, as defined by the evaluation rubrics in Section 52064.5, that is reflective of the 
general population residing within the territorial jurisdiction of the school district to which the charter 
petition is submitted.  

-- California Education Code Section 47605(c)(5)(G) 

To create a school community that reflects the diversity of the Lakeside Union School District, the 
Barona Charter School recruits students from a range of ethnic, linguistic and racial populations. 
Recruitment strategies include: 

• The design and distribution of outreach and informational materials to appeal to the various 
communities within the District; 

• The development of outreach materials in other languages to reach parents who are not English 
speakers; 

• Outreach to community groups, agencies and other organizations that have direct contact with 
diverse communities in the District; 

• Outreach meetings to reach prospective students and parents, with school staff members 
present who are knowledgeable about the various aspects of our educational programs and 
activities, including our English learner and special education programs; 

• Establishment of internal and external feedback processes to ensure maximum impact and 
accessibility of the school’s commitment to diversity; 

• An enrollment timeline that allows for a broad-based recruiting and application process, and 
that is aligned with the diverse needs and composition of the prospective population; 

• A public website with lots of information about our school’s policies, curriculum and 
instruction, special education program, student services, universal meals, school supplies, 
enrollment process, and more. 

 
To improve enrollment at Barona Charter School for all students, including SPED (Special Education) 
and EL (English Learners), the school will create inclusive programs that cater to diverse needs and 
clearly communicate their benefits. For SPED students, Barona Charter School can highlight its strong 
special education services, individualized learning plans, and accessible facilities tailored to support 
student success. For EL students, the school can emphasize bilingual programs, language support 
services, and culturally relevant teaching practices. Hosting workshops or parent information nights in 
multiple languages will help engage non-English-speaking families and build trust within the 
community. Promoting equity through initiatives that celebrate diversity, such as cultural events and 
student success stories, will enhance the school’s appeal. Collaborating with local organizations, 
including our Native American community, to reach underrepresented families and provide support 
with enrollment paperwork can further strengthen outreach. Utilizing social media platforms and 
creating engaging videos to highlight school events, showcase student achievements, and provide a 
glimpse into the school’s dynamic learning environment will significantly expand the school’s reach 
and connect with prospective families. Additionally, offering clear information about wraparound 
services such as after-school programs, counseling, and transportation ensures accessibility and 
inclusivity for all students. Partnering with local preschools and special education centers can facilitate 
a seamless transition for incoming students and boost overall enrollment. 



57 

XIII. PUBLIC SCHOOL ATTENDANCE ALTERNATIVES (L) 

Governing Law: The public school attendance alternatives for pupils residing within the school district 
who choose not to attend charter schools. 

-- California Education Code Section 47605(c)(5)(L) 

No student shall be required to attend the Barona Charter School. Provided they live within the 
boundaries of Lakeside Union School District, students who opt to leave the Barona Charter School or 
not attend the Barona Charter School may attend other District schools or pursue an inter-district 
transfer in accordance with existing enrollment and transfer policies. Students who reside outside the 
boundaries of Lakeside Union School District must pursue enrollment in their district or county of 
residence or apply for an inter-district transfer in accordance with the applicable enrollment policies 
of the district or county of residence. Parents and guardians of each student enrolled in the Charter 
School will be informed on enrollment forms that the students have no right to admission in a particular 
school or program of any local education agency as a consequence of enrollment in the Charter School, 
except to the extent that such a right is extended by the local education agency. 



58 

XIV. SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION PROCEDURES (J) 

Governing Law: The procedures by which pupils can be suspended or expelled from the charter school 
for disciplinary reasons or otherwise involuntarily removed from the charter school for any reason. 
These procedures, at a minimum, shall include an explanation of how the charter school will comply 
with federal and state constitutional procedural and substantive due process requirements that are 
consistent with all of the following: 

i. For suspensions of fewer than 10 days, provide oral or written notice of the charges against 
the pupil and, if the pupil denies the charges, an explanation of the evidence that supports the 
charges and an opportunity for the pupil to present the pupil’s side of the story. 

ii. For suspensions of 10 days or more and all other expulsions for disciplinary reasons, both of 
the following: 

I. Provide timely, written notice of the charges against the pupil and an explanation of 
the pupil’s basic rights. 

II. Provide a hearing adjudicated by a neutral officer within a reasonable number of days 
at which the pupil has a fair opportunity to present testimony, evidence, and witnesses 
and confront and cross-examine adverse witnesses, and at which the pupil has the right 
to bring legal counsel or an advocate. 

iii. Contain a clear statement that no pupil shall be involuntarily removed by the charter school 
for any reason unless the parent or guardian of the pupil has been provided written notice of 
intent to remove the pupil no less than five schooldays before the effective date of the action. 
The written notice shall be in the native language of the pupil or the pupil’s parent or guardian, 
or, if the pupil is a homeless child or youth, or a foster child or youth, in the native language 
of the homeless or foster child’s educational rights holder. In the case of a foster child or youth, 
the written notice shall also be provided to the foster child’s attorney and county social worker. 
If the pupil is an Indian child, as defined in Section 224.1 of the Welfare and Institutions Code, 
the written notice shall also be provided to the Indian child’s tribal social worker and, if 
applicable, county social worker. The written notice shall inform the pupil, the pupil’s parent 
or guardian, the homeless child’s educational rights holder, the foster child’s educational 
rights holder, attorney, and county social worker, or the Indian child’s tribal social worker 
and, if applicable, county social worker of the right to initiate the procedures specified in 
clause (ii) before the effective date of the action. If the pupil’s parent or guardian, the homeless 
child’s educational rights holder, the foster child’s educational rights holder, attorney, or 
county social worker, or the Indian child’s tribal social worker or, if applicable, county social 
worker initiates the procedures specified in clause (ii), the pupil shall remain enrolled and 
shall not be removed until the charter school issues a final decision. For purposes of this 
clause, “involuntarily removed” includes disenrolled, dismissed, transferred, or terminated, 
but does not include suspensions specified in clauses (i) and (ii) 

iv. A foster child’s educational rights holder, attorney, and county social worker and an Indian 
child’s tribal social worker and, if applicable, county social worker shall have the same rights 
a parent or guardian of a child has to receive a suspension notice, expulsion notice, 
manifestation determination notice, involuntary transfer notice, and other documents and 
related information. 



59 

--  California Education Code Section 47605(c)(5)(J) 

The attached pupil suspension and expulsion policy (attached as Appendix E to this charter) has been 
established in order to promote learning and protect the safety and well-being of all students. The 
policy may be amended from time to time without the need to amend the charter so long as the 
amendments comply with legal requirements.  

The suspension and expulsion process will provide parents and students with an opportunity to exercise 
such leadership skills as problem solving, negotiation, shared decision making, and conflict resolution, 
as well as fostering a sense of personal and community responsibility. The School utilizes a progressive 
model for positive discipline will be instituted based on the guidelines set down by Ryan (2000). This 
five-step program includes: 

• Isolate (meet one-on-one with the student), 
• Ask and Listen (listen to the child’s side of the story), 
• Speak and Specify (a strong, calm, well-reasoned, focused message), 
• Offer (offer positive reinforcement), 
• Decide and Act (support the child in a responsible plan that is mutually agreeable). The 

understood purpose of the suspension and expulsion procedures will be to ensure a safe and 
effective learning environment. Successful procedures will provide for due process, be specific 
and concrete, and be supported by the school community. 

 
INVOLUNTARY REMOVAL 
 
No pupil shall be involuntarily removed by the Charter School for any reason unless the parent or 
guardian of the pupil has been provided written notice of intent to remove the pupil no less than five 
schooldays before the effective date of the action.  The written notice shall be in the native language 
of the pupil or the pupil’s parent or guardian, or, if the pupil is a homeless child or youth, or a foster 
child or youth, in the native language of the homeless or foster child’s educational rights holder. In the 
case of a foster child or youth, the written notice shall also be provided to the foster child’s attorney 
and county social worker.  If the pupil is an Indian child, as defined in Section 224.1 of the Welfare 
and Institutions Code, the written notice shall also be provided to the Indian child’s tribal social worker 
and, if applicable, county social worker.  The written notice shall inform the pupil, the pupil’s parent 
or guardian, the homeless child’s educational rights holder, the foster child’s educational rights holder, 
attorney, and county social worker, or the Indian child’s tribal social worker and, if applicable, county 
social worker of the right to request a hearing adjudicated by a neutral officer before the effective date 
of the action.  If a hearing is requested, the pupil shall remain enrolled and shall not be removed until 
the charter school issues a final decision.  For purposes of this clause, “involuntarily removed” includes 
disenrolled, dismissed, transferred, or terminated, but does not include suspensions for disciplinary 
reasons. 



60 

XV. FINANCIAL PLANNING, REPORTING, AND ACCOUNTABILITY  

FISCAL PLAN 

Governing Law: The petitioner or petitioners shall also be required to provide financial statements 
that include a proposed first year operational budget, including startup costs, and cash flow and 
financial projections for the first three years of operation. 

-- Education Code Section 47605(h) 

As part of the MOU between the District and the Charter School, the District currently provides fiscal 
planning and accounting services to the Charter School which include budget development and cash 
flow management. The Charter School may contract with other entities to provide various services as 
necessary. 

Attached, as Appendix F, please find the operational budget, cashflow, and financial projections.   

FINANCIAL REPORTING 

The Barona Charter School shall comply with Education Code Section 47604.33 as described below 
and shall provide additional fiscal reports as requested by the District Superintendent: 

1. By July 1, a preliminary budget for the current fiscal year. 
2. By July 1, a local control and accountability plan (LCAP) and an annual update to the 

LCAP required pursuant to Education Code Section 47606.5. 
2. By December 15, an interim financial report for the current fiscal year reflecting 

changes through October 31. Additionally, a copy of the Charter School’s annual, 
independent financial audit report for the preceding fiscal year shall be delivered to the 
District, State Controller, State Department of Education and County Superintendent 
of Schools. 

3. By March 15, a second interim financial report for the current fiscal year reflecting 
changes through January 31. 

4. By September 15, a final non-audited report from the full prior year. The report 
submitted to the District shall include an annual statement of all the Charter School’s 
receipts and expenditures for the preceding fiscal year. 

 
INSURANCE 

The Barona Charter School will purchase and maintain as necessary general liability, automotive 
liability, errors and omissions, property, workers’ compensation, and unemployment insurance 
policies, either as part of the Lakeside Union School District’s insurance program or its own insurance 
program. The Lakeside Union School District Board of Trustees shall be named as an additional 
insured on all policies of the Barona Charter School. The Barona Charter School will provide evidence 
of the above insurance coverage to the District upon request. 

 

 



61 

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 

Governing Law: The manner in which administrative services of the charter school are to be provided.  

(Education Code Section 47605(h)). 

Where possible, and at a mutually agreed upon competitive cost, the school may purchase services 
from the District. Such services may include personnel review for credential and criminal clearance 
purposes, payroll, special education, and employee benefit programs including STRS and PERS. The 
Chater School may also purchase IEP-mandated services from the District where possible. The specific 
terms and costs for these services, and any others that the District may wish to offer, shall be the subject 
of a separately negotiated Memorandum of Understanding. 

All goods and materials donated to Barona Charter School for use at the school, or provided by Barona 
Charter School for use at the school shall remain the property of Barona Charter School. Lakeside 
Union School District property and materials, and property donated to the school, will be inventoried 
and returned to the District upon termination of the operation of the school as a charter school within 
the District. 

FACILITIES 

Governing Law: The facilities to be utilized by the school. The description of facilities to be used by 
the charter school shall specify where the charter school intends to locate.  

(Education Code Section 47605(h)) 

The Barona Charter School utilizes the facilities furnished by the Barona Tribal Council located at the 
Barona Community Center, 1095 Barona Rd., Lakeside, CA. This facility includes seven classrooms, 
a cafeteria, a library, and office space for the Principal/Director and Office Manager. The school is 
entirely fenced, and the entire facility, including restrooms, is ADA compliant. There are also existing 
sprinkler and fire alarm systems in each room. Adjoining the school, and available to the students of 
the school, are the gymnasium, exercise room, recreation room, swimming pool, play yard, ball field, 
and golf course. All charter school facilities will comply with applicable law. 

TRANSPORTATION 

No transportation to and from school will be provided for students by the Barona Charter School except 
as required by law, such as for students with disabilities, or as otherwise agreed upon by the District 
and the Barona Charter School. 



62 

XVI. AUDITS (I) 

Fiscal 

Governing Law: The manner in which annual, independent financial audits shall be conducted, which 
shall employ generally accepted accounting principles, and the manner in which audit exceptions and 
deficiencies shall be resolved to the satisfaction of the chartering authority. 

-- California Education Code Section 47605(c)(5)(I) 

An annual independent fiscal audit of the books and records of the Barona Charter School will be 
conducted as required under Education Code Sections 47605(c)(5)(I) and 47605(m). The Charter 
School’s Board shall select an independent auditor, who will have experience in education finance and 
be on the list of approved auditors for educational audits compiled and maintained by the State 
Controller’s Office. The independent fiscal audit will verify the accuracy of the Charter School’s 
financial statements, attendance and enrollment accounting practices and review the School’s internal 
controls. The audit will employ generally accepted accounting principles. The audit shall be conducted 
in accordance with applicable provisions within the California Code of Regulations governing audits 
of charter schools as published in the State Controller’s K-12 Audit Guide. To the extent required under 
applicable law, the audit scope will be expanded to include items and processes specified in any 
applicable Office of Management and Budget Circulars. 

The annual audit will be forwarded to the District, the County Superintendent of Schools, the State 
Controller, and to the CDE by the 15th of December of each year. The Principal/Director, along with 
the audit committee if one is formed, will review any audit exceptions or deficiencies, meet with the 
District to determine how to resolve the exceptions or deficiencies to the satisfaction of the District, 
and report to the Board of Directors with recommendations. The Board of Directors will submit a 
report to the District describing how the exceptions and deficiencies have been or will be resolved to 
the satisfaction of the District along with an anticipated timeline for the same. Any disputes regarding 
the resolution of audit exceptions and deficiencies will be referred to the dispute resolution process 
referenced herein, with the caveat that the petitioners recognize that the legal requirement is to resolve 
audit exceptions or deficiencies to the satisfaction of the District. 

The independent fiscal audit of the Charter School is public record to be provided to the public upon 
request. 

Oversight Visits 

The Charter School and the District will jointly develop a visitation process to enable the District to 
gather information needed to validate the school’s performance and compliance with the terms of this 
charter. However, the Charter School agrees to and submits to the right of the District to make random 
and periodic visits and inspections in order to carry out its statutorily required oversight. 

Pursuant to Education Code Section 47604.3 the Charter School shall promptly respond to all 
reasonable inquiries including, but not limited to inquiries regarding its financial records from the 
District, the County Office of Education, and the State Superintendent of Public Instruction. 



63 

XVII. CLOSURE PROTOCOL (O) 

Governing Law: The procedures to be used if the charter school closes. The procedures shall ensure 
a final audit of the charter school to determine the disposition of all assets and liabilities of the charter 
school, including plans for disposing of any net assets and for the maintenance and transfer of pupil 
records. 

-- California Education Code Section 47605(c)(5)(O) 

Closure of the School will be documented by official action of the Barona Charter School Board of 
Directors. The action will identify the reason for closure. The official action will also identify an entity 
and person or persons responsible for closure-related activities. 

The Barona Charter School Board of Directors will promptly notify parents/guardians and students of 
the Charter School, the District, the San Diego County Office of Education, the School’s SELPA, the 
retirement systems in which the School’s employees participate (e.g., Public Employees’ Retirement 
System, the State Teachers’ Retirement System, and federal social security), and the California 
Department of Education of the closure as well as the effective date of the closure. This notice will 
also include the name(s) of and contact information for the person(s) to whom reasonable inquiries 
may be made regarding the closure; the pupils’ school districts of residence; and the manner in which 
parents/guardians may obtain copies of pupil records, including specific information on completed 
courses and credits that meet graduation requirements. 

The Board will ensure that the notification to the parents/guardians and students of Barona Charter 
School of the closure provides information to assist parents/guardians and students in locating suitable 
alternative programs. This notice will be provided promptly following the Board’s decision to close 
the School. 

The Board will also develop a list of pupils in each grade level and the classes they have completed, 
together with information on the pupils’ districts of residence, which they will provide to the entity 
and person or persons responsible for closure-related activities. 

As applicable, the Charter School will provide parents, students and the District with copies of all 
appropriate student records and will otherwise assist students in transferring to their next school. All 
transfers of student records will be made in compliance with the Family Educational Rights and Privacy 
Act (“FERPA”), 20 U.S.C. § 1232g. The School will ask the District to store original records of Charter 
School students. All records of the Charter School shall be transferred to the District upon closure. If 
the District will not or cannot store the records, the Charter School shall work with the County Office 
of Education to determine a suitable alternative location for storage. 

All state assessment results, special education records, and personnel records will be transferred to and 
maintained by the entity or person(s) responsible for closure-related activities in accordance with 
applicable law. 

As soon as reasonably practical, the Charter School will prepare final financial records. The Charter 
School will also have an independent audit completed within six months after closure. The Charter 
School will pay for the final audit. 



64 

The audit will be prepared by a qualified Certified Public Accountant selected by the Charter School 
and will be provided to the District promptly upon its completion. The final audit will include an 
accounting of all financial assets, including cash and accounts receivable and an inventory of property, 
equipment, and other items of material value, an accounting of the liabilities, including accounts 
payable and any reduction in apportionments as a result of audit findings or other investigations, loans, 
and unpaid staff compensation, and an assessment of the disposition of any restricted funds received 
by or due to the charter school. 

The Charter School will complete and file any annual reports required pursuant to Education Code 
Section 47604.33. 

On closure of the Charter School, all assets of the Charter School, including but not limited to all 
leasehold, personal property, intellectual property and all ADA apportionments and other revenues 
generated by students attending the School, remain the sole property of the non-profit public benefit 
corporation. Any assets acquired from the District or District property will be promptly returned upon 
School Closure to the District. Any grant funds and restricted categorical funds will be returned to their 
source in accordance with the terms of the grant or state and federal law, as appropriate, which may 
include submission of final expenditure reports for entitlement grants and the filing of any required 
Final Expenditure Reports and Final Performance Reports.  Any donated materials and property will 
be returned in accordance with any conditions established when the donation of such materials or 
property was accepted. 

On closure, the Barona Charter School shall remain solely responsible for all liabilities arising from 
the operation of the School. 

As the Barona Charter School is operated as a non-profit public benefit corporation, should the 
corporation dissolve with the closure of the Charter School, the Board will follow the procedures set 
forth in the California Corporations Code for the dissolution of a non-profit public benefit corporation 
and file all necessary filings with the appropriate state and federal agencies. 

The reserve fund and any remaining assets after liabilities were paid will be used to undertake the 
closure procedures identified above. 



65 

XVIII. IMPACT ON THE CHARTER AUTHORIZER 

Governing Law: Potential civil liability effects, if any, upon the charter school and upon the school 
district.  

(Education Code Section 47605(h)) 

CIVIL LIABILITY  

The Charter School shall be operated as a California non-profit public benefit corporation. This 
corporation is organized and operated exclusively for charitable purposes within the meaning of 
Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and California Revenue and Taxation Code Section 
23701d. 

Pursuant to Education Code Section 47604(d), an entity that grants a charter to a charter school 
operated by or as a non-profit public benefit corporation shall not be liable for the debts or obligations 
of the charter school or for claims arising from the performance of acts, errors or omissions by the 
Charter School if the authority has complied with all oversight responsibilities required by law. The 
Charter School shall work diligently to assist the District in meeting any and all oversight obligations 
under the law, including meetings, reporting, or other District-requested protocol to ensure the District 
shall not be liable for the operation of the Charter School. 

Further, the Charter School and District shall enter into a memorandum of understanding, wherein the 
Charter School shall indemnify District for the actions of the Charter School under this charter. As 
stated above, the District shall be named an additional insured under the Charter School’s insurance 
policies. 

CONCLUSION 

We look forward to continuing appropriate Memoranda of Understanding with the District subsequent 
to charter renewal to legally establish the specifics of our mutual relationship. 

The term of this charter shall begin on July 1, 2025 and end on June 30, 2030.  

 



© Curriculum Associates, LLC, All Rights Reserved.  |  i-Ready.com 06/24/24  |  Page: 1/2

Diagnostic Growth

School Barona Indian Charter School
Subject Math
Academic Year 2023 - 2024
Comparison Diagnostic Spring (March 2 - End of Year)

Students Assessed/Total: 73/81

Progress to Annual Typical Growth (Median)

100%

The median percent progress towards Typical Growth for this school is 100%.
Typical Growth is the average annual growth for a student at their grade and
baseline placement level.

Current Placement Distribution

Mid or Above
Grade Level

(From 1%)

Early On
Grade Level

(From 4%)

One Grade
Level Below

(From 49%)

Two Grade
Levels Below

(From 22%)

Three or More
Grade Levels
Below

(From 23%)

Distribution of Progress to Annual

Typical Growth

8% 5% 7% 11% 14%

55%

% Progress

<=19 20-39 40-59 60-79 80-99 100+
Met

%
 S

tu
de

nt
s

Distribution of Progress to Annual

Stretch Growth®

10%

16% 18%
21%

5%

30%

% Progress

<=19 20-39 40-59 60-79 80-99 100+
Met

%
 S

tu
de

nt
s

Choose to Show Results By

|
50%

|
100%

Grade
Showing 9 of 9

Grade
% Students with
Improved Placement

Students
Assessed/Total

Progress (Median) % Met Progress (Median) % Met

Grade K 69% 27% 56% 27% 55% 11/13

Grade 1 138% 83% 105% 67% 100% 6/8

Grade 2 103% 56% 67% 33% 78% 9/9

Grade 3 100% 55% 74% 27% 82% 11/11

Grade 4 92% 50% 49% 8% 58% 12/13

Annual Typical Growth Annual Stretch Growth®

11%10%36%16%27%



© Curriculum Associates, LLC, All Rights Reserved.  |  i-Ready.com 06/24/24  |  Page: 2/2

Diagnostic Growth

School Barona Indian Charter School
Subject Math
Academic Year 2023 - 2024
Comparison Diagnostic Spring (March 2 - End of Year)

Grade
% Students with
Improved Placement

Students
Assessed/Total

Progress (Median) % Met Progress (Median) % Met

Grade 5 0% 20% 0% 0% 40% 5/5

Grade 6 183% 90% 91% 50% 100% 10/10

Grade 7 154% 60% 61% 40% 80% 5/8

Grade 8 111% 50% 45% 25% 75% 4/4

Annual Typical Growth Annual Stretch Growth®



© Curriculum Associates, LLC, All Rights Reserved.  |  i-Ready.com 06/24/24  |  Page: 1/2

Diagnostic Growth

School Barona Indian Charter School
Subject Reading
Academic Year 2023 - 2024
Comparison Diagnostic Spring (March 2 - End of Year)

Students Assessed/Total: 73/77

Progress to Annual Typical Growth (Median)

126%

The median percent progress towards Typical Growth for this school is 126%.
Typical Growth is the average annual growth for a student at their grade and
baseline placement level.

Current Placement Distribution

Mid or Above
Grade Level

(From 8%)

Early On
Grade Level

(From 12%)

One Grade
Level Below

(From 45%)

Two Grade
Levels Below

(From 16%)

Three or More
Grade Levels
Below

(From 18%)

Distribution of Progress to Annual

Typical Growth

16%

4% 5% 8% 7%

59%

% Progress

<=19 20-39 40-59 60-79 80-99 100+
Met

%
 S

tu
de

nt
s

Distribution of Progress to Annual

Stretch Growth®

21%

7%
12%

16%
10%

34%

% Progress

<=19 20-39 40-59 60-79 80-99 100+
Met

%
 S

tu
de

nt
s

Choose to Show Results By

|
50%

|
100%

Grade
Showing 9 of 9

Grade
% Students with
Improved Placement

Students
Assessed/Total

Progress (Median) % Met Progress (Median) % Met

Grade K 62% 25% 46% 25% 75% 12/13

Grade 1 96% 50% 72% 17% 100% 6/7

Grade 2 117% 67% 79% 11% 56% 9/9

Grade 3 188% 73% 111% 64% 73% 11/11

Grade 4 200% 85% 111% 54% 77% 13/13

Annual Typical Growth Annual Stretch Growth®

8%12%21%25%34%



© Curriculum Associates, LLC, All Rights Reserved.  |  i-Ready.com 06/24/24  |  Page: 2/2

Diagnostic Growth

School Barona Indian Charter School
Subject Reading
Academic Year 2023 - 2024
Comparison Diagnostic Spring (March 2 - End of Year)

Grade
% Students with
Improved Placement

Students
Assessed/Total

Progress (Median) % Met Progress (Median) % Met

Grade 5 112% 60% 48% 0% 20% 5/5

Grade 6 96% 50% 30% 30% 40% 10/10

Grade 7 388% 80% 132% 60% 80% 5/5

Grade 8 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 2/4

Annual Typical Growth Annual Stretch Growth®



 
 

Barona Charter School 

SPECIAL EDUCATION 
PROCEDURAL HANDBOOK 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Board Approved – November 7, 2022 

Amended – December 11, 2024 



2  

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
SECTION 1: OVERVIEW 

 
SECTION 2: IDENTIFICATION AND REFERRAL 

Referral Process 
Child Find Procedures 
Student Study Team (SST) 
Interim Placements 
Section 504 

SECTION 3: ASSESSMENT 

Assessment Plans 
Role of the Assessment Team 
Reasons for Assessment 
Considerations for Assessment 

English Language Learners 
Reporting Assessment Results 
Independent Educational Evaluations (IEE) 

 
SECTION 4: ELIGIBILITY 

General Eligibility Criteria 
Overview of California Disability Categories 

 
SECTION 5: INDIVIDUALIZED EDUCATION PLANS 

Role of the IEP Team 
Notice of Meeting 
Types of IEP Meetings 
Team Member Excusals 
IEP Facilitation 
Components of the IEP-Page by Page Overview 
Tips for Best Practice 

 
SECTION 6: SPECIAL EDUCATION PROGRAMS AND SERVICES 

Continuum of Placement/Service Options 
Least Restrictive Environment 
Related Services 



3  

SECTION 7: ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF TEAM MEMBERS 
Team Member Roles and Responsibilities 
Surrogate Parents 

 
SECTION 8: PROCEDURAL SAFEGUARDS, PRIOR WRITTEN NOTICE, AND PROGRESS REPORTING 

Parent Notice of Procedural Safeguards 
Prior Written Notice 
Parental Consent 
Progress Reporting 

SECTION 9: STUDENT ADMISSIONS AND TRANSFERS 

Student Transfers 
30- Day Interim Placements 
Articulation to GUHSD 
Parent Request for Records 

SECTION 10: STUDENT DISCIPLINE AND SUSPENSION-EXPULSION 

Addressing Student Behavioral Needs 
Manifestation Determination 
Suspension 
Emergency Interventions 
Behavioral Emergency Reports 

 
SECTION 11: IMPORTANT LEGAL TIMELINES AND GLOSSARY OF TERMS 

Legal Timelines 
Glossary of Terms and Abbreviations 

 
SECTION 12: FORMS/ CHECKLISTS: 

 
Cumulative Records Checklist 
Intake Questionnaire after request for Special Education Evaluation 
Release of Information (Sample from SEIS) 
Excusal Form (Sample from SEIS) 

 
  



4  

 

 
Purpose 

Section 1: Overview 

The purpose of Barona Charter School’s Special Education Policies and Procedures Handbook is 
to assist school personnel to understand and practice policies that comply with federal, state, 
and requirements. It is expected that school personnel will serve students with disabilities and 
their families in a manner consistent with this handbook. Please note that a full manual is 
provided by our Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) which employs a team of experts to 
research, review, and update their policies and procedures. 

This handbook is designed to be used as a: 

● Structured process for implementing special education policies. 
● Reference for answering questions. 
● Staff development tool. 
● Source for resources of support and assistance. 

It is the commitment and obligation of Barona Charter School and its staff to ensure that students 
with disabilities have access to a free and appropriate public education (FAPE) in the least 
restrictive environment (LRE). 

This manual will be periodically updated to reflect amendments to federal and state laws or new 
SELPA requirements. 

The Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) 

IDEA (Individuals with Disabilities Education Act) was enacted by Congress in 1975 and requires 
schools to identify, locate, and evaluate all children with certain eligible disabilities and to provide 
special help, education, and related services. IDEA is the federal law that governs special 
education, requires participating states to have policies and procedures to ensure that a free 
appropriate public education (FAPE) is available to children between the ages of three to 21- 
years-old with disabilities in the United States. Furthermore, the California Education Code 
declares that all public-school students with disabilities or exceptional needs have a right to 
participate in a free appropriate public education with special education support as needed. 

Special education is specially designed instruction, at no cost to parents, to meet the unique 
needs of the child so that he/she can access the general curriculum and meet state and school 



5  

district educational standards. These students receive an Individualized Education Plan (IEP) 
which is considered a legal educational contract. 

 
IDEA [Section 300.39]is a specially designed instruction that meets the unique needs of a child with a disability. It is 
provided at no cost to parents. Instruction locations can be a classroom, home, hospitals, institutions, or other 
settings as applicable. 

 

  



6  

Section 2: Identification and Referral 
Introduction 
A district has a responsibility to seek out all individuals actively and systematically with 
exceptional needs. Identification procedures shall include systematic methods of utilizing 
referrals of pupils from teachers, parents, agencies, appropriate professionals, and other 
members of the public. Identification procedures shall be coordinated with school site 
procedures for referral of pupils with needs that cannot be met with modifications of the general 
instructional program. 

Prior to consideration of a special education referral, all modifications of the general education 
program and appropriate interventions should be given adequate time to succeed. Once a special 
education referral is made, all previous attempts to build capacity within the general education 
program shall be documented in writing as part of the evaluation report generated by the 
evaluating team. 

 
Referral Process 
These procedures serve to identify children who are at risk and/or may require any type of special 
education services. Only after documented modifications of the general education program and 
appropriate interventions have been tried, is a referral for a psycho-educational assessment 
made and an evaluation plan formulated with parental involvement. 

Following the assessment in all areas of suspected disability, an Individualized Educational Plan 
(IEP) Meeting is held to determine if the student meets eligibility criteria and if so, what program 
and services are required to address the areas of need. 

 
School-age children with severe handicapping conditions may be referred directly for assessment 
if placement in a general education classroom is neither feasible nor appropriate due to age 
and/or severity of the handicapping condition respectively. 

 
Timelines (Identification and Referral) 
The timelines stipulated here are specified in Ed Code Section 56043 and must be strictly 
observed. The timelines are as follows: 

❏ Within 15 calendar days after receiving a referral for assessment, an assessment 
plan must be developed and presented to the parent or a Prior Written Notice 
(PWN) documenting the school district refusal of assessment must be generated. 
Note: The fifteen (15) day timeline starts from the date that the initial referral was 
received, verbally or written, not from the date the referral was written and stops 
due to a school closure in excess of five (5) days. 

 
❏ A parent or guardian can have at least 15 calendar days to review the proposed 

assessment plan prior to providing their consent or dissent. 
 

❏ Within 60 calendar days after receiving the signed parent authorization for 
assessment, an IEP meeting must be held with the parent to discuss the 
assessment results and to determine eligibility and/or develop an appropriate 



7  

educational plan. The evaluation plan should be date stamped to indicate receipt 
by the school district. 
Note: The 60 day timeline begins on the date the school district receives the signed 
assessment plan, not the date the plan was signed by the parent and stops for 
school closures in excess of five (5) days. 

 
❏ Within 30 calendar days after the interim placement of an out-of-SELPA student 

with an IEP, the IEP team must convene a meeting with the parent to review the 
current IEP and to develop an appropriate educational plan. 

 
Referral Sources 
The following people may initiate the referral process: 

Parents or Legal Guardians 
Public School Personnel 
Private or Parochial School Principal 
Public or Private Agencies 

 
Referral Eligibility 
Children from Kindergarten through Eighth Grade who may be suspected of having a disability 
that impacts their learning may be referred for Special Education services. Barona Charter School 
services students in grades TK through eighth grade. 

Child Find Procedures 
To locate all children with handicaps who are not currently receiving the special education 
services they need, it is the responsibility of the Barona Charter School to employ child find 
procedures in which contact with families is systematically sought through many avenues such 
as liaison with private agencies, public information notices, and through business, civic and 
parent group contacts. 
 
If a school is notified of a child who is disabled and who is not currently receiving services or 
enrolled in Barona Charter School, the school’s responsibility is as follows: 

1. The individual receiving the call or visit writes down the date, name and telephone number 
of the person making the inquiry, along with the name, address, and birth date of the child 
being referred. 

2. Indicate to the person that he/she will receive a call shortly from the Special Education 
Director/Designee. 

3. Immediately notify the Special Education Director/Designee that a referral for assessment 
has been made. 

 
4. The Special Education Director/Designee contacts the person who called as soon as possible 

(within 15 days) to discuss the referral and direct that the request be submitted in writing. 
** Please note that while we prefer that referrals be made in writing, the timeline for the 
referral begins at the time the request is made, verbally or written. 



8  

5. After the Special Education Director/Designee discusses the referral, they will determine, 
with consultation as needed from their site special education team, who would be involved 
in the assessment for the referred child. 

If the referral comes from the parent, a copy of the Parents’ Rights/Procedural Safeguards is given 
to the parent with the evaluation plan. 

 
Each school site must maintain a log of all Special Education Referrals. This log is the 
responsibility of the site administrator and/or designee. 

 
School-Age Parent Referral (Transitional Kindergarten through 8th Grade) 
When parents who have made an initial request for special education referral agree to participate  
in pre-referral interventions (Gen Ed Support/SST) at the school site rather than pursue 
assessment, this choice needs to be documented in the child’s cumulative record. It is also 
recommended that this choice be documented in writing by the parents. 

However, if a parent wishes to directly refer their child for special education assessment even 
after the pre-referral intervention process has been explained, the referral must be acted upon 
with the development of an assessment plan within fifteen days. Parents will be asked to submit 
this request in writing, but the written request is not necessary before the fifteen-day timeline 
begins. 

 
Steps to Follow when Parent Requests are Received 

1. A written request for initial assessment is received by school district staff. The receiver of 
the written request shall document his/her name, the date of the request, the name of 
the person making the request, the first and last name, birthdate and address of the 
student being referred. Notify the caller that the Special Education Director/Designee will 
be in contact to follow-up. 

2. A verbal request shall be put into writing; school district staff shall offer assistance if 
necessary. The written request shall be date stamped. 

 
3. The person receiving the request shall notify the Special Education Director/Designee who 

will then contact the School Psychologist. 
 

4. Within the 15-day timeline from the initial request for assessment, a parent meeting 
should be convened to address the concerns related to the request for assessment. 

a. If the team determines the request for assessment is premature, and the parent 
agrees, the team will document the parent’s consent to rescind their request for 
assessment, and the assessment process stops. The parent must write a 
statement withdrawing request for assessment, and the team must document the 
discussion and any agreed upon interventions that will be implemented, initiating 
the Student Study Team process. 

 
OR 

 



9  

b. If the team determines that an assessment is warranted, an assessment plan is 
developed by the Education Specialist with the input of all specialists to address 
areas of suspected disability include but not limited to Psychologist, 
Speech/Language Pathologist, Occupational Therapist, etc. 

OR 
 

c. If the team determines the request for assessment is premature, but the parent 
does not agree, the referral process moves forward. An assessment plan must be 
developed addressing the areas of suspected disability. Should the only area of 
suspected disability be speech and language impairment, the speech therapist will 
assume the role of case manager and develop the assessment plan. For all other 
areas of suspected disability, the education specialist will assume the role of case 
manager and the school psychologist will develop the assessment plan with input 
from all relevant team members. 

 
5. The Prior Written Notice (Initials Only) SEIS form is completed and sent to parents with 

Parent Rights and Procedural Safeguards. 
 
Student Study Team (SST) (School-Age (TK – 8) Staff Referrals) 
Prior to a referral for special education by school district staff, documentation of all pre-referral 
interventions and general education resources need to be exhausted. This shall provide the 
documentation necessary for the district referral. 

 
The Student Study Team (SST) is a school-based problem-solving group whose purpose is to 
intervene early with high-risk students, preventing the need for Special Education and to aid 
teachers in the areas of curriculum, instructional techniques, and classroom management 
systems so they are best able to meet the needs of students in their classrooms. The SST can 
provide support through interventions by identifying both personnel and school resources that 
can be used to meet the needs of both the referred student and the referring teacher. Pre- 
referral interventions have been established to fulfill the requirements of federal and state 
legislation (Article 1, Sections 56300 and 56302). 

Support staff and specialists such as the psychologist, speech therapist, and special education 
teacher may be involved in aiding teachers in the areas of curriculum, instructional strategies, 
and classroom management systems to meet the needs of referred students. However, the pre- 
referral intervention process is NOT a special education function and, therefore, the meetings 
should not be confused with IEP team meetings. The focus of the SST is on assistance to school 
staff members to help support the students, whereas an IEP Team is a legally mandated group 
which focuses on special education eligibility and placement options. By providing problem- 
specific support and assistance, the SST will assure that referrals to special education are 
appropriate and that all regular education options/modifications have been exhausted, including 
Response to Instruction and Intervention strategies. 

 
The SST is a general education function. An SST uses the expertise of a variety of educators and 
the administration for educational planning. The pre-referral intervention process helps develop 



10  

plans for modifications and adaptations of the general programs to meet the needs of students 
who are experiencing problems. The documentation process and online program includes the 
following: 

 
● clarification of the student’s needs, review of relevant and accurate information regarding 

the student’s performance 
● analysis of all available information and with the designing of classroom interventions 

which are realistic, effective, and research based. 
● development of student academic and/or behavior strategies including planning for 

curriculum material support, consultation, and monitoring 
● planning for training in the crucial areas of how to work with an individual student or 

group of students 
● discussion of student participation in various site intervention options  
● reviewing pertinent data for possible Special Education referral after all general 

education interventions have been exhausted 
or 

● recommending Section 504 assessment and consideration. 

 
Response to Instruction and Intervention (General Education Setting) 
Response to Instruction and Intervention should be designed to exhaust the general education 
resources in support of student learning prior to the consideration, except in extreme cases, of 
any special education resources. 

 
Barona Charter School provides research-based interventions and provide the following: 

● The program should provide direct instruction to students. 
● Each intervention offered to students should last 6 weeks. 
● The intervention should focus on a target skill so that growth may be measured. 
● Assessments should be identified for measuring growth. These assessments may be part 

of the regular classroom assessments, or they may be additional assessments (such as the 
MAP assessments) used to measure the target skill. 

 
The data is analyzed after each official intervention period to determine effectiveness: 

● If the student made sufficient progress, then that student no longer needs specialized 
intervention. 

● If the student made some, but not sufficient progress, additional time or additional 
interventions will be considered. 

● If the student made no progress, that should be noted and a new approach to intervention 
should be implemented. 

● If the student continues to make no progress despite various, formal attempts at 
intervention, a SST meeting should be scheduled. 

 
SST Intervention Plans Include: 

● Baseline data 
● Measurable Goals 



11  

● Specific Interventions and the Ongoing Collection of Data to Monitor Progress. 
● Interventions and strategies must be implemented with fidelity for an adequate (6 weeks) 

amount of time to measure efficacy. 
● It is recommended that interventions be implemented, and progress reviewed every two, 

four, or six weeks depending on the type of intervention. 
 

SST Mandatory Participants: 
• General education teacher(s) 
• Family Resource Coordinator 
• Administrator or Designee 

• Parent 
 

A SST may also include additional participants as the process moves forward: 
• School Psychologist 
• Speech Language Pathologist 
• County or School Nurse 
• Special Education Teacher/Director/Designee 
• Student (based on age) 
• School Counselor or School Social Worker 
• Other personnel, as appropriate (may include a person knowledgeable of second 

language acquisition when an English Learner is referred for the process). 

Pre-referral intervention processes are an effective way to utilize resources in planning and 
implementing instructional programs for students. To assist these teams in setting priorities and 
identifying the best strategies, it is critical that the student’s parents be viewed as a resource and 
that their involvement is solicited. [190(430)] 
Current literature on student progress in school stresses the importance of parental involvement 
in their child’s education. Toward this end, it is desirable that parents be involved as soon as 
student concerns arise, and it is often vital to a successful intervention. 

 
Note: Because the phrase “Referral for Special Education” triggers the due process timeline, this 
phrase should NOT be used for informal meetings where general classroom modifications are the 
primary topic of discussion. The phrase should be utilized only after the Special Education 
identification process has begun. 

 
Initial Referral for Special Education Assessment 

If the student does not make progress after the consistent implementation of interventions and 
strategies, and the team believes that there is a suspected disability, the student is referred for a 
special education assessment. When a recommendation for assessment is made, the team must 
develop an Assessment Plan addressing “all areas of suspected disability.” The school 
psychologist, in collaboration with the SST, develops the Initial Assessment Plan and the Special 
Education Director/Designee is responsible for managing the Initial Assessment/IEP process. 
Once the parent provides written consent to the evaluation plan, the team has 60-days to 
complete assessment and hold a meeting to review the results. 



12  

 
The first time that a child is assessed for special education is called an Initial Evaluation. When a 
parent consents to an Initial Evaluation by signing the Assessment Plan, he/she has the right to 
revoke that consent at any time. In this situation, Barona Charter School cannot file for Due 
Process. When a parent revokes consent to an Initial Evaluation, Barona Charter School will write 
a Prior Written Notice (PWN) stating that the district is ready, willing, and able to evaluate. The 
Special Education Director/Designee will need to be contacted within 24 hours of receiving 
revocation of consent to Initial Evaluation; either written or verbal. This PWN is completed and 
sent to parents/guardians via certified mail. A copy of the PWN will be printed and placed in the 
student’s CUME file. 

 
In addition, when a student is recommended for an initial assessment for special education, a 
parent has the right to decline this assessment and the Barona Charter School may not file for 
Due Process. When a parent does not consent to an initial special education evaluation, the 
Barona Charter School will write a PWN, stating that the district is ready, willing, and able to 
evaluate. Call your Special Education Director/Designee within 24 hours of receiving revocation 
of consent to Initial Evaluation; either written or verbal. This PWN is completed and sent to 
parents/guardian via certified mail. A copy of the PWN will be printed and placed in the student’s 
CUME file. 

 
When a student qualifies for special education through an Initial Evaluation, a parent has the 
right to decline special education services and the Barona Charter School cannot file for Due 
Process. When a parent/legal guardian declines special education services, upon completion of 
an Initial Evaluation, the IEP team will meet to review assessment results (with the parent) and 
offer a proposed IEP. If the parent/legal guardian declines special education services, Barona 
Charter School will write a PWN stating that the child qualifies for Special Education services and 
that Barona Charter School is ready, willing, and able to provide these services and offer an IEP. 
Call your Special Education Director/Designee within 24 hours of receiving revocation of consent; 
either written or verbal. This PWN is completed and sent to parents/guardian via certified mail. 
A copy of the PWN will be printed and placed in the student’s cumulative file. 

 
Within three days of receiving a signed Assessment Plan, the Special Education 
Director/Designee will: 

● Write date received and due date for the 60-day timeline on the bottom of the signed 
Assessment Plan 

● Distribute Assessment plan to the School Psychologist and Service providers 
● Schedule the IEP Meeting 

 
NOTE: The date of the IEP meeting should be one-two weeks in advance of the due date to 
account for unforeseen events that may result in meetings having to be rescheduled. It is 
mandatory that the Initial Assessment and meeting occur within the federally mandated 60- 
day timeline (60 calendar days from date of district receiving signed assessment plan). It is the 
responsibility of the Special Education Director/Designee to plan for cancellations by offering 
multiple meeting dates, via written Notice of Meeting, and scheduling meetings in advance of 
the due date. 



13  

 
Interim Placement Procedures 
Before the expiration of 30 days (from the first day of attendance), the IEP team must convene 
to review the placement and determine its appropriateness. The team may use reports, 
information, and/or records from the sending district. However, if these are not available, are 
incomplete, or are inadequate, assessment must be conducted in those areas which are needed 
to develop an appropriate IEP. 

 
Whenever students enroll in the Barona Charter School, it is critical that we establish whether 
the child receives special education services and if the child has a current IEP. Intake procedures 
for new students should ensure paperwork and files for new enrollees are reviewed for potential 
special education services. 

 
Once registration has been completed, the team will proceed in one of the following ways: 

1. If the student’s previous IEP is from within our SELPA (Alpine, Cajon Valley, Dehesa, 
Jamul, La Mesa-Spring Valley, Lakeside, Lemon Grove, Mtn. Empire, Santee) 

● Note that Grossmont Union High School District is also part of the East County 
SELPA, however, because they are a high school district, we would not have 
students enrolling in Barona Charter School from GUHSD. 

a. We will continue, without delay, to provide services comparable to those 
described in the existing approved IEP. If we do not have the exact services listed 
in the current IEP, we will provide without delay services “most like” those 
described in the existing approved IEP. 

i. If the student requires services in a specialized program, the 
coordinator/program specialist will work with neighboring school district’s 
(Lakeside) to seek placement. 

ii. Site team may develop an assessment plan if the team feels that it is 
necessary. 

iii. Additional assessment will be necessary if there are questions about 
service appropriateness, no recent evaluation results on file, or 
incomplete/inadequate evaluations in the file. 

2. If the student’s previous IEP is from California but outside our SELPA 
 

a. An Interim Placement form will be completed by the Special Education 
Director/Designee. We will continue, without delay, to provide services 
comparable to those described in the existing approved IEP. If we do not have the 
exact services listed in the existing IEP, we will provide without delay services 
“most like” those described in the existing approved IEP. 

b. Site team will develop an assessment plan if the team feels that it is necessary. 
i. Additional assessment will be necessary if there are questions about 

service appropriateness, no recent evaluation results on file, or 
incomplete/inadequate evaluations in the file. 

c. IEP team will convene within 30 days to review results and hold the 30-day review 
IEP meeting. 



14  

3. If the student’s previous IEP is from outside of California 
 

d. An Interim Placement form will be completed by the Special Education 
Director/Designee. We will continue, without delay, to provide services 
comparable to those described in the existing approved IEP. If we do not have the 
exact services listed in the existing IEP, we will provide without delay services 
“most like” those described in the existing approved IEP, until an assessment is 
conducted. 

e. Site team must develop an assessment plan which evaluates all areas of 
suspected disability and establishes eligibility under California Education Code 
criteria. 

f. IEP team will convene within 30 days to review results and hold the 30-day review 
IEP meeting. 

g. If additional assessment time is necessary to determine eligibility or areas of need, 
the team would document this in the 30-day review notes, determine placement 
for the remainder of assessment period, and reconvene prior to the end of the 60- 
day evaluation timeline to complete the IEP meeting. 

 
Note: All Program services including DIS services need to be implemented in duration, frequency, 
and location as stated in the IEP. It is advisable that a meeting time and date for the 30-day 
meeting be set at the time of intake to ensure that timelines are met. 

 
Section 504 

Section 504 covers qualified students with disabilities who attend schools receiving Federal 
financial assistance. To be protected under Section 504, a student must be determined to: (1) 
have a physical or mental impairment that substantially limits one or more major life activities; 
or (2) have a record of such an impairment; or (3) be regarded as having such an impairment. 
Section 504 requires that school districts provide a free appropriate public education (FAPE) to 
qualified students in their jurisdictions who have a physical or mental impairment that 
substantially limits one or more major life activities. 

If a student is found to qualify under Section 504 the school site will create a 504 Plan that 
identifies the student needs and how these needs will be met to allow the student to fully access 
the educational setting. As a function of the general education program at the school site, 504 
Plans are written, implemented, and monitored by the site 504 Coordinator and reviewed 
annually. It is important to note that 504 Plans are not included under special education law and 
do not provide students with special education services. Please see your site 504 Coordinator for 
more information. If you do not know who your 504 Coordinator is, contact your site 
Administrator. 

Legal Reference: 34 C.F.R. Part 104 Section 504 - Civil Rights Mandates 
In addition to the Parents’ Rights and Procedural Safeguards, all interested persons shall be 
informed of the following information regarding Section 504. This section refers not only to 
educational programs and activities, but to accessibility of facilities and to employment practices 
in public schools. 

 



15  

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 was enacted to protect the civil rights of all 
handicapped Americans, both children and adults. 

 
It assures the opportunity to handicapped persons to have access to, and participate in, those 
activities that are summarily accepted by the majority of American citizens as unquestionable 
rights. 

Programs and activities for the handicapped must be as effective as those provided to the non- 
handicapped. Equal opportunity must be afforded to the handicapped to participate in 
nonacademic and extracurricular activities. 

No preschool, elementary, secondary, or adult education program receiving or benefiting from 
federal funds may exclude a child on the basis of handicap. Facilities are to be readily accessible, 
but this is not required of each or every part of an existing facility. 

 
No qualified handicapped person, shall, on the basis of handicap, be subjected to discrimination 
in employment under any program or activity. 

 
Section 504 incorporates the language of Titles VI and IX of the 1964 Civil Rights Act which 
guarantees equal treatment of racial minorities and women in order to extend those guarantees 
to all handicapped persons. Every activity affected by federal financial assistance, from education 
and employment to transportation and recreational facilities and programs are affected by 504. 

Legal Reference 

Education Code 56300 “Each district, special education local plan area, or county office shall 
actively and systematically seek out all individuals with exceptional needs, ages 0 through 21 
years, including children not enrolled in public school programs, who reside in the district or are 
under the jurisdiction of a special education local plan area or a county office.” 

 
Education Code 56302 “…Identification procedures shall include systematic methods of utilizing 
referrals of pupils from teachers, parents, agencies, appropriate professional persons, and from 
other members of the public.  Identification procedures shall be coordinated with school site 
procedures for referral of pupils with needs that cannot be met with modification of the regular 
instructional program.” 

 
Education Code 56303 “A pupil shall be referred for special educational instruction and services 
only after the resources of the regular education program have been considered and, where 
appropriate, utilized.” 

 
Education Code 56043 (i) “A pupil’s individualized education program shall be implemented as 
soon as possible following the individualized education program team meeting, pursuant to 
Section 300.323 (c)(2) of Title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations and in accordance with 
Section 56344 

Education Code 56325 (a)(1) “….In the case of an individual with exceptional needs who has an 
individualized education program and transfers into a district from a district not operating 



16  

programs under the same local plan in which he or she was last enrolled in a special education 
program within the same academic year, the local educational agency shall provide the pupil with 
a free appropriate public education, including services comparable to those described in the 
previously approved individualized education program, in consultation with the parents, for a 
period not to exceed 30 days, by which time the local educational agency shall adopt the 
previously approved individualized education program or shall develop, adopt, and implement a 
new individualized education program that is consistent with federal and state law. 

 
(2) In the case of an individual with exceptional needs who has an individualized education 
program and transfers into a district from a district operating programs under the same special 
education local plan area of the district in which he or she was last enrolled in a special education 
program within the same academic year, the new district shall continue, without delay, to provide 
services comparable to those described in the existing approved individualized education 
program, unless the parent and the local educational agency agree to develop, adopt, and 
implement a new individualized education program that is consistent with federal and state law. 

(3) “...the following shall apply to special education programs for individuals with exceptional 
needs who transfer from an educational agency located outside the State of California to a district 
within California. In the case of an individual with exceptional needs who transfers from district 
to district within the same academic year, the local educational agency shall provide the pupil 
with a free appropriate public education, including services comparable to those described in the 
previously approved individualized education program, in consultation with the parents, until the 
local educational agency conducts an assessment, ….., and develops a new individualized 
education program, if appropriate, that is consistent with federal and state law. 



17  

Section 3: Assessment 
 

Introduction 
School districts have an obligation to “identify, locate and evaluate” all children with disabilities 
ages 3-21 who may be eligible for special education, including those who are attending private 
schools or are homeless or wards of the court. 34 Code of federal Regulations [C.F.R.] Sec. 
300.111; California Education Code (Cal. Ed. Code) Secs. 56300 & 301. This is called “child find.” 
(see Section 2: Identification and Referral) 

Assessment Plans 
Special Education Assessments occur for a variety of reasons and for the purpose of determining 
eligibility and to determining present levels and/or areas of need. 

An assessment plan must be developed within 15 days of a referral of a child either by direct 
referral by a parent, public or non-public service provider (primary care physician, outside service 
provider, or by the school site). 

 
A new assessment plan must be developed each time the team proposes to conduct any 
assessment for: 

● New Areas of Suspected Disability 
● Triennial Reviews 
● Other Reviews for Placement or Service Purposes 
● Functional Behavior Assessments 
● Educationally Related Mental Health Services (ERMHS) 
● New Areas of Need (e.g. fine motor, sensory processing, health, etc.) 
● Special Circumstance Instructional Assistance (SCIA) 
● Kindergarten Transition 

An assessment plan should be completed in SEIS. The Parents’ Rights and Procedural Safeguards 
must be presented and explained to parents prior to completing the assessment plan. At the 
parents’ option, a meeting may be scheduled to discuss the assessment plan. All correspondence, 
including the assessment plan, must be written in the primary language of the home or a 
translator must be available to interpret for the parents. 

 
Carefully design the assessment plan to include all areas of suspected disability and suspected 
deficit. Any changes to the assessment plan must include parental consent. 

 
If a parent or guardian believes that additional areas of suspected disabilities or deficit should be 
assessed, this should be captured in the portion of the evaluation plan labeled “I would like the 
following assessment information considered”. A parent or guardian does not have the right to 
alter or add to our proposal for assessment on other portions of the assessment plan. 

If a parent requests additional assessments in the “I would like the following assessment 
information considered” portion of the assessment plan, the evaluator must determine with their 



18  

team whether any changes to the assessment plan will occur and notify the parent of any changes 
via phone or in writing, made to the assessment plan as a result of their requests. Changes should 
be made if the requested additions or changes would assist the team in assessing areas of 
concern or determining eligibility under suspected criteria. 

 
If a parent alters the content of the assessment plan by adding, deleting, or changing the 
proposed plan in a way that the evaluation team is not in agreement with, a meeting with the 
parent should be scheduled by an evaluator as soon as possible, to complete a new assessment 
plan that all members of the evaluation team are in agreement with. The first assessment plan 
is marked as “void”, the new assessment plan is attached to the old and parent consent is 
established as the new date, triggering a new 60-day timeline. 

It is imperative that the Special Education Director/Designee or School Psychologist write the 
date that the form is received by Barona Charter School as this date marks the start of the 60-day 
timeline. 

When an Assessment Plan is not returned: 

● If assessment plan is not returned within 10 calendar days send another Assessment Plan 
with Procedural Safeguards via Certified Mail (through front office) 

● Place Copy of Assessment Plan and Proof of Certified Mail in Special Education File 
● Continue ongoing follow-up with parent to obtain signature 
● If after 14 calendar days, all attempts to secure a signed assessment plan are not 

successful, contact your Special Education Director/Designee with all documentation for 
follow-up. 

 

Vision and Hearing Screening 
Vision and hearing screenings are required for initial, triennial and transition assessments. It is 
critical that Vision/Hearing Screenings be completed as early in the 60 Day Timeline as possible 
because failed screenings may impact assessment results. 

It is the responsibility of the case manager to monitor the assessment plan to be sure that all 
assessments are completed according to the approved plan and that the assessment is 
completed within the timeline. 

If there are outside agencies involved with the student (Regional Center, medical doctors, 
psychologists, etc.) complete an Exchange of Information form if the assessment team 
determines a need to gather information/records from them. This form can also be used to 
document parent consent for the district to send student information and records to an outside 
agency. 
An IEP Team Meeting shall be convened within 60 calendar days from the receipt of a signed 
assessment plan. 

 
If parents have agreed to attend the IEP meeting and does not attend, the team captures this in 
the meeting notes and reschedules at a mutually agreed upon time and signs attendance only. 



19  

ALL IEP meetings should begin prior to or on the due date established by the 60-day timeline. If 
due to unforeseen issues, an IEP meeting cannot be fully completed by the 60-day due date, the 
meeting needs to be started by that due date. The IEP Meeting Notes should reflect who was in 
attendance, any portions of the IEP that were completed, and the reasons/rationale for the need 
to reconvene and next scheduled IEP team meeting date. Signatures for participation are needed 
by case manager, parent/guardian, and any other members of the IEP team as necessary. 

 
Roles and Responsibilities of the Assessment Team 
The members of the IEP team, including the assessors, must perform the following tasks: 

1. Evaluate all areas of suspected disability. 
2. Determine present levels of functioning and baselines of educational performance. 
3. Consider any independent assessments submitted by the parents. If outside agencies 

(Regional Center, medical doctors, psychologists, etc.) are involved with the student, 
complete a Release of Information (ROI) form when the assessment team determines a 
need to gather information/records from these agencies. (See SEIS Document Library for 
ROI) 

4. Provide a Multidisciplinary written report that is reviewed in the context of an IEP meeting 
within the 60-day timeline. The personnel who assess the pupil shall prepare a written 
report, or reports as appropriate, of the results of each assessment. If parents request a 
report in advance of the meeting, it must be provided as soon as the report is available. 
Best practice suggests that reports are provided to parents prior to the meeting. 

Initial Assessments 
An Assessment Plan will be developed that addresses all areas of suspected disability and student 
need. 

The Assessment Plan is sent to parents with Parent Rights and Procedural Safeguards within 15 
days of the referral for assessment. 

The Special Education Director/Designee needs to write the date on the assessment plan when 
the plan is signed and returned, as this date begins the 60-day assessment timeline. 

 
The Special Education Director/Designee must: 

● Inform all assessors that consent has been received, and the evaluation may begin. 
● Establish an IEP date to review assessment results with parents. 

 
The initial assessment of any student considered for special education services must be 
conducted by a multidisciplinary team of professionals. The assessment must include tools to 
evaluate in all areas of suspected disability and areas of concern which may include some or all 
of the following: 

1. Health history 
2. Current Vision and Hearing (within the calendar year) 
3. Motor abilities 
4. Language functioning/communication 
5. Processing Skills 
6. General ability/cognition 
7. Self-help, orientation, and mobility skills 



20  

8. Academic performance 
9. Adaptive Skills 
10. Social and emotional status 
11. Career and vocational abilities and interests 

Note: Assessments must include a recent vision and hearing screening and an observation of the 
student in his/her classroom to determine what environmental factors and peer/teacher 
interactions might affect the child’s functioning. If the child is not yet of school age or is not in 
school, the observation shall take place in an environment appropriate for an individual of that 
age. The school observation must be conducted by someone other than the classroom teacher. 

 
Process for Vision/Hearing Screenings for Initial Assessments 
If the student has not been assessed through the school’s normal grade level vision and hearing 
screenings, within 5 school days of receiving signed Assessment Plan from parent, the Special 
Education Director/Designee will send a copy of the assessment plan and make a written request 
for Vision and Hearing Screening.  
 
Triennial Review or Re-Evaluation Procedures 
All special education students must be reassessed at least every three years or upon parent 
request, but no more than once per year unless agreed upon by the school team and parents. 
This reassessment must include the review of existing data on the pupil, including assessments 
and information provided by the parents of the pupil, current classroom-based assessments and 
observations, and teacher/related services providers’ observations. 

 
Triennial assessments serve three purposes: 

1. Accountability—The effectiveness of the student’s IEP should be analyzed. Re-evaluations 
should include a review of progress by examining data on past and present levels of 
performance. Data may include grades, school discipline records, curriculum-based measures 
or norm-based measures and any previous assessment data. Lack of progress should 
stimulate IEP changes in curriculum, instructional techniques, behavioral strategies or the 
education environment, or a reassessment of the nature of the disability. 

2. Planning—Evaluation information should be utilized to determine whether modifications 
to the special education services received are needed in order for the child to meet the annual 
goals and participate, as appropriate, in the general curriculum. Factors such as behavior, 
current skill levels, and communication skills should be considered. Future needs must be 
addressed, especially at transition points in the child’s educational program. Transition 
planning might address confirmation of disability, community living skills, vocational training, 
or plans for post-secondary education. 

 
3. Continued Eligibility —A complete re-evaluation of a child’s disability must be conducted if: 

(a) a parent or teacher requests assessment in particular areas of suspected disability 
(b) the child may no longer have a disability that requires special education or related 

services 
(c) the child may be eligible for additional related services, or 



21  

(d) the child is not making educational progress 
 

Steps to Conducting Triennial Assessments 
1. The Special Education Director/Designee obtains re-evaluation information from Special 

Education Information System (SEIS) and communicates due dates with the necessary IEP 
team members to conduct assessments. 

2. The assessment team members (special education teacher, psychologist, DIS service 
providers) will collaborate to determine a recommendation to make to the parent, and 
whether to conduct a triennial review or a re-evaluation. This discussion and decision 
should occur at least 60 days prior to the triennial due date to allow time for formal 
assessment if determined necessary or requested by the parent. 

Other Reasons for Assessment 
The need for assessment may be triggered for reasons other than discussed above. These other 
reasons for assessment may include: 

● Request by a parent or staff member 
● Changes of placement 
● To gather new information to make service recommendations or fine tune a student’s 

existing IEP 
 

Considerations for Assessment 

Assessment of English Learners (EL) Students 

Assessment of students whose primary language is not English shall be done by appropriately 
credentialed personnel who are linguistically competent in both the oral and written skills of the 
child’s primary language and who also have knowledge of the cultural and historical heritage of 
the child. When such personnel are not available, an interpreter, who is preferably a district 
employee, may be used. However, when an interpreter is used or when materials and procedures 
which may attenuate the validity of the assessment are used, this must be noted in the case study 
report. 

Factors to consider when assessing English Learners include: 
● Language Factors 

○ Different linguistic backgrounds 
○ Different levels of proficiency in English 
○ Different levels of proficiency in Native Language 

● Educational Factors 
○ Varying levels of education in Native Language 
○ Varying levels of education in English 
○ Varying degrees of exposure to standardized assessments 

● Cultural Factors 
○ Varying degrees of acculturation 

Non-Discriminatory Assessments Include: 



22  

1. Assessment for the purposes of intervention 
2. Assessment with Authentic and Alternative Procedures 
3. Assessment of the Learning Ecology 
4. Assessment of Language Proficiency 
5. Assessment of prior opportunities for learning 
6. Assessment of relevant cultural and linguistic factors 
7. Evaluation, Revision, and Re-evaluation of Hypothesis 
8. Determination of and Language of Formal Assessment 
9. Reduction of bias in traditional assessments 
10. Utilization of multiple data sources prior to conclusions 

Educationally- Related Mental Health Services (ERMHS) Evaluation 

Prior to an ERMHS Referral and Assessment: 
● The IEP team develops goals and implements interventions/services to address mild to 

moderate social, emotional, and/or behavioral needs that interfere with the student’s 
educational progress 

● Interventions and services may include Positive Behavioral Supports (PBS), Behavior 
Intervention Plan (BIP), Functional Behavioral Assessment (FBA), Specialized Academic 
Instruction (SAI), programmatic and school site accommodations, Social-Emotional goals, 
Behavior goals 

● Collect data and monitor student progress frequently (no less than every 2 weeks) to 
determine if additional goals, services, and interventions are successful 

● Modify goals, services, and behavior plan as appropriate 
● If progress is not being made, the team may recommend an ERMHS Assessment to 

consider the need for more intensive school-based counseling services 
● If after 4-6 weeks, student has not made adequate progress, an ERMHS Assessment may 

need to be initiated 

Initial ERMHS Assessment 
Within 7 calendar days of receiving the signed Assessment Plan from the parent for the ERMHS 
assessment, the referring School Psychologist and Special Education Director/Designee will 
complete the ERMHS Packet. The Special Education Director/Designee will contact the School 
Psychologist at Specialized Therapy Services about conducting the assessment. Barona Charter 
School contracts with Specialized Therapy Services for ERMHS services and assessments. The 
following information will be made available to the School Psychologist during assessment and 
to the ERMHS provider once the assessment is complete. 

 
Copies of the following District Documents: 

1. SEIS Signed Assessment Plan, 
2. Current IEP and any amendments (may be required to send last 2 years’ worth of 

documents to provide the necessary background information on mental health over a 
period of time), 

3. Most recent psychoeducational report 
4. Barona Charter School attendance records, discipline records, and report cards 

Additional documents to print and include if available: 



23  

● FBA/BIP 
● Previous mental health assessments 
● Discharge paperwork from hospitalizations 
● Relevant medical reports 
● Independent evaluations 
● Contact info for others working with student (CASA, Social Worker, Foster parent, 

Wraparound providers, TBS providers, advocate, attorney, etc.) 

School Psychologist/Special Education Director/Designee is responsible for: 
● Ensuring all documentation is given to the ERHMS assessment provider along with the 

ERMHS service provider, should the student qualify. 
● Ensuring that the IEP meeting is scheduled within the required 60-day timeline to discuss 

the results of the assessment with the parent/guardian. 

Reporting Assessment Results 
The assessment report shall include, per Education Code section 56327, but not be limited to, all 
the following: 

● Whether the pupil may need special education and related services (eligibility statement) 
● The basis for making the determination 
● The relevant behavior noted during the observation of the pupil in an appropriate setting 
● The relationship of that behavior to the pupil’s academic and social functioning 
● The educationally relevant health and development, and medical findings, if any 
● For pupils with learning disabilities, whether there is such a discrepancy between 

achievement and ability that cannot be corrected without special education and related 
services 

● A determination concerning the effects of environmental, cultural, or economic 
disadvantage, where appropriate 

● The need for specialized services, materials, and equipment for pupils with low incidence 
disabilities, consistent with guidelines established pursuant to Section 56136 of the 
education code. 

Important: An IEP team meeting must be held with parents, regardless of whether a student 
qualifies for special education and/or related services. A copy of the assessment report is to be 
given to the parents after the results have been explained to them. An IEP which reflects special 
education eligibility or non-eligibility is generated at the meeting. If the student is eligible for 
special education services, the IEP must be based upon the student’s unique needs. 

 
Eligibility decisions must be based on three factors: 

1. The eligibility criteria 
2. The adverse effects on a student's educational performance 
3. Requirement for special education and related services 

 
The parent must be given: 

▪ A copy of all reports 
▪ A copy of the completed IEP 

 
Steps for a DNQ (Does Not Qualify) 



24  

1. Hold an IEP meeting to review assessment results 
2. Complete the following forms in SEIS: 

a. present levels page 
b. notes page 
c. SLD form as appropriate 
d. signature page 

3. Upload all reports into SEIS 
4. Notify the Special Education Director/Designee that the student Does Not Qualify (DNQ) 

and request that he/she be removed from SEIS caseload. 
5. Create a Special Education File. The file will be labeled with the students last name, first 

name and the acronym DNQ. 
6. The file shall include a copy of the Assessment Report, signed Assessment Plan, Meeting 

Notice, and the completed pages from SEIS: This file will be stored at the school site with 
Special Education files. The maintenance of this file will follow the district’s Records Policy. 

 
Independent Educational Evaluations (IEE’s) 
If a parent disagrees with the school’s assessment, a parent has the right to an independent 
educational evaluation (IEE) at the district’s expense. However, the school may decide to initiate 
a due process hearing to show that its assessment is appropriate. Even if the school’s assessment 
is deemed appropriate and reimbursement is denied, the parent still has the right to an 
independent assessment at their own cost. The assessment shall be conducted by a California 
credentialed or a licensed professional examiner who is not employed by and does not routinely 
provide assessments for the State Department of Education or Barona Charter School. Regardless 
of who ultimately pays for the assessment, the results must be considered with respect to the 
provision of free and appropriate public education of the pupil (EDC § 56329). 

 
The team needs to document that an independent assessment report of findings was considered 
in conjunction with the assessment data generated by school staff. This documentation is to 
include the name of the assessor, his/her title, and the date of assessment. 

 
If a parent disagrees with an assessment completed by the school staff and request an additional 
assessment or an Independent Educational Evaluation, please notify the Special Education 
Director/Designee immediately on how to proceed. 

 
Placement Criteria for Special Education Programs 
It is the policy of the Barona Charter School that, to the maximum extent appropriate, everyone 
with exceptional needs shall be educated with pupils who are not disabled. It is our policy that 
assignment to special classes, separate schooling, or other removal of the pupil from the general 
educational environment shall occur only when the nature and severity of the disability is such 
that education in general classes with supplementary aids and services cannot be achieved to 
meet the current needs of the student. 

General Criteria for Educational Placement 



25  

The placement criteria for special education programs/services is designed to provide guidelines 
for Individualized Education Program (IEP) Teams and parents in considering pupils for special 
education programs and services. 
Placement in special education programs requires certain general criteria be met before students 
are eligible, which are: 

 
▪ A student shall qualify as an “Individual with Exceptional Needs”, if his or her educational 

needs cannot be met with modification of the regular program and the results of the 
assessment demonstrate that the degree of the pupil’s impairment requires special 
education in one or more program options authorized by the California Education Code. 

 
▪ A student has been evaluated by a multidisciplinary team in all areas of suspected 

disability utilizing nondiscriminatory tests. 
 

Pupils shall be placed in special education programs/services in accordance with their functional, 
age-appropriate needs. Placement may be reevaluated at any time to determine a change in the 
Individualized Education Program (IEP) for a student. 

 
Legal References 
Education Code 56320 “Before any action is taken with respect to the initial placement of an 
individual with exceptional needs in Special Education instruction, an individual assessment of the 
pupils educational needs shall be conducted, by qualified persons, in accordance with 
requirements including, but not limited to, all the following: 

 
(a) Testing and assessment materials and procedures used for the purposes of assessment 

and placement of individuals with exceptional needs are selected and administered so 
as not to be racially, culturally, or sexually discriminatory…..the materials and 
procedures shall be provided in the pupil’s native language or mode of communication, 
unless it is clearly not feasible to do so.” 

(b) Tests and other assessment materials meet all the following requirements: 
 

(1) Are provided and administered in the language and form most likely to yield 
accurate information on what the pupil knows and can do academically, 
developmentally, and functionally, unless it is not feasible to so provide or 
administer….” 

(2) Are used for purposes for which the assessments or measured are valid and 
reliable. 

(3) Are administered by trained and knowledgeable personnel and are 
administered in accordance with any instructions provided by the producer of 
the assessments, except that individually administered tests of intellectual or 
emotional functioning shall be administered by a credentialed school 
psychologist. 

 
(c) Tests and other assessment materials include those tailored to assess specific areas of 

educational need and not merely those which are designed to provide a single general 



26  

intelligence quotient. 
 

(d) Tests are selected and administered to best ensure that when a test administered to a 
pupil with impaired sensory, manual, or speaking skills produces test results that 
accurately reflect the pupil’s aptitude, achievement level, or any other factors the test 
purports to measure and not the pupil’s impaired sensory, manual, or speaking skills 
unless those skills are the factors the test purports to measure. 

(e) “…..no single measure or assessment is used as the sole criterion for determining 
whether a pupil is an individual with exceptional needs or determining an appropriate 
educational program for the pupil. 

 
(f) The pupil is assessed in all areas related to the suspected disability including, if 

appropriate, health and development, vision (including low vision), hearing, motor 
abilities, language function, general intelligence, academic performance, 
communicative status, self-help, orientation and mobility skills, career and vocational 
abilities and interests, and social and emotional status. A developmental history shall 
be obtained, when appropriate. For pupils with residual vision, a low vision 
assessment shall be provided in accordance with guidelines established pursuant to 
Section 56136. 

(g) The assessment of a pupil, including the assessment of a pupil with a suspected low 
incidence disability, shall be conducted by persons knowledgeable of that disability. 
Special attention shall be given to the unique educational needs, including, but not 
limited to, skills and the need for specialized services, materials, and equipment 
consistent with guidelines established pursuant to Section 56136.” 

 
Education Code 56321 “(a) If an assessment for the development or revision of the individualized 
education program is to be conducted, the parent or guardian of the pupil shall be given, in 
writing, a proposed assessment plan within 15 days of the referral for assessment not counting 
days between the pupil’s regular school sessions or terms or days of school vacation in excess of 
five schooldays from the date of receipt of the referral, unless the parent agrees, in writing to an 
extension. However, in any event, the assessment plan shall be developed within 10 days after 
the commencement of the subsequent regular school year or the pupil’s regular school term as 
determined by each district’s school calendar for each pupil for whom a referral has been made 
10 days or less prior to the end of the regular school year. In the case of pupil school vacations, 
the 15-day time shall recommence on the date that the pupil’s regular schooldays reconvene. A 
copy of the notice of a parent’s or guardian’s rights shall be attached to the assessment plan. A 
written explanation of all the procedural safeguards under the federal Individuals with Disabilities 
Education Act (20 U.S.C. Sec. 1400 and following), and the rights and procedures contained in 
Chapter 5 (commencing with Section 56500) shall be included in the notice of a parent’s or 
guardian’s rights, including information on the procedures for requesting an informal meeting, 
prehearing mediation conference, mediation conference, or due process hearing; the timelines 
for completing each process, whether the process is optional; and the type of representative who 
may be invited to participate. 

 
(b) The proposed assessment plan given to parents or guardians shall meet all the following 



27  

requirements: 
 

(1) Be in language easily understood by the general public. 

(2) Be provided in the native language of the parent or guardian or other mode of 
communication used by the parent or guardian, unless to do so is clearly not feasible. 

(3) Explain the types of assessments to be conducted. 
 

(4) State that no individualized education program will result from the assessment 
without the consent of the parent. 

 
(c) The local educational agency proposing to conduct an initial assessment to determine if the 

child qualifies as an individual with exceptional needs shall obtain informed consent from the 
parent of the child before conducting the assessment, … If the parent of the child does not 
provide consent for an initial assessment, or the parent fails to respond to a request to provide 
consent, the local educational agency may pursue the initial assessment utilizing the 
procedures described in Section 1415 of Title 20 of the United States Code and in accordance 
with paragraph (3) of subdivision (a) of Section 56501 and subdivision (e) of Section 56506. 
The parent or guardian shall have at least 15 days from the receipt of the proposed 
assessment plan to arrive at a decision. The assessment may begin immediately upon receipt 
of the consent. 

 
(d) The local educational agency shall not be required to obtain informed consent from the parent 

of a child for an initial assessment to determine whether the child is an individual with 
exceptional needs under any of the following circumstances… 

(1) Despite reasonable efforts to do so, the local educational agency cannot discover the 
whereabouts of the parent of the child. 

(2) The rights of the parent of the child have been terminated in accordance with state 
law. 

 

 

  



28  

Section 4: Eligibility 
 

Introduction 
Determination of eligibility and placement of a student in a special education program and/or 
related services is the responsibility of the IEP team. In accordance with California Administrative 
Code Title 5 Regulations, the criteria outlined in this section are designed to provide guidelines 
for IEP teams in considering pupils for special education programs and services. 

General Criteria for Special Education Placement 
Placement in a special education program requires certain general criteria be met before a 
student is considered eligible. These criteria are: 

 
1. A student shall qualify as an Individual with Exceptional Needs if his/her educational 

needs cannot be met with modification of the general education program, including 
Section 504 accommodations, and the results of the assessment demonstrate that the 
degree of the pupil’s impairment requires special education in one or more program 
options authorized by the California Education Code. 

 
2. A student has been identified as having a disability and was evaluated by a 

multidisciplinary team in all areas of suspected disability utilizing nondiscriminatory 
assessment tools. 

 
Students will be provided special education services and placed in programs in accordance with 
their individual instructional needs. Placement may be reevaluated at any time to determine 
necessary changes in the student’s IEP to ensure educational benefit. 

3030. Eligibility Criteria 
A pupil shall qualify as an individual with exceptional needs, pursuant to Section 56026 of the 
Education Code, if the results of the assessment as required by Section 56320 demonstrate that 
the degree of the pupil’s impairment as described in Section 3030 (a through j) requires special 
education in one or more of the program options authorized by Section 56361 of the Education 
Code. The decision as to whether the assessment results demonstrate that the degree of the 
pupil’s impairment requires special education shall be made by the individualized education 
program team, including personnel in accordance with section 56341 (d) of the Education Code. 
The individualized education program team shall consider all the relevant material which is 
available on the pupil. No single score or product of scores shall be used as the sole criterion for 
the decision of the individualized education program team as to the pupil’s eligibility for special 
education. The specific processes and procedures for implementation of these criteria shall be 
developed by each Special Education Local Plan Area and be included in the local plan pursuant 
to Section 56220 (a) of the Education Code. 

 
Specific handicapping conditions which are used for determination of eligibility are as follows: 

● Autism 
● Deaf Blind 
● Deafness 



29  

● Emotional Disability 
● Hard of Hearing 
● Intellectual Disability 
● Multiple Disabilities 
● Orthopedic Impairment 
● Other Health Impaired 
● Specific Learning Disability 
● Speech and/or Language Impairment 
● Traumatic Brain Injury 
● Visual Impairment 

Eligibility worksheets have been developed to assist IEP teams and evaluators in ensuring that all 
criteria for eligibility have been established. 

AUTISM (AUT) 
California Code of Regulations, Title 5, Article 3.1 Section 3030 (b)(1) 
A developmental disability significantly affecting verbal and nonverbal communication and social 
interaction, generally evident before age three, and adversely affecting a child's educational 
performance. Other characteristics often associated with autism are engagement in repetitive 
activities and stereotyped movements, resistance to environmental change or change in daily 
routines, and unusual responses to sensory experiences. 

1. Autism does not apply if a child's educational performance is adversely affected primarily 
because the child has an emotional disability, as defined in subdivision (b)(4) of this 
section. 

2. A child who manifests the characteristics of autism after age three could be identified as 
having autism if the criteria in subdivision (b)(1) of this section are satisfied. 

 
Eligibility Criteria 
As outlined above and in the Eligibility Worksheet. 

 
DEAF/BLIND (DB) 
California Code of Regulations, Title 5, Article 3.1 Section 3030 (b)(2) 
A pupil has concomitant hearing and visual impairments, the combination of which causes such 
severe communication, developmental, and educational problems that they cannot be 
accommodated in special education programs solely for children with deafness or children with 
blindness. 

 
Eligibility Criteria 
As outlined above and in the Eligibility Worksheet. 

DEAFNESS (DEAF) 
California Code of Regulations, Title 5, Article 3.1 Section 3030 (b)(3)  
A pupil has a (severe to profound) hearing impairment, whether permanent or fluctuating, which 
impairs the processing of linguistic information through hearing, even with amplification, and 
which adversely affects educational performance. Processing linguistic information includes 
speech and language reception and speech and language discrimination. 



30  

 
Eligibility Criteria 
As outlined above and in the Eligibility Worksheet. 

EMOTIONAL DISABILITY (ED) 
California Code of Regulations, Title 5,  Article 3.1 Section 3030 (b)(4) 
A condition exhibiting one or more of the following characteristics over a long period of time and 
to a marked degree, which adversely affect a pupil’s educational performance: 

 
1. An inability to learn which cannot be explained by intellectual, sensory, or health factors. 
2. An inability to build or maintain satisfactory interpersonal relationships with peers and 

teachers. 
3. Inappropriate types of behavior or feelings under normal circumstances exhibited in 

several situations. 
4. A general pervasive mood of unhappiness or depression. 
5. A tendency to develop physical symptoms or fears associated with personal or school 

problems. 
6. Emotional Disturbance includes schizophrenia. The term does not apply to children who 

are socially maladjusted, unless it is determined that they have an emotional disturbance. 
 

The following descriptions are provided to clarify these criteria: 
An inability to learn which cannot be explained by intellectual, sensory, and health factors: 

Thought Disorders: 
1. Content of Thought (Delusional Thinking) 
2. Form of Thought 
3. Marked loosening of association (idea shift from one subject to another unrelated 

subject with no awareness that topics had changed) 
a. Incoherence 

4. Hallucinations, Bizarre Delusions 
 

An inability to build or maintain satisfactory interpersonal relationships with peers and 
teachers: 

1. The student demonstrates intensive withdrawal or avoidance of large numbers of persons 
or circumstances 

2. Regressive behavior 
a. Regress into behavior that they have previously abandoned 

i. Examples may include thumb sucking, crying readily, baby talk, temper 
tantrums, wet or soiled pants 

3. A marked avoidance in communicating with teachers and peers 
4. Does not play, socialize, or engage in recreation with others 

Inappropriate types of behavior or feelings under normal circumstances: 
1. Lack of appropriate fear reactions 
2. Flat, blunt, distorted, or excessive affect 
3. Bizarre behaviors 
4. Self-mutilation 
5. Unexplained rage reactions and/or uncontrollable explosive or acting out disorders, such 



31  

as physical violence or verbal abuse which occurs in different settings 
6. Delusions and/or hallucinations 
7. Laughs or cries inappropriately in common social or academic situations in a non- 

manipulative fashion 
8. Emotions vacillate unpredictably from one extreme to another, shows no ability to control 

oneself 
9. Lack of contact with reality 
10. Obsessive thoughts and/or compulsive behavior 

General pervasive mood of unhappiness or depression: 
1. Lack of interest or pleasure in almost all activities 
2. Poor appetite or significant weight loss or increased appetite or significant weight gain 
3. Insomnia 
4. Loss of energy 
5. Recurrent thoughts of death, suicidal ideation, wishes to be dead, suicide attempt 
6. Excessive guilt causing severe depression 
7. Socially withdrawn, isolating oneself 
8. Feeling of worthlessness 

A tendency to develop physical symptoms or fears associated with personal or school 
problems: 

Phobias, such as: 
1. Persistent and irrational fear of a specific object, activity, or situation that results 

in compulsive avoidance behavior. 
2. Intense, disabling anxiety, often reaching panic proportions when the object, 

situation, or activity is approached 
3. Separation Anxiety Disorder may be intense and pervasive enough to qualify 
4. Somatoform Disorders (Physical symptoms suggesting physical disorders for 

which there are no demonstrable organic findings or known physiological 
mechanisms). Examples can be found in DSM 5. 

In addition to having an emotional condition which is manifested as one of these five 
characteristics, there are also three limiting criteria. These limiting criteria must be a direct result 
of the identified emotional condition. These are: 
1. Over a Period of Time – This requirement rules out temporary adjustment reactions and 

provides the LEA staff with the opportunity to utilize behavioral interventions. Generally, 
these characteristics should be exhibited over a period of at least six months. 

2. To a Marked Degree – This addresses both the pervasiveness (demonstrated in a variety 
of settings - home, school, and community) and the intensity of the negative behaviors. 
The demonstrated behaviors must produce significant distress, either to the individual or 
to his environment, and must be primarily related to his ED condition. 

 
3. Adversely Affects Educational Performance. - Most importantly, the negative behaviors 

of the child must be demonstrated to occur in the school setting and to result in an 
impairment of the child’s ability to benefit from that setting. If the child is able to 
demonstrate progress in the regular educational program or in a “less restrictive” setting, 



32  

then classification of that child as ED is neither necessary nor appropriate. 

There are several ways in which an adverse effect upon educational performance can be 
determined. Adverse educational performance can be defined as achievement that is 
significantly lower than one would reasonably expect for that child’s level of cognitive 
functioning. Impact upon learning can also be demonstrated by the child’s quality and 
degree of task completion, on–task behavior, group participation and peer-teacher 
interaction. 

 
Eligibility Criteria 
As outlined above and in the Eligibility Worksheet. 

 
ESTABLISHED MEDICAL DISABILITY (EMD) 
California Education Code Chapter 4.45 Section 56441.11 
 
A preschool child, between the ages of three and five years, qualifies as a child who needs early 
childhood special education services if the child meets the following criteria: 

1. Is identified as having one of the following disabling conditions, as defined in Section 300.8 
of Title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations, or an established medical disability, as 
defined in subdivision (d): 

a. For the purposes of this section, “established medical disability” is defined as a 
disabling medical condition or congenital syndrome that the individualized 
education program team determines has a high predictability of requiring special 
education and services. 

 
For your information, a list of medical conditions or congenital syndromes that may be 
appropriate is provided. 
CHROMOSOMAL ABNORMALITIES NEUROLOGICAL DISORDERS 

Down Syndrome Spinal bifida 
Turner Syndrome Cerebral palsy 
Kleinfelter’s syndrome Epilepsy 
D syndrome Encephalitis 
E syndrome Hydrocephalus 
Cri du chat syndrome 
Williams syndrome 

 
ENVIRONMENTALLY CAUSED METABOLIC DISORDERS 
MALFORMATIONS Hypoglycemia 
Thalidomide Hyperglycemia 
Congenital rubella syndrome Galactosemia 
Syphilis Phenylketonuria 
Cytomegalovirus Homocystinuria 
Toxoplasma gondil Hartnup disease 
Erythroblastosis fetalis Tay Sachs disease 
X- ray irradiation Niemann-Pick disease 



33  

Fetal alcohol syndrome Sulfatide lipidosis 
Hurler syndrome 
Sanfilippo syndrome 
Cretinism 

 
SKELETAL AND MUSCULAR POSTNATAL HANDICAPPING 
SYSTEM MALFORMATIONS CONDITIONS 
Acrania Anoxic Deprivation 
Cleft lip/Cleft palate Meningitis 
Muscular dystrophy Retrolental fibroplasia 
Osteogenesis imperfecta Cerebral palsy 

Child with limb deficiency 
Physical trauma 

Eligibility Criteria 
As outlined above and in the Eligibility Worksheet. 

 
HEARING IMPAIRMENT (HI) 
California Code of Regulations, Title 5, Article 3.1 Section 3030 (b)(5) 
A pupil has a hearing impairment, whether permanent or fluctuating, which impairs the 
processing of linguistic information through hearing, even with amplification, and which 
adversely affects educational performance. Processing linguistic information includes speech and 
language reception and speech and language discrimination. 

 
Eligibility Criteria 
As outlined above and in the Eligibility Worksheet. 

 
INTELLECTUAL DISABILITY (ID) 
California Code of Regulations, Title 5, Article 3.1 Section 3030 (b)(6) 
A pupil has significantly subaverage general intellectual functioning existing concurrently with 
deficits in adaptive behavior and manifested during the developmental period, which adversely 
affects a pupil’s educational performance. 

 
Eligibility Criteria 
As outlined above and in the Eligibility Worksheet. 
 
MULTIPLE-DISABILITIES (MD) 
California Code of Regulations, Title 5, Article 3.1 Section 3030 (b)(7) 
Concomitant impairments (such as intellectual disability-blindness, intellectual disability- 
orthopedic impairment, etc.), the combination of which causes such severe educational needs 
that they cannot be accommodated in special education programs solely for one of the 
impairments. The term does not include deaf blindness. 

Eligibility Criteria 
As outlined above and in the Eligibility Worksheet. 



34  

 
ORTHOPEDIC IMPAIRMENT (OI) 
California Code of Regulations, Title 5, Article 3.1 Section 3030 (b)(8) 
A pupil has a severe orthopedic impairment which adversely affects the pupil’s educational 
performance. Such orthopedic impairments include impairments caused by congenital anomaly, 
impairments caused by disease (poliomyelitis, bone tuberculosis), and impairments from other 
causes (e.g. cerebral palsy, amputations, and fractures or burns that cause contractures). 
 
Eligibility Criteria 
As outlined above and in the Eligibility Worksheet. 

OTHER HEALTH IMPAIRMENT (OHI) 
California Code of Regulations, Title 5, Article 3.1 Section 3030 (b)(9) 
A pupil has limited strength, vitality, or alertness including a heightened alertness to 
environmental stimuli, that results in limited alertness with respect to the educational 
environment that: is due to chronic or acute health problems such as asthma, attention deficit 
disorder, attention deficit hyperactivity disorder, diabetes, epilepsy, a heart condition, 
hemophilia, lead poisoning, leukemia, nephritis, rheumatic fever, sickle cell anemia, and Tourette 
Syndrome that adversely affects a pupil’s educational performance. 

 
In accordance with Section 56026(e) of the Education Code, such physical disabilities shall not be 
temporary in nature. 

Regarding pupils with Attention Deficit and Hyperactivity Disorders: 
 

Education Code Article 2.6 Section 56339 
 

A pupil whose educational performance is adversely affected by a suspected or diagnosed 
attention deficit disorder or attention deficit hyperactivity disorder and demonstrates a need for 
special education and related services by meeting eligibility criteria specified in subdivision (f) or 
(i) of Section 3030 of Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations or Section 56337 and subdivision 
(j) of Section 3030 of Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations for the federal Individuals with 
Disabilities Education Act (20 U.S.C. Sec. 1400 and following) categories of “other health 
impairments,” “serious emotional disturbance,” or “specific learning disabilities,” is entitled to 
special education and related services 

If a pupil with an attention deficit disorder or attention deficit hyperactivity disorder is not found 
to be eligible for special education and related services pursuant to subdivision (a), the pupil’s 
instructional program shall be provided in the general education program. 

 
It is the intent of the Legislature that local educational agencies promote coordination between 
special education and regular education programs to ensure that all pupils, including those with 
attention deficit disorders or attention deficit hyperactivity disorders, receive appropriate 
instructional interventions. 

 
It is further the intent of the Legislature that regular education teachers and other personnel be 



35  

trained to develop an awareness about attention deficit disorders and attention deficit 
hyperactivity disorders and the manifestations of those disorders, and the adaptations that can 
be implemented in regular education programs to address the instructional needs of pupils having 
these disorders. 
 
Eligibility Criteria 
As outlined above and in the Eligibility Worksheet. 

SPECIFIC LEARNING DISABILITY (SLD) 
California Code of Regulations, Title 5, Article 3.1 Section 3030 (b)(10) 

A disorder in one or more of the basic psychological processes involved in understanding or in 
using language, spoken, or written, that may have manifested itself in the imperfect ability to 
listen, think, speak, read, write, spell, or do mathematical calculations, including conditions such 
as perceptual disabilities, brain injury, minimal brain dysfunction, dyslexia, and developmental 
aphasia. The basic psychological processes include attention, visual processing, auditory 
processing, sensory-motor skills, cognitive abilities including association, conceptualization and 
expression. 

(A) Specific learning disabilities do not include learning problems that are primarily the result of 
visual, hearing, or motor disabilities, of intellectual disability, of emotional disturbance, or of 
environmental, cultural, or economic disadvantage. 

(B) In determining whether a pupil has a specific learning disability, the public agency may 
consider whether a pupil has a severe discrepancy between intellectual ability and achievement 
in oral expression, listening comprehension, written expression, basic reading skill, reading 
comprehension, mathematical calculation, or mathematical reasoning. The decision as to 
whether a severe discrepancy exists shall take into account all relevant material which is available 
on the pupil. No single score or product of scores, test or procedure shall be used as the sole 
criterion for the decisions of the IEP team as to the pupil's eligibility for special education. In 
determining the existence of a severe discrepancy, the IEP team shall use the following 
procedures: 

1. When standardized tests are considered to be valid for a specific pupil, a severe 
discrepancy is demonstrated by: first, converting into common standard scores, using a 
mean of 100 and standard deviation of 15, the achievement test score and the intellectual 
ability test score to be compared; second, computing the difference between these 
common standard scores; and third, comparing this computed difference to the standard 
criterion which is the product of 1.5 multiplied by the standard deviation of the distribution 
of computed differences of students taking these achievement and ability tests. A 
computed difference which equals or exceeds this standard criterion, adjusted by one 
standard error of measurement, the adjustment not to exceed 4 common standard score 
points, indicates a severe discrepancy when such discrepancy is corroborated by other 
assessment data which may include other tests, scales, instruments, observations and 
work samples, as appropriate. 

2. When standardized tests are invalid for a specific pupil, the discrepancy shall be measured 
by alternative means as specified on the assessment plan. 



36  

3. If the standardized tests do not reveal a severe discrepancy as defined in subdivisions 1. 
or 2. above, the IEP team may find that a severe discrepancy does exist, provided that the 
team documents in a written report that the severe discrepancy between ability and 
achievement exists because of a disorder in one or more of the basic psychological 
processes. The report shall include a statement of the area, the degree, and the basis and 
method used in determining the discrepancy. The report shall contain information 
considered by the team which shall include, but not be limited to: 

a. Data obtained from standardized assessment instruments 
b. Information provided by the parent 
c. Information provided by the pupil's present teacher 
d. Evidence of the pupil's performance in the regular and/or special education 

classroom obtained from observations, work samples, and group test scores 
e. Consideration of the pupil's age, particularly for young children and 
f. Any additional relevant information 

4. A severe discrepancy shall not be primarily the result of limited school experience or poor 
school attendance. 

(C) Whether or not a pupil exhibits a severe discrepancy as described in subdivision (b)(10)(B) 
above, a pupil may be determined to have a specific learning disability if: 

 
1. The pupil does not achieve adequately for the pupil's age or to meet State-approved 

grade-level standards in one or more of the following areas, when provided with learning 
experiences and instruction appropriate for the pupil's age or State-approved grade-level 
standards: 

a. Oral expression 
b. Listening comprehension 
c. Written expression 
d. Basic reading skills 
e. Reading fluency skills 
f. Reading comprehension 
g. Mathematics calculation 
h. Mathematics problem solving 

2. The pupil does not make sufficient progress to meet age or State-approved grade-level 
standards in one or more of the areas identified in subdivision (b)(10)(C)(1) of this section 
when using a process based on the pupil's response to scientific, research-based 
intervention 

 
OR 

 
1. The pupil exhibits a pattern of strengths and weaknesses in performance, achievement, or 

both, relative to age, State-approved grade-level standards, or intellectual development, 
that is determined by the group to be relevant to the identification of a specific learning 
disability, using appropriate assessments, consistent with 34 C.F.R. sections 300.304 and 
300.305 

AND 

 
The findings under subdivisions (b)(10)(C)(1) and (2) of this section are not primarily the result of: 



37  

 
1. A visual, hearing, or motor disability 
2. Intellectual disability 
3. Emotional disturbance 
4. Cultural factors 
5. Environmental or economic disadvantage 
6. Limited English proficiency. 

To ensure that underachievement in a pupil suspected of having a specific learning disability is 
not due to lack of appropriate instruction in reading or math, the group making the decision must 
consider: 

 
1. Data that demonstrate that prior to, or as a part of, the referral process, the pupil was 

provided appropriate instruction in general education settings, delivered by qualified 
personnel; and 

2. Data-based documentation of repeated assessments of achievement at reasonable 
intervals, reflecting formal assessment of student progress during instruction, which was 
provided to the pupil's parents. 

In determining whether a pupil has a specific learning disability, the public agency must ensure 
that the pupil is observed in the pupil's learning environment in accordance with 34 C.F.R. section 
300.310. In the case of a child of less than school age or out of school, a qualified professional 
must observe the child in an environment appropriate for a child of that age. The eligibility 
determination must be documented in accordance with 34 C.F.R. section 300.311. 

 
Eligibility Criteria 
As outlined above and in the Eligibility Worksheet. 

Speech and Language Impairment (SLI) 
California Code of Regulations, Title 5, Article 3.1 Section 3030 (b)(11) 
A pupil has a language or speech disorder as defined in Section 56333 of the Education Code, and 
it is determined that the pupil’s disorder meets one or more of the following criteria: 

1. Articulation Disorder 
a. The pupil displays reduced intelligibility or an inability to use the speech 

mechanism which significantly interferes with communication and attracts 
adverse attention. Significant interference in communication occurs when the 
pupil’s production of single or multiple speech sounds n a developmental scale of 
articulation competency is below that expected for his or her chronological age or 
developmental level, and which adversely affects educational performance. 

b. A pupil does not meet the criteria for an articulation disorder if the sole assessed 
disability is an abnormal swallowing pattern. 

2. Abnormal Voice 
a. A pupil has an abnormal voice which is characterized by persistent, defective voice 

quality, pitch, or loudness. 
3. Fluency Disorders 

a. A pupil has a fluency disorder when the flow of verbal expression including rate 
and rhythm adversely affects communication between the pupil and listener. 



38  

4. Language Disorder 
a. The pupil has an expressive or receptive language disorder when he or she meets 

one of the following criteria: 
i. The pupil scores at least 1.5 standard deviations below the mean, or below 

the 7th percentile, for his or her chronological age or developmental level 
on two or more standardized tests in one or more of the following areas of 
language development: morphology, syntax, semantics, or pragmatics. 
When standardized tests are considered to be invalid for the specific pupil, 
the expected language performance level shall be determined by 
alternative means as specified on the assessment plan, or 

ii. The pupil scores at least 1.5 standard deviations below the mean or the 
score is below the 7th percentile for his or her chronological age or 
developmental level on one or more standardized tests in one of the areas 
listed above and displays inappropriate or inadequate usage of expressive 
or receptive language as measured by a representative spontaneous or 
elicited sample of a minimum of fifty utterances. The language sample 
must be recorded or transcribed and analyzed, and the results included in 
the assessment report. If the pupil is unable to produce this sample, the 
language, speech, and hearing specialist shall document why a fifty 
utterance sample was not obtainable and the contexts in which attempts 
were made to elicit the sample. When standardized tests are considered to 
be invalid for the specific pupil, the expected language performance level 
shall be determined by alternative means as specified in the assessment 
plan. 

Eligibility Criteria 
As outlined above and in the Eligibility Worksheet. 

 
TRAUMATIC BRAIN INJURY (TBI) 
California Code of Regulations, Title 5, Article 3.1 Section 3030 (b)(12) 
An acquired injury to the brain caused by an external physical force, resulting in total or partial 
functional disability or psychosocial impairment, or both, that adversely affects a child's 
educational performance. The term applies to open or closed head injuries resulting in 
impairments in one or more areas, such as cognition; language; memory; attention; reasoning; 
abstract thinking; judgment; problem-solving; sensory, perceptual, and motor abilities; 
psychosocial behavior; physical functions; information processing; and speech. The term does not 
apply to brain injuries that are congenital or degenerative, or to brain injuries induced by birth 
trauma. 

Eligibility Criteria 
As outlined above and in the Eligibility Worksheet. 

 
VISUAL IMPAIRMENT (VI) 
California Code of Regulations, Title 5, Article 3.1 Section 3030 (b)(13) 
An impairment in vision that, even with correction, adversely affects a child's educational 
performance. The term includes both partial sight and blindness. 



39  

Eligibility Criteria 
As outlined above and in the Eligibility Worksheet. 

Considerations for English Learners 
It is critical to differentiate between a student who is not achieving in the classroom because 
English is not his/her primary language and a student who is not achieving due to a handicapping 
condition. 

Note: For a student to be eligible under Specific Learning Disability or Speech and Language 
Impaired, a student must be identified as having a language disorder or learning disability in their 
primary language because of assessment in his/her primary language. 

 
Exiting Criteria 
A student shall no longer be eligible for a particular special education program/service when the 
IEP team determines that: 

1. The individual is no longer an individual with exceptional needs as evidenced by no longer 
meeting eligibility criteria based on the data gathered and considered by the assessment 
team. 

2. The student’s needs are better served by alternative categorical or general education 
program(s) and/or services(s). 

 
The decision to exit a student is based on the least restrictive environment where the student 
can receive a meaningful benefit from the educational program as well as the child no longer 
exhibiting needs that require special education services and support. 
If the team determines that a child is ready to exit from Special Education the process should 
include the following components and considerations: 

1. The determination of the Individualized Education Program team to recommend exiting 
from special education should be supported by assessment results in the form of a written 
report. 

2. A staffing may be arranged by the school site team with a Special Education 
Director/Designee if needed in order to review assessment results and discuss placement 
options and any special considerations. 

3. General Education team will be notified and invited to participate in the staffing and IEP 
meeting. 

4. The Individualized Education Program team will have a conversation about the structures 
and accommodations that will be in place to support the student’s transition into a 
general education setting. 

5. All stakeholders will be involved in discussing the transition support and communicating 
regarding the change in placement occurring with the student. 

6. Parents and the receiving general education teacher will be notified of whom to contact 
with any questions or concerns that arise after the child is exited from Special Education 
services. 

 
Legal Reference 
Education Code 56026 and 56320: Article 3.1, Section 3030. 
A child shall qualify as an individual with exceptional needs, pursuant to Education Code section 



40  

56026, if the results of the assessment as required by Education Code section 56320 demonstrate 
that the degree of the child's impairment as described in subdivisions (b)(1) through (b)(13) 
requires special education in one or more of the program options authorized by Education Code 
section 56361. The decision as to whether the assessment results demonstrate that the degree of 
the child's impairment requires special education shall be made by the IEP team, including 
personnel in accordance with Education Code section 56341(b). The IEP team shall consider all 
the relevant material which is available on the child. No single score or product of scores shall be 
used as the sole criterion for the decision of the IEP team as to the child's eligibility for special 
education. 



41  

Section 5: Individualized Education Program 
(IEP) 

Introduction 
The Individualized Education Program (IEP) is a written plan determined in a meeting of the IEP 
team, including the parent, and developed for each child with a disability. 

The IEP will show a direct relationship between any assessment, present levels of performance, 
identified areas of need, the student’s goals, and the educational services to be provided. 

 
Education Code 56342 “An individualized education program team shall meet whenever any of 
the following occurs: 

a. A pupil has received a formal assessment 
b. The pupil demonstrates a lack of anticipated progress 
c. The parent or teacher requests a meeting to develop, review, or revise the 

individualized education program 
d. At least annually, to review the pupil’s progress, the individualized education 

program, and the appropriateness of placement, and to make any necessary 
revisions. The individualized education program team conducting the annual 
review shall consist of those persons specified in subdivision (b) of Section 56341 
(see below). Other individuals may participate in the annual review if they possess 
expertise or knowledge essential for the review.” 

e. When a student is transitioning from Preschool to T/K or Kindergarten. 

 
The Law and the Individualized Education Program 
56340. Each district shall initiate and conduct meetings for the purposes of developing, 
reviewing, and revising the Individualized Education Program of each individual with exceptional 
needs. 

The Role of the IEP Team 
IEP Team is responsible for developing, reviewing, and revising IEP’s for students receiving help 
in the Special Education Department by the Instructional Aides and/or the Education 
Specialist/Special Education Director/Designee at Barona Charter School. 
 
IEP Team Members 
Required Members 
1. One or both of the pupil's parents/legal guardians, or surrogate. 

● If parents are divorced or separated, and both parents retain educational rights, BOTH 
parents must be notified of the meeting. Only one needs to attend. 

2. A general education teacher if the student is, or may be, participating in general education. 
● It is required that a general education teacher be part of an IEP team when developing, 

reviewing, and revising the student's IEP to the extent appropriate. 



42  

● If the student has more than one general education teacher responsible for carrying out 
a portion of the IEP, Barona Charter School may designate which teacher or teachers will 
serve as team members considering the best interest of the student. 

3. At least one special education teacher, or where appropriate, at least one special education 
provider. The special education teacher or service provider should be the person who is or 
will be responsible for implementing the IEP. 

4. LEA/Barona Charter School Representative who is: 
● qualified to provide or supervise the provision of special education services 
● Is knowledgeable about the general education curriculum 
● Is knowledgeable about the availability of resources 
● Has the authority to commit Barona Charter School resources and ensure that the 

IEP services will actually be provided. 

5. An individual who can interpret the instructional implications of evaluation results. This 
person may be one of the above members. 

Additional Team Members: 
6. Other individuals who have knowledge or special expertise regarding the student, including 

related services personnel. 
 

7. The student with exceptional needs, if appropriate 
● If transition is being discussed, the student must be invited to participate at the IEP team 

meeting. 
 

8. Agencies providing transition services. 
 

9. If the public agency is considering a private school placement, it shall ensure that a 
representative of the private school attends the meeting or participates through other 
means. 

10. Part C Early Intervention Service Coordinator (if parent requests) 
 
When does the IEP team meet? 

● A student has received a formal assessment. (Initial or triennial) 
● A student's placement or instruction is to be initiated, changed, or terminated. (Initial, 

amendment, transition) 
● A demonstrated lack of progress exists in a special education program (amendment) 
● Within 30 days of a written request from a parent to review the IEP. 
● A teacher requests an IEP review. 
● At least annually for review of the IEP (annual) 
● For a re-evaluation every three years and reestablishment of eligibility for special 

education. (triennial) 
● Within 30 days after the school year begins for referrals made within 20 days prior to 

the end of the school year. (Initial or triennial) 
● Within 30 days of a pupil's transfer into the SELPA from a previous special education 



43  

placement. (30-day interim placement review) 
● Within 60 days of receipt of written parental consent for assessment. (Initial or 

triennial) 
● As part of disciplinary proceedings related to suspension/expulsion of students with 

disabilities. (Manifestation determination) 

Notice of Meeting 
The law states under 34 CFR § 300.322 - Parent participation in the IEP Process. 
Each public agency must take steps to ensure that one or both parents of a child with a disability 
are present at each IEP Team meeting or are afforded the opportunity to participate, including- 
(1) Notifying parents of the meeting early enough to ensure that they will have an opportunity 
to attend. 
(2) Scheduling the meeting at a mutually agreed on time and place. 
(3) The notice required under this section must: 

● Indicate the purpose, time, and location of the meeting and who will be in attendance. 
● Inform the parents of the provisions in § 300.321(a)(6) and (c) (relating to the 

participation of other individuals on the IEP Team who have knowledge or special 
expertise about the child), and § 300.321(f) (relating to the participation of the Part C 
service coordinator or other representatives of the Part C system at the initial IEP Team 
meeting for a child previously served under Part C of the Act). The Notice of Meeting in 
SEIS includes all the legal requirements, as long as it is completed correctly and in its 
entirety. 

● To meet the legal requirements of ensuring parent participation, ALL IEP meetings should 
be scheduled far enough in advance to afford parents at least 10 day’s notice, in writing 
via the SEIS Notice of Meeting. 

 
Audio-Recorded IEP Meetings 

The state of California allows for IEP meetings to be audio recorded, but not to be videotaped. 

The parent or guardian has the right to electronically record the proceedings of IEP meetings on an 
audio recorder. The parent or guardian must notify the members of the IEP team of their intent 
to record a meeting at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. 

When a parent informs the district of his/her intent to record an IEP meeting, it is the practice of 
Barona Charter School not to record. Parents should be directed to bring their own recording 
equipment and be responsible for starting and stopping the recording. At the conclusion of the IEP 
meeting, ensure that the audio recording has been stopped before engaging in non-IEP related 
conversations. 

The Function of an IEP Meeting 
Initial IEP Meeting is held upon completion of the Initial Evaluation, the IEP team meets to 
determine whether the student is an individual with exceptional needs and to discuss the 
assessment results, determine eligibility, review the educational recommendations, and develop 
an IEP if the student qualifies for Special Education Services. 

Annual IEP Meeting is held at least once an annual basis (never longer than 12 months from the 



44  

last annual), the IEP team reviews the student’s progress and the appropriateness of placement, 
and makes any necessary revisions based on that review. 

 
Triennial IEP Meetings are held at least every 3 years, when the IEP team must re-evaluate a 
student with an IEP to determine if the student continues to be eligible for special education 
services and to determine the student’s educational needs. The Triennial Review should be 
combined with the Annual IEP whenever possible to align the dates. 
 
Amendment IEP Meeting is when an additional IEP meeting may be necessary to address 
components of the student’s IEP and make minor changes prior to the annual IEP or make 
corrections. 
 
Kindergarten Transition IEP Meetings are held due to California Education Code section 56445 
(a) requires that children eligible for and transitioning to a kindergarten age program be 
reassessed and a meeting held prior to entering an elementary setting. 

A parent may request an IEP Meeting outside of the scheduled review date. This meeting must 
occur within 30 calendar days of the written parent request (not counting days between the 
pupil’s regular school sessions, terms, or days of school vacation in excess of 5 school days). It is 
the responsibility of the Special Education Director/Designee to coordinate IEP meetings for 
students on his/her caseload and ensure that the Annual/Triennial timeline is met. 

Best Practice 
● Start the scheduling process far in advance 
● Schedule the IEP meeting at least 30 days prior to the due date to account for meetings 

that get cancelled 
● If you do not receive the signed Meeting Notice back within a week of sending, call the 

parent to confirm that they received it and can meet. Ask the parent to sign the Meeting 
Notice and return it 

● If you do not receive the signed Meeting Notice back within a week and you are unable 
to reach the parent, send another meeting notice home and reach out again in a week if 
you have not received it back 

● If the parent verbally agreed to an IEP meeting date and time, the Special Education 
Director/Designee will follow up via written Notice of Meeting with the agreed upon date 
and time 

 
Holding the IEP Meeting Without Parent Participation 
Pursuant to IDEA at 34 CFR Sec. 330.345 (d), Conducting an IEP meeting without a parent in 
attendance 

A meeting may be conducted without a parent in attendance if the school district is unable to 
convince the parents that they should attend. In this case, the Barona Charter School must have 
a record of its attempts to arrange a mutually agreed on time and place, such as these: 
(1) detailed records of telephone calls made or attempted and the results of those calls  
(2) copies of correspondence sent to the parents and any responses received 
(3) detailed records of visits made to the parent’s home or place of employment and the results 
of those visits. 



45  

Barona Charter School must make a “good faith effort” to include the parent in the IEP process. 
Because “good faith effort” is not measurable, it is the responsibility of Barona Charter School to 
prove. It is the responsibility of the Special Education Director/Designee to show “good faith 
effort” in convincing the parent that their participation in the IEP process is important. The best 
way to show “good faith effort” is to send multiple Notice of Meetings and document any efforts 
to work with parents to problem solve barriers in participation. 

 
If no parent or guardian can attend the meeting, Barona Charter School shall use other methods 
to ensure parent or guardian participation, including individual or conference telephone calls. The 
Special Education Director/Designee should work with the site Principal for support with 
challenging situations. 

If the Special Education Director/Designee has offered, via written Notice of Meeting, three 
unique dates and/or times for the IEP meeting and has documented efforts to include the parent 
and is still unable to convince the parent to attend the IEP meeting; the Special Education 
Director/Designee will: 

1. Send home the Unable to Obtain Parent Attendance at an IEP Meeting After Multiple Attempts 
Letter (contact Special Education Director/Designee and School Administration) 
2. Hold the IEP meeting with all IEP members 
3. Send home a copy of the IEP with IEP team member signatures. 
4. Call parents to schedule a time to review the IEP either in person or via phone. 
5. Place a copy of the IEP, signed by IEP members in attendance, copies of the Meeting Notices 
and accompanying letter in the student’s Special Education file. 
6. If a parent returns IEP signed, place a copy of the signature page in the student Special 
Education file and upload into SEIS. 

Note: If the team is UNABLE to obtain parent signature/consent for new IEP, the services on the 
last agreed upon IEP will be implemented with the new IEP goals. A student’s services and/or 
placement cannot be changed without parent’s consent. Contact the Special Education 
Director/Designee for next steps. If parent responded, via Notice of Meeting, that they did not 
intend to participate in the IEP meeting and request that the meeting proceed without them, the 
school may hold the meeting and proceed without the parent (follow steps #3-6 above). The 
Special Education Director/Designee should convey to the parent(s) the importance of their 
attendance and offer to reschedule the meeting at a time that is mutually convenient 

Amending an IEP 
Changes made to an IEP after the initial or annual review may be made through an amendment. 
In some circumstances the parent and school may agree not to convene an IEP meeting to make 
minor changes to the Annual IEP. In other circumstances, the parent and school may determine 
to convene an IEP Amendment Meeting to make more significant changes to the Annual IEP. Any 
addition or discontinuation of services is considered a significant change and should occur in an 
IEP meeting. When an Amendment to the IEP is made, the Special Education Director/Designee 
is responsible for the following: 

Amendment not Requiring an IEP (Minor Change) 
Minor changes include correcting clerical errors such as dates, updating front page information, 



46  

etc. 
1. Discuss the recommended changes to the IEP with the Parent and obtain verbal consent 

for the changes. 
2. Document the changes in an IEP Amendment form in SEIS. 
3. Update any IEP pages necessary to reflect changes (i.e. change to a goal must be updated 

on the goal page.) 
4. Case Manager or Related Service Provider signs the Amendment page 
5. Send 2 copies of the Amendment and IEP pages to the parent. Parent should keep one 

Amendment for their records and return signed copy to the Special Education 
Director/Designee /Related Service Provider. 

6. Attach signed amendment and updated IEP pages to the CURRENT IEP in the student 
Special Education file. 

7. If the Amendment is initiated by a Related Service provider, the Related Service Provider 
is responsible for the above, but the Special Education Director/Designee should be 
notified of Amendment. 

NOTE: This process is never used to replace the Annual/Triennial Review meetings. 
 
Amendment Requiring an IEP Meeting (Significant Changes) 
Significant changes include changes to goals, services, present level information 

1. Schedule an IEP meeting and notify parents via written Notice of Meeting. 
2. At the IEP meeting documents the changes in an IEP Amendment form in SEIS and update 

any IEP pages necessary to reflect changes (IE: change to goal must be updated on the 
goal page.) 

3. IEP Team members sign the IEP Amendment. 
4. Attach signed Amendment and updated IEP pages to the CURRENT IEP in the student 

Special Education file. 
5. Provide parents with a copy of the signed Amendment. 
6. If the Amendment is initiated by a Related Service provider, the Related Service Provider 

is responsible for the above, but the Special Education Director/Designee should be 
notified of the Amendment. 

The Purpose of the General Education Teacher at the IEP Meeting 
The IEP team for each child with a disability must include at least one regular education teacher 
of the child (if the child is, or may be, participating in the regular education environment) (see 
§300.344(a)(2)). 

 
Since all students with disabilities in Barona Charter School are participating in the general 
education environment, all IEP meetings must include a general education teacher on the team. 
The General Education teacher is essential to the discussion about the child's involvement and 
progress in the general curriculum and participation in the regular education environment. 
Regulations state that the general education teacher must, to the extent appropriate, participate 
in the development, review, and revision of the child’s IEP, including: 

1. the determination of appropriate positive behavioral interventions and strategies for the 
child, and 

2. the determination of supplementary aids and services, program modifications, and 
supports for school personnel that will be provided for the child consistent with the IEP 



47  

content requirements in §300.347(a)(3). (See §300.346(e)) 
 

Excusal of IEP Team Members 
IDEA 2004 permits the excusal of certain IEP team members on occasion: 

● If the member’s area of curriculum or related service is not being modified or discussed 
● If the member’s area is being modified or discussed and the member submits written 

input to the parent and district members of the team beforehand 
● If an IEP team member is to be excused, parent must consent to the excusal in writing 

prior to the meeting. 
● If parent does not consent, the meeting must be rescheduled to be held with the IEP team 

member. 
● If a parent approves to the excusal of an IEP team member, the Special Education 

Director/Designee is responsible for completing excusal form in SEIS and sending it home 
for signature. 

● A copy of the form must be attached to the IEP and placed within the student’s Special 
Education file. 

After the Meeting 
Parents should leave each IEP meeting with a signed copy of the agreed upon IEP. The IEP should 
be affirmed in SEIS within 2 days. The original, affirmed signed IEP, shall be placed in the student’s 
special education file. It is the responsibility of the Special Education Director/Designee to ensure 
that all General Education teachers, Related Services Providers, and appropriate school staff have 
access to the IEP; are knowledgeable of the content of the IEP and are informed of their specific 
responsibilities related to implementing the IEP including but not limited to; the specific 
accommodations, modifications and supports that shall be provided for the student. 

After parental consent has been obtained, IEP implementation should occur “as soon as possible” 
(Ed. Code 65043i). If the Parent Refuses to Consent to the Annual/Triennial IEP. The school must 
seek to obtain informed consent from the parent before providing special education and related 
services to the student. Without consent to implement the proposed IEP, the previously signed 
IEP will continue to be implemented, unless the parent and the school agree otherwise. Having a 
current, approved IEP is of the utmost importance and action should be taken immediately if the 
parent does not consent. If the parent does not sign the IEP at the end of the meeting, document 
in the meeting notes, and contact your Special Education Director/Designee immediately. If the 
parent requests time to review the IEP before signing, follow up with the parent in a timely 
manner. 

IEP Facilitation 
• Introduction of team members 
• State purpose of Meeting 
• Provide parent a copy and explanation of Procedural Safeguards 
• Review meeting agenda 
• Review assessment results (if initial or triennial) 
• Determine if student meets/continues to meet special education eligibility (initial or 

triennial) 
• Review progress towards previous goals 



48  

• Develop new IEP (if continuing to qualify) 
 

Components of the Individualized Education Program (IEP) 
Front Page 

● Indicate purpose of meeting 
● Include student demographic information; check with parent/guardian to ensure current 

address, phone number, e-mail, etc. 
● Check dates to ensure accuracy (current IEP, next annual, last evaluation, next 

evaluation). Use the calculate last and calculate next buttons to ensure correct dates are 
recorded. 

● Ensure school of residence and school of attendance is accurate. 
● Indicate disability; Primary and Secondary, if applicable. (initial or triennial) 
● Explanation of how a student's disability affects involvement in the general curriculum. 

(initial or triennial) 
 

Present Levels of Academic Achievement and Functional Performance 
● Indicate student strengths, preferences, and interests. Include information gathered 

from parent. 
● Capture concerns of parents/guardians in relation to student’s educational progress. 
● Provide current achievement and functional performance levels across areas focusing on 

what the student CAN do. Areas to be addressed: 
○ Academic/Pre-academic/Functional Skills 

■ reading, writing, math, pre-academic/school readiness 
○ Communication Development 

■ If student receives speech services, collaborate with SLP to complete this 
section 

○ Gross/Fine Motor 
■ If student receives APE, OT, PT collaborate with service provider to 

complete this section 
○ Social/Emotional/Behavioral 
○ Health (include most recent vision and hearing screening from school nurse) 

■ Ask for parent input in updating health section 
■ Include medications/doses taken 

○ Pre-vocational/Vocational 
○ Adaptive/Daily Living Skills 

● indicate areas of need to be addressed in the goals 

Special Factors 
● Indicate student need for assistive technology 

○ Access to computer, word processor 
○ Need for communication devices (AAC) 

● Describe low incidence services, equipment, materials 
○ Low incidence disabilities include OI, DHH, VI 

● Describe educational considerations for students who are visually impaired or hard of 
hearing 

● Describe language needs for students who are English Language Learners 
● Indicate whether a student’s behavior impedes the learning of self or others 



49  

○ If YES, describe behavior in observable terms (what does behavior look like) 
○ Specify positive behavior supports, strategies and interventions to be used 
○ If YES is marked, IEP must include behavior goal(s) 
○ Indicate whether student has a Behavior Intervention Plan 

Participation in Statewide Assessments 
● California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress (CAASPP) 

○ Math and ELA Grades 3-8 and 11; Science Grades 5, 8 and once in high school 
○ Indicate necessary accommodations for each area 

● California Alternate Assessment (CAA) 
○ Students with most significant disabilities working in a curriculum based on 

alternate standards 
● English Language Proficiency Assessment (ELPAC) 

○ indicate testing supports needed 
● Physical Fitness Assessment 

○ Grades 5, 7 and 9 
○ indicate accommodations needed 

● Indicate accommodations/modifications for other state and district assessments 
● Same or similar accommodations to those of state assessment should be provided for 

curriculum and school assessment 

Goals/ Benchmarks/ Objectives 
● There must be a direct correlation between the annual goal(s) and the present level of 

educational performance. 
● Goals should be written for each agreed upon area of need. 

● See areas outlined in present levels section 
● Indicate area of need goal will address 
● Include baseline statement 

● Baselines should be specific about current level of functioning in each goal area 
● Baseline should be directly related to the proposed goal 

● Example baseline based on sample goal below: 
● “Tom reads first grade level text at 75 WPM with an average of 9 errors” 

● Goals must be measurable and include the following components: timeframe, conditions, 
behavior, criterion, mastery, measurement 

Example: By August 18, 2020, when presented with 2nd grade level text, Tom will 
read 96 WPM with 5 or fewer errors in 8 out of 10 opportunities as measured by 
teacher kept records. 

● Goals should be specific about expected progress in one year and how the student will 
get there (e.g. prompts) 

● Goals answer the questions: 
● Who? will achieve 
● What? skill or behavior will be targeted 
● How? in what manner or at what level 
● Where? in what setting or under what conditions 
● When? beginning when, in what increments, ending when 

● Determine who will be responsible for implementing and recording progress towards goal 
(may be more than one person) 

● Benchmarks/short-term objectives are required only for children with disabilities who 



50  

take alternate assessments aligned to alternate achievement standards and preschool 
students (2004 Amendments to IDEA) 

● Benchmarks/Objectives should identify reasonable steps between the baseline and the 
goal 

● If only modifications or accommodations are needed, no IEP goal for that area is required. 
● Progress reporting 

● Progress towards goals should be reported each reporting period (aligned to school 
report cards) 

● At the annual meeting, review goal progress for met or not met in each area. 

Offer of FAPE/Services 
● Describe service options considered (continuum of services) 

○ General Education with accommodations or modifications, General Education 
with Special Education related services, special day class, specialized regional 
program, non-public school 

○ Include a statement of service options considered: 
■ “The IEP team considered the continuum of service options, including, but 

not limited to general education, designated instructional supports, 
specialized academic instruction, special day class and non-public school. 
Considering   needs, the IEP teams specific service 
recommendations are outlined below:” 

● Consider potential harmful effects when choosing LRE. Examples include 
○ missing classroom instruction when pulled out for services 
○ decreased access to typical peers when in a self-contained classroom 

 
Accommodations / Modifications 

● Modification—a change in what is being taught to or expected from the student. 
● Example: Making an assignment easier so the student is not doing the same 

level of work as other students. 
● Accommodation— a change that helps a student overcome or work around a disability, 

provides a greater level of access to the learning environment 
● Example: Allowing a student who has trouble writing to give his answers 

orally; providing extended time to complete assignments 
● Common modifications or accommodations 

● Scheduling (extra time, breaking up assignments) 
● Setting (small group, one-on-one) 
● Materials (audio books, copies of notes, large print) 
● Instruction (reducing difficulty, reducing reading level) 
● Student response (answer orally, use word processor) 

● Supplementary Aids and Services-- those services and other supports that are provided 
in general education classes or other educationally related settings to enable students 
with disabilities to be educated with nondisabled students to the maximum extent 
appropriate. 

● Examples of Supplementary Aids and Services include: 
● Supports to address environmental needs 
● Levels of staff support needed 
● Planning time 



51  

● Specialized equipment needs 
● Pacing and presentation of instruction 
● Materials 
● Personnel training 

 
Special Education and Related Services 

● Indicate Special Education services including: 
● How often (number of times per day or week) 
● How long (number of minutes) 
● Where (e.g. general education classroom, speech room, etc.) 
● When (starting and ending dates) 

● Related Services--Sometimes support services that are developmental, or corrective are 
required in order for a student with a disability to benefit from his or her education. These 
can be, but are not limited to: 

● Audiology services 
● Counseling services 
● Occupational therapy 
● Orientation and mobility services 
● Parent counseling and training 
● Physical therapy 
● Psychological services 
● Recreation 
● Rehabilitation counseling services 
● School health services 
● Sign language interpreters 
● Social work services in schools 
● Speech and language pathology services 
● Transportation 

Extended School Year (ESY) 
● ESY will be provided based on the student’s individual needs as reviewed through the ESY 

checklist (SEIS) to determine regression/recoupment 

Educational Setting 
● Indicate district of service and school of attendance 
● Indicate school type, federal setting, and preschool setting (if applicable) 
● Indicate participation in physical education 
● If services are NOT provided at school of residence, indicate rationale for school of 

attendance 
● Examples: “school of residence does not have necessary program available” 

● Calculate percent of time student is both outside and inside the general education 
environment (see SPED calculator) 

● Participation statement 
● “Student will not participate in the general education environment for (reading, 

writing and math) because (student requires small group and individual instruction 
with modified curriculum and supports in order to progress in the general 



52  

education environment and to meet IEP goals).” 
● Indicate promotion criteria 
● Indicate how and when parents will be informed of progress 
● Indicate outside service agencies student is affiliated with 
● Indicate whether student is eligible for Mental Health Services 

● Mental health language and services must be included on the IEP 
● Indicate whether student will need transportation 
● For students in 8th grade and higher, indicate anticipated graduation course 

● Diploma 
● Certificate of completion 

Signature and Parent Consent 
● All participating members of the IEP team will sign and date for attendance at the meeting 
● Parents will initial relevant areas of consent 

○ Provide explanation of each area if necessary 
● Final parent signature and date allow IEP to be implemented 
● Ask Medi-Cal question (state mandate) and have parent sign if in agreement 
● “If my child is or may become eligible for public benefits (Medi-Cal), I authorize the district 

to access Medi-Cal health insurance benefits for applicable services.” 

Meeting Notes 
● capture relevant team discussions, parent concerns, additional parent input 
● document parent and team consent as each area of the IEP document is discussed 

Key points for effective IEP Team Meetings 
 

● Determination of Special Education eligibility and placement must include parent 
participation and consent. 

● The IEP decisions must be made only with the active participation of all team members, 
including the parents, during the meeting. 

● In no case should decisions concerning eligibility or placement be made prior to the IEP Team 
Meeting. 

● Team members should be aware that individuals with disabilities are required to meet 
eligibility in only one eligibility category. 

● There must be a direct correlation between the IEP goals and services provided. 
● A student's eligibility for Special Education does not dictate placement. 
● The IEP drives the program; the program does not drive the IEP. 

 
 

  



53  

Section 6: Special Education Programs 
and Services 

Introduction 
It is the policy of the local educational agencies (LEAs) in the East County Special Education Local 
Plan Area (SELPA) that to the maximum extent appropriate, children with disabilities, including 
children in public or private institutions or other care facilities, are educated with children who 
are not disabled. Special classes, separate schooling, or other removal of children with disabilities 
from the general educational environment, occurs only when the nature or severity of the 
disability of a child is such that education in regular classes with the use of supplementary aids 
and services cannot be achieved satisfactorily. 

Continuum of Placement & Programming Options 
Barona Charter School ensures that a continuum of program options is available to meet the 
unique needs of individuals with exceptional needs for special education and related services, as 
required by the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA). Special Education is a service, 
not a place. All students that are eligible for Special Education services shall be fully educated 
with their non-disabled peers appropriate in order to ensure that they are receiving a Free 
Appropriate Public Education (FAPE) in the Least Restrictive Environment (LRE). 
 
A Free Appropriate Public Education (FAPE) consists of the special education and related services 
that are provided to the student at public expense, under public supervision and direction and 
without charge to the parents. 
 
Services must meet the standards established by state and federal law and be provided in 
accordance with each individual student’s IEP to provide educational benefit. 

 
The continuum of program options shall include, but not necessarily be limited to, all of the 
following or any combination of the following: 
● General Education Programs 
● Related Services 
● Specialized Academic Instruction (SAI) up to 49% of the day 
● Specialized Academic Instruction (SAI) 51% or more of the day 
● Nonpublic, Nonsectarian Schools 
● Residential Program 
● Instruction in the Home or Hospital 

 
The appropriate level of service for a student is determined by the IEP team based upon the 
student’s identified areas of need and goals, not on the student’s disability category. Level of 
service is based on evaluation/assessment results and data gathered for Present Levels of 
Performance that lead to identified needs requiring goal development. Related services are 
provided as required for the student to benefit from his/her educational program. 

Students with highly specialized service needs may require placement in one of the neighboring 
District’s Specialized Programs. An IEP team will include the Special Education 



54  

Director/Designee prior to offering a specialized placement. 
 

Least Restrictive Environment 
The philosophy of least restrictive environment applies to all students in special education. 
Maximum interaction between disabled and nondisabled students occurs at Barona Charter 
School when appropriate and in accordance with the student’s Individualized Education Plan. 

Special Education Program (Students with Mild/Moderate Disabilities) 
The Barona Charter School Special Education Program is an integrated model providing direct 
and indirect services to students. Students may be referred by teachers, parents, and/or through 
the Student Study Team/Response to Intervention process. After comprehensive assessment and 
upon the determination of an eligibility, students may receive services in the Special Education 
Program. Placement and service recommendations are based on the required level of service(s) 
to implement the student’s individualized goals and objectives. Special and general educators 
work cooperatively to implement Individualized Education Program goals in the least restrictive 
environment. Students in the Special Education Program may receive instruction in the regular 
classroom when appropriate under the direction of the Special Education teacher or Instructional 
Aide or individualized small group instruction on a pull-out basis. When adaptations or 
modifications of regular curriculum do not meet students’ needs, specialized instruction will be 
implemented. 

 
The major focus of the special education program is to serve students with identified disabilities. 
Through the use of a pre-referral problem-solving process, Student Study Team, the Special 
Education Teacher may work in conjunction with the Response to Intervention (RTI) and General 
Education staff through shared teaching strategies/instructional materials. 
 
The Special Education Teacher serves students in the least restrictive environment to maximize 
learning and increase self-esteem. The integrated resource specialist program functions by 
having special and general educators work collaboratively to contribute skills and resources to 
carry out IEP goals. 

 
Related Services 
Related services refers to developmental, corrective, and other supportive services as are 
required to assist a child with a disability to benefit from special education, and includes, but not 
limited to: 
Speech-Language Pathology 
Audiology Services 
Interpreting Services 
Psychological Services 
Physical and Occupational Therapy 
Counseling Services 
Orientation and Mobility Services 
DHH or VI Services 
Adapted Physical Education 
Transportation 
Health and Nursing 



55  

Intensive Behavior Services 

Related Services are provided throughout the full continuum of educational settings in the Least 
Restrictive Environment. Due to the size of Barona Charter School, the service provider for the 
related services may be through the SELPA or contracted service provider. 

 
Related Services DOES NOT include a medical device that is surgically implanted, the optimization 
of that device’s functioning, maintenance of that device, or the replacement of that device, such 
as a cochlear implant. 

How does a student qualify for Related Services? 
After the completion of an assessment the IEP team meets to review assessment results and 
determine whether the student requires related services to benefit from special education. (The 
IEP team includes at minimum: Parent, Special Education Director/Designee, Education 
Specialist, Administrator, General Education Teacher, and Service Provider conducting the 
Assessment.) Related Service providers work with students in groups or on a one-to-one basis, 
either in a general education classroom, a special education classroom, or other appropriate 
setting. Related Services instruction focuses on the goals in the student's IEP. The Special 
Education Director/Designee is responsible for notifying all related service providers of upcoming 
IEPs of students on his/her caseload. Speech and Language Pathologists are considered Case 
Managers for students who meet eligibility for Special Education with a Speech and/or Language 
Impairment and receive no Specialized Academic Instruction. 
 
Speech and Language Therapy 
Speech and language services are provided for children who meet state eligibility criteria in one 
or more of the following areas: receptive and/or expressive language, articulation/phonology, 
voice, fluency, or social/pragmatic language skills which can negatively impact a student’s 
educational performance. 

 
Students may be referred by teachers, parents, and/or the Student Study Team. After thorough 
assessment, any student in the school meeting eligibility criteria may receive speech and 
language services. Goals and objectives are determined based on the results of the evaluation 
and are developed to improve students’ speech and language skills as they relate to their ability 
to access their educational programs. Services may be structured to be integrated within the 
general or special education classroom setting, in a pull-out model, or in consultation with the 
student’s teacher. 

 
Levels of service are determined by the IEP team and are specified on the IEP. A decision to 
discontinue services must be predicated on an evaluation which demonstrates that the student's 
functioning is commensurate with their ability level, or their speech and language abilities fall 
within the average range. 

 
Orthopedically Impaired Program 
Students with orthopedic impairments (OI) attending schools within the East County SELPA may 
be referred for OI support by the Special Education Director/Designee. The OI program serves 
those students identified as having a severe orthopedic impairment which adversely affects 



56  

educational performance. Such orthopedic impairments include those caused by congenital 
anomalies, diseases, and other causes. Itinerant OI teacher specialists provide assistance and 
consultation as needed to school personnel, students, and families. Services provided include 
evaluating school and classroom environments to ensure physical access, obtaining, adapting, 
and modifying classroom furniture and equipment. Additional supports include facilitating 
educational access to the curriculum by providing instructional materials, information about 
appropriate accommodations and specific instructional strategies to increase engagement, 
participation, and achievement of students with orthopedic impairments. 

 
Counseling 
Counseling support services, supplementary to the regular social work counseling program, may 
be offered to implement social/emotional goals and objectives. These services are offered on a 
short-term basis as determined by the IEP team. When short term intervention is not sufficient, 
a referral to Mental Health Services through the Educationally Related Mental Health Services 
(ERMHS) process is considered by the IEP team. 
 
Occupational Therapy 
Eligible special education students may be referred for an occupational therapy evaluation. There 
may be interventions recommended to try in the General Education setting prior to full services 
being provided. If the interventions are unsuccessful, it may be decided to generate new 
strategies or refer the student for further assessment by completing an evaluation plan. In such 
case, the IEP process is followed. 

 
Itinerant Program for the Visually Impaired (VI) 
Students whose vision impairment adversely affects access to their educational program can be 
referred for Itinerant services from the East County SELPA VI Department. The referral is made 
by the Barona Charter School Special Education Director/Designee. The SELPA TVI (Teacher of the 
Visually Impaired) and/or Orientation and Mobility Teacher (O&M) audiologist will complete 
assessments and review medical records in order to determine the type and severity of visual 
impairment and to determine eligibility for services. The itinerant VI and/or O&M services are 
provided at the student’s school of attendance in accordance with the IEP. Services include 
teaching compensatory skills, consultation, and providing materials/equipment for individual 
student needs. After qualifying with a medical report regarding status of “corrected vision,” 
services are accessed via the IEP process. 

 
Audiological/Deaf and Hard of Hearing Itinerant Services (DHH) 
Students whose hearing impairment adversely affects progress in their educational program can 
be referred for Itinerant services from the East County SELPA Deaf and Hard of Hearing 
department. This department is based in the East County SELPA office at 924 East Main Street, El 
Cajon. The referral is made by the Barona Charter School Special Education Director/Designee. 
The SELPA DHH teacher and/or audiologist will complete assessments and review medical 
records to determine the type and severity of hearing loss and to determine eligibility for 
services. The itinerant DHH and/or audiologist services are provided at the student’s school of 
attendance in accordance with the IEP. 
 



57  

The Special Education Director/Designee and Barona Charter School IEP team shall also consider 
the continuum of services and programs for students residing in Barona Charter School area who 
are Deaf or Hard of Hearing (D/HH) and/or Visually Impaired (VI) and require an even more 
restrictive or specialized program. The Barona Charter School IEP team shall always consider LRE 
within the district first by providing Related Services at our Barona Charter School. However, due 
to the size of the Barona Charter School, when a student requires specialized programs and 
supports that are not available at Barona Charter School, alternative program and service options 
outside the school district are considered. Students in Barona who are enrolled in their resident 
school and require D/HH services are served by a D/HH Specialist through the East County SELPA. 
 
When a student has DHH, audiological, or VI services on the IEP, the Special Education 
Director/Designee shall share SEIS records with the assigned DHH, Audiology and VI Specialist 
and include these providers in all IEP meetings and assessments. 
 
Students in Barona who require specialized programs to receive FAPE are served through Inter 
or Intra SELPA agreements. The IEP teams shall consult with the Special Education 
Director/Designee to identify and access these program options. Some students who are DHH 
and/or VI require services and support in the most restrictive setting through one of the State 
Special Schools that provide services to students who are deaf, hard of hearing, blind, visually 
impaired, or deaf-blind. There are two specialized schools in California: The California Schools for 
the Deaf in Fremont and Riverside; and at The California School for the Blind in Fremont. 
Residential and day school programs are available to students from infancy to age 21 at the three 
State Schools. The State Special Schools also offer assessment services and technical assistance. 
For more information about the State Special Schools, please visit the California Department of 
Education (CDE) website at http://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/ss/ and consult with Barona Charter 
School’s Special Education Director/Designee. 
 

  

http://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/ss/


58  

Section 7: Roles and Responsibilities of Team 
Members 

Introduction 
The IEP process is designed to provide a free and appropriate education, in the least restrictive 
environment, for a child with a disability. The IEP document is a legally binding contract governed 
by the laws and regulations under IDEA. When an IEP is signed, all team members (parents, 
Education Specialists, General Education teachers, Related Service providers and Administrators), 
agree to implement what is in the contract. It is the responsibility of each team member to 
implement the IEP as it relates to their setting. 
 
It is the role of the Case Manager to “manage” this contract and ensure all aspects are 
implemented. It is not the role of the Case Manager to implement every aspect of the IEP; but to 
implement his/her sections and ensure other sections are being implemented. When sections of 
the IEP are not being implemented, it is the role of the Special Education Director/Designee to 
be aware of this and intervene. As an IEP team it is of the utmost importance all team members 
understand what is required in the IEP and ensure it is being implemented across all settings. 
 
Team Member Role and Responsibilities 

The School Site Administrator/Principal: 
A Site Administrator is a certified administrator with an Administrative Credential. The main roles 
and responsibilities of a Site Administrator are to oversee, supervise, and direct the work of 
certificated and classified staff as it relates to the implementation of the IEP; and to implement 
systems that support staff in the implementation of the IEP. In addition, the Site Administrator 
serves as the LEA Administrator at all IEP meetings or designates another administrator to act as 
an Admin Designee, at the IEP meeting. 

● Ensures Case Managers/Special Education Director/Designee and General Education 
teachers meet prior to the start of the school year to review IEP at a glance for each 
student 

● Meets with the special education team before the end of the school year to ensure there 
is a plan for how and when IEPs will be held for the following school year 

● Implements a system for scheduling general education representative(s) for IEP meetings, 
if required during the school day’s teaching time. 

● Ensures there is a plan for appropriate Special Education teacher or classroom 
paraprofessional coverage in the event of absences or new student needs; and a back-up 
plan when there are multiple absences 

● Attends and actively participates in the duration of IEP meetings as LEA Administrator 
 
The General Education Teacher: 
The main roles of the General Education classroom teacher are to plan, coordinate, schedule, and 
evaluate curriculum and instructional outcomes within a secure and positive classroom 
environment for all students, including those with disabilities. 

 



59  

● Plans and provide appropriate, evidence-based instruction and supports in order for 
students with an IEP to receive educational benefit and make progress on goals 

● Maintains communication with students, parents/guardians, and service providers 
● Reviews the IEP for each student in his/her class and ensure applicable components 

are being implemented in the general education setting 
● Maintains a copy of the IEP-at-a-Glance for each student in his/her class 
● Completes report cards for students in his/her class, with consultation from the 

Education Specialist 
● Meets with the Education Specialist on a regular basis to collaborate on the 

accommodations, modifications, and supports that are necessary in the general 
education setting 

● Informs on the progress and performance of students with an IEP as it relates to 
progress on goals and present levels of performance for the IEP 

● Provides work samples as it relates to progress on IEP goals when asked to do so by 
the Special Education Director/Designee 

● Communicates concerns and problem solves for areas of need 
● Collaborates on progress reports and report card completion 
● Communicates with the Special Education Director/Designee, the classroom 

expectations, routines and procedures to classroom paraprofessional support staff 
as it relates to supporting all students 

● Communicates classroom expectations, routines, and procedures as it relates to 
supporting the unique needs of a student with an IEP 

● Attends scheduled IEP meetings as the General Education Teacher and provide input 
into the development of appropriate goals, accommodations, modifications, and 
supports 

● Contacts the Special Education Director/Designee with questions or concerns 
regarding a student with an IEP in his/her class. 

The Special Education Case Manager/Director/Designee: 
Case Manager is a certificated Education Specialist or Speech Language Pathologist with an 
Education Specialist or Speech Language Pathology credential, who is responsible for 
coordinating the instruction and related services for students with IEPs assigned to his/her 
caseload. In the event the Case Manager requires support in obtaining compliance in the 
following areas, he/she shall consult with the Special Education Director/Designee or Site 
Administration to problem solve. 

● Implements the scheduling of the administrator’s participation and staff members 
required for all IEP meetings 

● Ensures the classroom paraprofessional schedule is created and managed so all 
student needs are met through school wide support assignments 

● Routinely reviews the classroom support aide schedule to analyze changing needs 
● Supports the supervision and training of classroom paraprofessional and any support 

aide staff 
● Ensures progress on IEP goals are being updated at every report card period 
● Ensures a copy of progress on IEP goals is sent home, as well as a copy filed, at each 

report card period 
● Completes Interim Progress Reports for students on his/her caseload, with 



60  

consultation from the General Education teacher. 
● Conducts in-class assessments or information needed to support the goals review 

component of the Annual Evaluation, each year. 
● Accurately administer and score standardized, norm referenced assessments; 

sending results to School Psychologist and assessment team members no later than 
10 days prior to IEP meeting date. 

● Monitors annual timelines and utilize site system for scheduling and inviting team 
members well in advance of IEP due date to ensure legal timelines are met. 
Remember to consider any additional people who may need to be invited such as 
interpreter, SELPA itinerant teacher, etc. and include them in the scheduling 

● Contacts parents well in advance to schedule IEPs within legal timelines notices and 
sends notice to parents prior to the IEP meeting. 

● Develops a Draft IEP before every Initial, Annual, or Triennial IEP meeting 
 
The Case Manager Shall: 

Ensure original IEP documents are maintained in the student’s Special Education file at the school 
site: 

● Affirmed IEPs with original signature page 
● Signed Assessment Plans 
● Signed Parent Notifications of Meetings 
● Signed Assessment Reports 
● Prior Written Notices (PWN) 
● Progress on Goals Form 
● Behavior Intervention Plans (BIP) 

Additional items that may be included in the student file: 
● Completed Assessments, MAP Testing Results, State Testing Report 
● Parent and/or Staff Consult Contact Log 
● Vision and Hearing Reports or other health documents provided to you 

A copy of the following documents should be uploaded to SEIS following the IEP Meeting: 
● Signed Assessment Plans 
● Signed Parent Meeting Notice 
● Signed Assessment Reports 
● IEP Meeting Signature page 
● Prior Written Notices (PWN) 

 
The Special Education Director/Designee: 
The Special Education Director/Designee is generally a special educator or administrator with 
advanced training who consults with and coordinates specialist services of the educational 
specialist and related service providers. At Barona Charter School, the Special Education 
Director/Designee: 

● Reviews IEP Annual and Triennial due dates in August and creates a proposed IEP 
Meeting Schedule so that teachers/staff have an ample time to prepare. 

● Attends and actively participates in the duration of IEP meetings as an Administrative 



61  

Designee for the site Principal, or as another participant when the Principal is the LEA 
Administrator. 

● Supports new special education staff members through training on SEIS and 
developing IEPs. 

● Monitors data, prepares reports, and oversees the compliance of the Barona Charter 
School special education CALPADS and SEIS documents to support compliance. 

● Attends SELPA Director/Designee ’s Council meetings, professional development, or 
trainings to maintain understanding of any changes and/or modifications of SEIS, 
CALPADS, or special education laws that arise throughout the school year and are 
presented through the SELPA. 

 
Surrogate Parent Appointment 
The school district must assign an individual as a surrogate parent when the parents of a student 
with a disability cannot be identified, or the district is unable to locate the whereabouts of a 
parent. A surrogate parent may be appointed if the child is an unaccompanied homeless youth, 
an adjudicated dependent or ward of the court under the state Welfare and Institution Code and 
the child is referred to special education or already has an IEP. A surrogate parent can be a 
relative or adult with whom the student is residing, an appointed social worker, or a person 
identified by the East County SELPA who has knowledge of special education processes and 
procedures. 
[20 USC 1415(b)(2); EC 56050; 34 CFR 300.519; GC 7579.5 and 7579.6]. 

 

  



62  

Section 8: Procedural Safeguards, Prior 
Written Notice, and Progress Reporting 

Introduction 
It is the policy of the local educational agencies (LEAs) in the East County Special Education Local 
Plan Area (SELPA) that children with disabilities and their parents shall be afforded all procedural 
safeguards according to state and federal laws and regulations. Barona Charter School abides by 
this policy and provides a copy or offers another copy and/or review of the Notice of Procedural 
Safeguards at every IEP meeting. 

Parent Notice of Procedural Safeguards 
The Notice of Procedural Safeguards is an explanation of the procedural rights and safeguards 
that are available to the parents of a child with a disability under the Individuals with Disabilities 
Education Act (IDEA). Parent means a natural, adoptive, or foster parent of a child (unless a foster 
parent is prohibited by State law from serving as a parent), a guardian (but not the State if the 
child is a ward of the State) or an individual acting in the place of a natural or adoptive parent 
(including a grandparent, stepparent or other relative) with whom the child lives, or an individual 
who is legally responsible for the child’s welfare or a surrogate parent. Federal and state law 
require that the district establish and maintain a notice of parental procedural safeguards and 
provide that notice to the parents or legal guardians of a child with a disability at certain specified 
times. 

The written Notice of Procedural Safeguards must be given to parents at these times: 
● At least one time a school year, generally at the annual IEP review meeting 
● Upon an initial referral or parent request for an evaluation 
● Whenever the parent requests a copy 
● Each time the parents are presented with an assessment plan 
● With a Prior Written Notice 
● When the decision is made to make a removal that constitutes a change of placement for 

the child for disciplinary purposes 
● The first time each year that the parent files a state complaint against the school 
● The first time each year that the parent files a due process complaint against the school 

The Case Manager/Special Education Director/Designee (Speech and Language Pathologist if the 
child is speech language only) is responsible for providing Notice of Procedural Safeguards to 
parents/guardians during all required times. 

 
The LEA Administrator or Special Education Director/Designee is responsible for providing the 
Notice of Procedural Safeguards when the decision is made to make a removal that constitutes a 
change of placement for the child for disciplinary purposes. 

 
The Procedural Safeguards should be sent with any expulsion paperwork. The special education 
office is responsible for providing the Notice of Procedural Safeguards the first time each year 
that the parent files a State or due process complaint against the district. 



63  

It is recommended that the Case Manager/Special Education Director/Designee familiarize  
themselves with the Notice of Procedural Safeguards and offer to review it with parents at the 
beginning of the IEP meeting. It is appropriate to answer factual questions parents may have 
regarding the procedural safeguards; however, it is not appropriate to provide any interpretation 
of the law. If parents have additional questions, direct them to the last page of the Notice of 
Procedural Safeguards, which lists contact numbers for agencies that can provide information 
and assistance in understanding their procedural rights. 

 
It is also recommended that case managers print copies of the procedural safeguards from the 
SEIS document library to ensure that the most up to date version is being used. Case managers 
should have printed copies in different languages, as appropriate for caseload, available in rooms 
where IEP meetings are frequently held. 

PRIOR WRITTEN NOTICE (PWN) 
Prior Written Notice refers to the public agency’s obligation to inform parents, within a 
reasonable time, before it takes specific actions, or refuses to take specific actions: 

● Proposes to initiate or change the identification, evaluation, or educational placement of 
the child or the provision of FAPE to the child 

● Refuses to initiate or change the identification, evaluation, or educational placement of 
the child or the provision of FAPE to the child. 

PWN must include: 
● A description of the action proposed or refused by the school 
● an explanation of why the school proposes or refuses to take the action 
● a description of each evaluation procedure, assessment, record, or report the school used 

as a basis for their decision 
● a statement that the parents of a child with a disability have protection under the 

procedural safeguards and, how the parents can obtain a copy of them 
● sources for parents to contact to obtain assistance in understanding these provisions 
● a description of other options that the IEP Team considered and the reasons why those 

options were rejected 
● a description of other factors relevant to the school’s proposal or refusal 

 
PWN must be: 

● written in language understandable to the general public 
● provided in the native language of the parent or other mode of communication used by 

the parent, unless it is clearly not feasible to do so 
● If the native language or other mode of communication of the parent is not a written 

language, the school must take steps to ensure: 
● that the notice is translated orally or by other means to the parent in his or her native 

language or other mode of communication 
● that the parent understands the content of the notice 

 
PWN to a Parent is to: 

● provide comprehensive documentation of the proposed and refused actions made 
● make sure the LEA and the parents are “on the same page” about a child’s educational 



64  

program 
● provide the parents with an opportunity to voice any concerns or suggestions 
● provide sufficient information to ensure that the parent understands the rationale behind 

an LEA’s decision making regarding a particular proposed or refused action 
● ensure that informed parental consent is obtained, as necessary 
● assist the parent in determining the basis for any disagreement(s) with the proposed 

and/or refused actions addressed in the prior written notice and whether to seek 
resolution of any dispute through local dispute resolution procedures, a state complaint,  
mediation, or a due process hearing 

 
Additionally, the U.S. Department of Education (USED) Office of Special Education Programs 
(OSEP) opined that: 
 
The purpose for providing prior written notice is: to ensure that a parent understands the special 
education and related services which an LEA has proposed or refused to provide to a student. If 
a parent does not understand the services being proposed, it follows that the parent could not 
have agreed to the proposed services. It is the responsibility of the Special Education 
Director/Designee at Barona Charter School to contact the school Principal if there is a 
disagreement with the proposed and/or refused actions on behalf of the parent or school district.  
 
In addition, it is the responsibility of the Special Education Director/Designee to contact the 
principal when the IEP team believes that the parent may not be clear about the school’s 
proposed and/or refused actions. This often occurs when the team has made several 
recommendations and/or changes to the IEP. The Special Education Director/Designee will work 
with the team to determine whether a PWN is necessary and will draft a letter on behalf of 
Barona Charter School. 

Parental Consent 
A parent is considered to have given consent only when (s)he: 

● Is fully informed of all information relevant to the activity for which consent is sought, in 
his/her native language, or other mode of communication 

● Understands and agrees in writing to the carrying out of the activity, and the consent 
describes the activity and lists any records that will be released and to whom 

● Understands that his/her consent is voluntary and may be revoked at any time 

 
Activities Requiring Written Parental Consent 

● Initial Evaluation 
● Revaluation/Triennials 
● Initial Provision of Special Education and Related Services 
● Authorization to Request/Release Information 
● Use of an Individual Family Support Plan (IFSP) (preschoolers) 

NOTE: Signed Assessment Plans, signed IEPs, and signed Requests/Releases of Information forms 
constitute written parental consent. 



65  

Revocation of Consent 
● At any time, after the initial provisions of special education and related services, a parent 

may revoke consent in writing, and this action is not retroactive. Once the parent revokes 
consent, the district must provide a written notice and exit the student from all special 
education and related services 

● If in the future the parent seeks special education services, the assessment shall be 
treated as an initial assessment 

Progress Reporting to Parents 
Special Education teachers are encouraged to have frequent regular contact with parents 
concerning their child’s progress. The content of these meetings or conversations shall include 
progress on Individualized Education Program (IEP) objectives, as well as any other information 
which would enable the school and home to work more cooperatively together to benefit the 
student. 

The schedule for informing parents of their child’s progress on IEP goals and objectives should 
coincide with the required general education report card grading periods. The IEP team should 
determine how this will be accomplished. 

 
One option generally agreed with is in Progress Summary reports. The Special Education Teacher 
would indicate the method to be utilized on the Educational Setting page of the SEIS IEP. At 
Barona Charter School, the general education student report card is provided to parents on a 
Trimester basis. The Special Education Teacher should enclose the Progress Summary Report 
with the students report card at each of the Trimester dates. 

 
 
 
 

 

  



66  

Section 9: Student Admissions, Transfers and 
Student Records 

Introduction 
Students transferring into any school district with an IEP, shall begin to receive special education 
services that are comparable to those identified in the most recently agreed upon IEP within a 
“reasonable amount of time”. A reasonable amount of time is often defined as within 10 school 
days. (EDC § 56325). 

Transfers within the East County SELPA 
If a student transfers within the East County Special Education Local Planning Area (SELPA), the 
receiving special education teacher/Director/Designee should contact the previous service 
provider to request access to the student’s IEP through SEIS. Once access is granted, the student 
shall begin receiving comparable services without delay unless the parent and district agree to 
develop, adopt, and implement a new IEP. Please take notice of the dates on the IEP to determine 
if the student’s IEP is within the realm of requiring an Annual or Triennial Evaluation. 

Important Information: An IEP received from a District within our East County SELPA refers to the 
following elementary Districts: Alpine Union, Cajon Valley Union, Dehesa School District, Jamul- 
Dulzura Union, Lakeside Union, La Mesa-Spring Valley, Lemon Grove, Mountain Empire Unified, 
and Santee. 
 
Note: Our SELPA area High School District is Grossmont Union High. 

An IEP received from within our SELPA does not need to be rewritten if: 
▪ Goals are currently appropriate 
▪ Timeline meet requirements 
▪ Parents agree to continuation of current goals 

 
Transfers from Outside the SELPA 
When a student transfers from a special education program outside the SELPA, an Interim 
Placement Form (in SEIS) is completed by the Special Education Director/Designee after the 
student is placed in a comparable program for a period not to exceed 30 days. The district 
encourages placement of transferring students in the least restrictive environment. The team 
may use information, records, and reports from the student’s previous program. At that time 
Barona Charter School may, with parental consent, adopt the previously approved IEP. However, 
if records are not available, are incomplete, or are inadequate, assessment must be conducted 
in those areas which are needed to define an appropriate IEP. After all the pertinent information 
is gathered, the district shall develop, adopt, and implement a new IEP. 

 
Transfers from Out of State 
If a child with a disability has an IEP and transfers from an educational agency located outside the 
state to Barona Charter School within the same academic year, the district shall provide such child 
with a free appropriate public education. An Interim Placement Form (in SEIS) is completed when 



67  

a student transfers into the district from out of state. Services comparable to those described in 
the previously held IEP along with information provided by the prior school district shall be 
provided in consultation with the parents, until such time as the school conducts an evaluation 
or records review and develops a new IEP. 

 
An Interim IEP, along with an assessment plan at the time the student enrolls at the school site. 
Before the expiration of 30 days, the IEP Team must review the placement and assessments to 
determine its appropriateness. The team may use information, records, and reports from the 
student’s previous program. At that time Barona Charter School may, with parental consent, 
adopt the previously approved IEP. However, if records are not available, are incomplete, or are 
inadequate, assessment must be conducted in those areas which are needed to define an 
appropriate IEP. After all the pertinent information is gathered, the district shall develop, adopt, 
and implement a new IEP. The team may reconvene within the 60-day assessment timeline if 
additional time is needed to gather assessment data. 

 
Students Transferring Out of Barona Charter School 
The Special Education Director/Designee should: 

▪ Update Goals and Objectives using the Progress Report in SEIS. 
▪ Place a copy of the recent IEP in the pupil’s cumulative file. 
▪ Upload a copy of all special information into SEIS including parent signed Evaluation Plans, 

parent signed IEP Meeting Notices, IEP Signature pages, Initial or Triennial Evaluation 
Psychoeducational Reports, Initial or Triennial Evaluation Speech and Language Reports, 
Initial or Triennial Evaluation Occupational Therapy Reports, or other Private Evaluation 
Reports provided to the District during that school year. 

▪ The Program Specialist will exit the student in SEIS indicating the reason for the exit. 
 

Note: Upon receipt of a request from an educational agency where an individual with exceptional 
needs has enrolled, a former educational agency shall send the pupil’s special education records, 
or a copy thereof, within five (5) working days. 

 
A Barona Charter School office assistant will be identified to request school records for students 
being enrolled in Barona Charter School and send the requested school records to the school 
districts where a Barona Charter School student has transferred to, within the five (5) working 
days noted above. That individual will maintain the official record of where student files have 
been sent and to which District they have been received from. 

 
When A 30-Day Interim Student Leaves 
When a student is in a program on a 30-day interim placement and leaves before the IEP arrives 
or a new IEP is developed, the Special Education Director/Designee will exit the student in SEIS, 
indicating the reason for the exit and send a copy of the exit page and the IEP from the student’s 
previous district to the Barona Charter School office assistant in charge of CALPADS. 

 
Articulation of Elementary Students to the Grossmont Union High School District 
The following process should occur for children who are in the resource specialist or speech and 
language, in middle school and will continue in the program(s) in the Grossmont Union High 
School District. 



68  

▪ The Special Education Director/Designee will prepare and electronically submit the I-9 
packet for each 8th grade student to the Grossmont High School District’s link. 

 
▪ The Special Education Director/Designee should assess all 8th grade children in the 

appropriate academic areas and update their IEP objectives using the Progress Report in 
SEIS by the middle of April. 

 
▪ The Special Education Director/Designee will represent Barona Charter School in the 

Grossmont High School I-9 Transition Process by scheduling a Transition Meeting with 
each High School within the Grossmont High School District prior to the end of the school 
year, inviting the appropriate staff from the student’s high school of residence or a school 
of choice in which the special education student has been accepted for placement. 

▪ The Special Education Director/Designee will chair the IEP meeting at the Barona Charter 
School campus for each student’s IEP and provide specific oral information about the 
student as well as written documentation to the High School staff via an Amendment that 
is written and uploaded to SEIS at the end of the meeting. A copy of the Amendment is 
required to be given to the Parent for their records. 

 
▪ The Special Education Director/Designee will transfer the Barona Charter School Special 

Education student files to the High School’s, School Psychologist. 
 

Note: A child’s IEP is written based on the child’s identified needs and not for the convenience of 
the program, class, or teachers. 
 
Parent Request for Records 

The parent has the right to examine all educational records of the child and to receive copies 
within five business days after a request is made by the parent, either orally or in writing. 

● If parent makes a verbal or written request the timeline begins at the date of the initial 
request, whether oral or written 

● Upon receipt of a request for special education records, the person receiving the request shall 
contact the special education Director/Designee immediately with the request. 

● The Special Education Director/Designee oversees the copying of records, and ensures that 
the parent receives copies within five business days of the initial request. 

● Special Education Director/Designee will review records before duplicating. Three copies of 
the records will be made, with one copy to the parent and two copies remain in the special 
education office 

● The Special Education Director/Designee notifies parents when the records are available for 
pick up 

● If the records have not been picked up by the parent by the 4th day, parent should be 
contacted to ensure that they intend to pick up the records on the 5th day 

Maintenance of Records 

A “student record” is defined as any item of information directly related to an identifiable student 



69  

which is maintained by the school district or a district employee in the performance of his or her 
duties. A student record is a document recorded by handwriting, print, tapes, film, microfilm, or 
other means. 
 
Since a parent is entitled to examine all student records of the child and to receive copies upon 
request, it is important to ensure that any item of information that is not pertinent to a student’s 
educational program is not retained in the records. 

The student records should not include any informal notes related to the student. If the teacher 
or any other school employee has made informal notes about the student, they should remain in 
the sole possession of the maker and should not be accessible to anyone other than a substitute 
teacher. The types of special education data that should be kept in the child’s student records 
include: 

● IEP Documents and Meeting Notes 
● Authorization 
● Records of Participation 
● Evidence of Eligibility for Qualification or Dismissal/Assessment Reports 
● Copies of Formal Correspondence on district letterhead or from parent/parent 

representative 
● Service logs 

 
Tests and Protocols are not kept in Cum files. Assessors maintain the protocols and tests until 
the next Triennial assessment and then destroyed. 

 
 

 

  



70  

Section 10: Behavior, Student Discipline, and 
Suspension/Expulsion 

Introduction 
Discipline, order, and safety are crucial to the successful education of children in the public 
schools. Under California law, school districts are required to respond to student misconduct in 
a variety of ways that may include suspension from school and sometimes expulsion. In doing 
so, school personnel must be cognizant of the due process rights of all students and the 
additional rights of students eligible for IDEA services. 

 
Behavior 
The IEP team is obligated to address behavior that may or may not obviously appear disruptive 
or interfering. For example, if a student is failing a class, the behavior contributing to the failure 
must be addressed systematically. Concerns regarding behavior should be addressed by a 
complete IEP team. All staff, including general education teachers, who will be implementing an 
IEP, must participate in the development of the plan to facilitate consistency when addressing 
the target behavior and the teaching/reinforcement of replacement behavior(s). In addition, 
parents have valuable information that shall be considered. Behavior concerns and response to 
interventions should be documented in meeting notes. The Special Education Director/Designee 
is responsible for ensuring that concerns regarding behavior are addressed in an IEP meeting and 
documented in the Present Levels and Special Factors sections of the IEP, goals are written to 
address target behavior, supports and services are in place as needed and or a Behavior 
Intervention Plan is written. 

 
State and federal law behavioral considerations require that when behavior interventions are 
implemented, those interventions shall: 

● not restrict the pupil’s physical freedom and social interaction 
● be administered in a manner that respects human dignity and personal privacy, 
● ensure a student’s right to placement in the least restrictive educational environment 

A student’s behavior should be addressed through one the following pathways: 
1. If a student’s behavior is not appropriately managed given the school wide Positive 

Behavior Interventions, paired with the classroom expectations; the behavior requires 
more intervention. The IEP team, coordinated by the Special Education 
Director/Designee, should: 

a. Utilize the Special Factors section of the IEP to identify the target behavior 
(observable and measurable) 

b. Clearly describe replacement behavior (what the student is to do instead of the 
problem behavior) 

c. Identify the positive behavior interventions and supports to be implemented to 
teach and reinforce the replacement behavior 

d. Develop IEP goal(s) to address the increased use of the replacement behavior or 
reduction of the target behavior 

2. If the above pathway has proved insufficient, or if the student engages in behaviors that 



71  

could cause serious injury to the student or others: 
a. Convene an IEP meeting to determine the necessity of an Assessment plan to 

include a Functional Behavior Assessment (FBA) 
b. Develop an interim Behavior Intervention Plan (I-BIP) if the target behavior risks 

causing serious injury to the student or others 
c. If a BIP already exists, convene a meeting to modify and reevaluate 

 
Functional Behavior Assessment (FBA) 
An FBA is an analytical, systematic process based on observations, review of records, interviews, 
and data analysis that serves to identify the function of the behavior, as well as environmental 
factors that may be contributing to the target behavior. The function of behavior is what the 
student gets out of engaging in a particular behavior. 
 
There are two primary functions of behavior: Access and Escape. Once the function is identified, 
the team can determine a replacement behavior that serves the same function for the student. 
Observations allow the team to identify environmental changes that may be necessary. 
 
The IEP team shall consider a Functional Behavior Assessment (FBA) when any of the following 
conditions are met: 

● Previous goals and interventions have not been sufficient to help the student make 
progress 

● A previous BIP has not been sufficient to help the student to make progress 
● If the student engages in serious behaviors that could cause injury to the student or to 

others 
● If the student has demonstrated behaviors which have necessitated the use of emergency 

interventions (CPI, ProAct) and Behavior Emergency Response (BER) procedures 
 

The FBA should be conducted by a team but MUST be led by a person who has documented 
training in conducting behavioral assessments with an emphasis on positive behavior 
intervention (typically this is the school psychologist). Behavioral emergency interventions shall 
not be used as a substitute for BIPs. To the extent possible, BIPs shall be developed and 
implemented in a consistent manner appropriate to each student’s life settings. 

 
Behavior Intervention Plan (BIP) 
Any student behavior that is adversely affecting progress should be addressed with proactive 
systematic behavior intervention. The focus of a Behavior Intervention Plan (BIP) is to teach the 
student alternative behavior that meets the student’s need(s) in a more acceptable way. In 
developing a BIP, it is critical that the team recognize that the problem behavior serves a purpose; 
behavior serves a function; Access and Escape. Behavior is also related to a context and an 
environment that is specific for the student. Problem behavior occurs in reaction to 
environmental (external and/or internal) demands that overwhelm the student and adversely 
impact the student’s ability to effectively cope with his/her environment. These problem 
behaviors generalize and continue because they work for the student. The Behavior Intervention 
Plan becomes part of the IEP. The case manager is responsible for monitoring implementation 
and revisions and notifying the Special Education Director/Designee of any issues/concerns. 



72  

 
It is important that the BIP is developed by a team of individuals working with the student so as 
the interventions identified are those that can be implemented within the students learning 
environment. For a BIP to be successful, it needs to be implemented with consistency and fidelity. 

Manifestation Determination 
Students in Special Education may be suspended for up to 10 cumulative school days within a 
school year (same as general ed). 

 
The 11th day of suspension is considered a “change of placement”. 

On the 11th day of suspension, a Manifestation Determination (MD) review meeting must be 
held to determine whether or not the behavior is a manifestation of the student's disability. 

The manifestation determination team consists of the Principal, Special Education 
Director/Designee, the parents, and relevant members of the IEP team (general education 
teacher, special education teacher, service providers, school psychologist, and other services 
providers as determined by the district and the parents. During the MDR meeting, the IEP team 
must determine whether the misconduct was or was not a manifestation of the student’s 
disability. 

 
The IEP team will: 

● Review relevant disciplinary history, current IEP, educational placement, behavior 
supports, attendance and health records, and assessment reports on file 

● Consider teacher observations, relevant information provided by the parent/guardian, 
and other relevant unique circumstances to be considered. After a child with a disability 
has been removed from his or her current placement for ten (10) school days in the same 
school year, during any subsequent days of removal the public agency must provide 
services to enable the child to continue to participate in the general education curriculum 
and progress toward meeting the goals set out in the child’s IEP. 

● Also, a child will receive, as appropriate, a functional behavioral assessment (FBA) and 
behavioral intervention services and modifications, which are designed to address the 
behavior violation so that it does not recur. 

 
The team must determine: 

1. Was the behavior caused by, or did it have “a direct and substantial relationship” to, the 
student's disability 

OR 

2. Was the behavior the direct result of the district's failure to implement the IEP? 

If the team answers “yes” to either 1 or 2, the student’s conduct is determined to be a 
manifestation of the student’s disability. 

If the behavior WAS a manifestation of the disability: 
If conduct is a manifestation of the student’s disability, the IEP team must: 

● Conduct an FBA to determine the need for a BIP (if LEA had not previously conducted 



73  

and implemented) 
● If there is already a BIP in place, review and modify to address the behavior 
● Return the student to the previous placement from which removed (unless parent and 

LEA agree to change of placement through the IEP process) 

Behavior WAS NOT a manifestation of the disability: 
If the manifestation determination review team determines the student’s behavior was not a 
manifestation of his/her disability, 

● The student may be disciplined in accordance with the procedures for students without 
disabilities. (20 U.S.C. §1415(k)(1)(C).) 

● Pending an expulsion hearing or other change in placement, the student shall continue to 
receive services to enable the student to access the general education curriculum, 
although in another setting, and to progress toward meeting the goals set out in the 
student’s IEP. 

● The IEP team shall also consider revising the student’s BIP, 
● If the student does not have a behavior plan, the IEP team should consider conducting a 

FBA in order to develop a BIP to address the behavior violation so that it does not reoccur. 
(20 U.S.C. §1415(k)(1)(D).) 

Note: Due to the complexity of the issue, districts should proceed carefully when suspending or 
expelling students with disabilities and consult legal counsel as appropriate. 

 
Protections for Students Not Yet Eligible for Special Education Services 
IDEA disciplinary protections will apply to a general education student if the school has a “basis 
of knowledge” that a student is a student with a disability. The school will have knowledge a 
student is disabled if: (1) the parent expressed concern in writing to supervisory or administrative 
personnel or a teacher of the student that the student is in need of special education and related 
services; (2) the parent has requested a special education evaluation; or (3) the student’s 
teachers or other personnel has expressed specific concerns about a student’s pattern of 
behavior directly to the special education Director/Designee or other supervisory personnel. (20 
U.S.C. §1415(k)(5)(B).) 

 
Suspensions 
Although federal law places no limits on the total number of days a student may be suspended, 
state law does. California provides that a student may not be suspended for more than 20 
cumulative schooldays in a school year, unless for purposes of adjustment, a student enrolls in 
or is transferred to another regular school, opportunity school or class, or a continuation 
education school or class, in which case the number of school days shall not exceed 30 days in 
any school year. (Ed. Code §48903.) 

 
Portions of a school day in which a student has been removed would count towards the days of 
suspension. For example, whether a bus suspension would count as a day of suspension would 
depend on whether the bus transportation is part of the student’s individualized education 
program (“IEP”). Another example is if a student is suspended for half of the school day. 
Therefore, school personnel should carefully monitor the days and/or hours a student with a 
disability is removed from class to determine if either “In-house suspension” or “supervised 
suspension classroom” as authorized by Education Code 48911.1 would not be counted towards 



74  

the 20-day cumulative limit described above as long as the student is afforded the opportunity 
to continue to appropriately progress in the general curriculum, continue to receive the services 
specified in his/her IEP, and continue to participate with non-disabled students to the extent 
he/she would have in the current placement. However, districts should be careful that such 
action does not constitute a change of placement. (Analysis and Comments and Changes to 2006 
IDEA Part B Regulations, 71 Fed. Reg. 46715 (August 14, 2006).) 

 
Emergency Interventions 
Emergency interventions not specified in a student’s behavioral intervention plan shall be used 
only when necessary to control unpredictable, spontaneous behavior which poses clear and 
present danger of serious physical harm to the student or others, and which cannot be 
immediately prevented by a response less restrictive than the temporary application of a 
technique used to contain the behavior. 

Emergency interventions (i.e. physical restraint) shall not be used as a substitute for the 
individual student’s systematic Behavior Intervention Plan (BIP) that is designed to change, 
replace, modify, or eliminate the behavior. 

If it is necessary to restrain the student to prevent injury to themselves or others in the 
environment, staff should implement the emergency interventions approved by the SELPA. 
Professional Assault Crisis Training (Pro-ACT) is currently the approved methodology used to train 
staff who participate on behavior intervention teams. Emergency interventions should be used 
only by properly trained personnel and only with the degree of force and for time that is 
reasonable and necessary to control the emergency. Upon prolonged use of an emergency 
intervention, staff shall seek assistance of the site principal, special education administrative 
staff, and/or law enforcement agencies, as applicable to the situation. When the emergency has 
ended, school staff must return to the systematic Behavior Intervention Plan and positive 
interventions stated in the individual’s IEP. 

Emergency Interventions must NOT include the following: 

● Any intervention designed to, or likely to, cause physical pain 
● Noxious, toxic, or otherwise unpleasant sprays, mists, or substances in proximity to the 

individual’s face 
● Denial of adequate sleep, food, water, shelter, bedding, physical comfort, or access to 

bathroom facilities 
● Verbal abuse, ridicule, humiliation, or other procedures expected to cause excessive 

emotional trauma 
● Physical restraint by device, material, or object that simultaneously immobilizes all four 

extremities, including prone containment or similar techniques, unless the restraint is 
used by personnel who are trained in the technique, and it is used only as an emergency 
intervention 

● Locked seclusion, unless it is in a facility otherwise licensed or permitted by state law to 
use a locked room 

● Any intervention that leaves a student without adequate supervision 
● Any intervention that deprives the student of one or more of the senses 
● Force exceeding what is reasonable and necessary under the circumstances 



75  

Behavioral Emergency Reports 

Anytime an emergency intervention is used, a report must be written on the form titled, 
“Behavioral Emergency Report,” (BER) immediately following the incident. The form is available  
in the SEIS document library. The form must be used to complete the Behavioral Emergency 
Report because it includes specific information that is required by California Education Code. (Ca 
Ed code 56521.1). The Behavioral Emergency Report must be completed in its entirety, with no 
section or answer left blank or incomplete. The Behavioral Emergency Report must be written by 
someone who was physically present during the emergency intervention, but the case manager 
must be involved in the completion of the report. The Behavioral Emergency Report should be 
an accurate description of the emergency intervention. It should be behaviorally specific. It 
should be free of jargon, opinions, and obscure terms and abbreviations. 

● The case manager is responsible for completing the follow-up actions, including 
notification of site administrator and school psychologist 

● The site administrator must review and sign all reports 
● The Special Education Director/Designee provides information regarding behavioral 

emergency interventions to the state 
 

Notification about the Behavior Emergency Intervention 
● The day of the emergency intervention, notify school administrator 
● The day of the emergency intervention, the parent/guardian and/or residential care 

provider shall be notified via phone that an emergency intervention was used or serious 
property damage occurred 

● Within 24 hours, complete the Behavior Emergency Report (BER), obtain signature from 
site administrator, and place a copy in the cumulative file 

● For students without a Behavioral Intervention Plan (BIP), within 48 hours, schedule an 
IEP, to be held within 5 days 

○ During the IEP meeting: 
■ review the emergency report, provide document to parents, 
■ determine the necessity for a functional behavioral assessment, and 
■ determine the necessity for an interim plan 

OR 
■ document the reasons for not conducting a functional behavioral 

assessment (FBA), not developing an interim plan, or both 
● For students with a behavioral intervention plan, within 48 hours, schedule an IEP, to be 

held within 30 days 
○ During the meeting 

■ review the emergency report, provide document to parents, and 
determine if the incident constitutes a need to update FBA and/or modify 
the existing Behavior Intervention Plan 

Note: After any incident requiring emergency intervention, consider conducting or updating the 
functional behavior assessment (FBA) and corresponding behavior intervention plan (BIP). 

  



76  

Section 11: Important Legal Timelines and 
Glossary of Terms 

Important Legal Timelines and Requirements Related to Special Education 

5 Business Days: 
Parent shall have the right and opportunity to examine all school records and receive copies 
within 5 business days after a request is made by the parent, either orally or in writing. 
District/School may charge a fee for the copies, but if parent states an inability to pay, copies 
must be provided at no charge and within the established timeline. 
It is the practice in Barona Charter School to provide requested records free of charge. 

 
5 School Days: 
A school must convene the Manifestation Determination meeting for a student if the 
administration is contemplating an administrative change of placement or possible expulsion. 

 
10 School Days: 
This is the limit of days a student with a disability may be suspended from school before the 
removals constitute a change of placement. Removals from the school setting include any 
situations in which the student is not accessing his/her special education services; for example, 
out of school suspension, in-school suspension and/or being sent home for disciplinary reasons. 
No Special Education services are required for up to 10 days of removal. 

 
15 Calendar Days: 
A proposed Assessment Plan shall be developed and provided to the parent/guardian within 15 
calendar days of request for the assessment, not counting days of school recess more than five 
days, from the date of receipt of the referral. 

15 Calendar Days: 
A parent shall have at least 15 calendar days from receipt of proposed Assessment Plan to 
arrive at a decision regarding consent. 

30 Calendar Days: 
When a student with an IEP enrolls in Barona Charter School from a district OUTSIDE of the 
East County SELPA, an Interim form in SEIS is completed and IEP will be created. An interim 
placement must not exceed 30 calendar days. 

 
30 Calendar Days: 
An IEP meeting requested by a parent shall be held within 30 calendar days, not counting days 
of school recess more than five, from the date of receipt of the parent’s request. 

 
60 Calendar Days: 
An IEP meeting shall be held within 60 calendar days from receipt of parental consent for an 



77  

initial, triennial, transition, or supplemental assessment, not counting days of school recess 
more than five. After parental consent has been obtained, IEP implementation should occur “as 
soon as possible” (Ed. Code 65043i). 

Glossary of Terms 
 

Adapted Physical Education (APE) 
Adapted Physical Education provides individual or small group instruction through an adapted 
physical education or recreational program for student’s specific motor deficits. 

Alternative Programs 
Alternative Programs are an option for any student when an appropriate program cannot be 
offered in the district or within the SELPA. 

Community Advisory Committee (CAC) 
The Community Advisory Committee is composed of mostly parents and guardians, including 
parents of individuals with exceptional needs, which advises the responsible local agency (RLA) 
in the development, revision, and evaluation of programs under the local comprehensive plan. 

Designated Instruction and Services (DIS) (Other Related Services) 
Designated instruction and services are provided by the regular class teacher, the special day 
class teacher, or the resource specialist. These services may include, but are not limited to, the 
following: 

● Adapted Physical Education 
● Audiological Services 
● Counseling Services 
● Deaf/Hard of Hearing Itinerant Services 
● Health Nursing Services 
● Home Tutor 
● Language, Speech, and Hearing 
● Mobility Training 
● Orthopedic Itinerant Services 
● Psychological Services 
● Vision Itinerant Services 

 
Free and Appropriate Public Education (FAPE) 
Every school-age child with exceptional needs is entitled to an education which meets his/her 
individual needs at no expense to the family. 

 
Individual Education and Planning Team (IEPT) 
The Individual Education and Planning Team consists of a representative from administration, 
the student’s present teacher, the student’s parents or guardian, the individual with 
exceptional needs, when appropriate, and other individuals, at the discretion of the parent 
and/or district. The team determines the eligibility and certification of individuals with 
exceptional needs. The team is responsible for writing and reviewing an instructional plan for 
each student. 



78  

Individualized Education Program (IEP) 
The Individualized Education Program is a written statement developed by the IEP team which 
translates child assessment information into a practical plan for instruction and delivery of 
services. 

 
Least Restrictive Environment (LRE) 
Each child with exceptional needs is to be placed in a learning environment that most closely 
approximates the learning environment of his/her nondisabled peers (regular classroom) in a 
manner beneficial to the individual student and students in the regular classroom. 
 
Local Plan for Special Education 
The Local Plan for Special Education is developed by staff and community for serving pupils with 
exceptional needs in accordance with state law. All districts and county offices of education 
which receive funds must develop a comprehensive plan which ensures a full range of services 
for students and submit it to the State Department of Education for approval. 

Occupational Therapy (OT) 
Occupational Therapy is a physician prescribed specialized rehabilitative therapy utilizing 
multiple treatment methods which focuses upon the following general areas: activities of daily 
living, visual-perceptual skills, fine-motor and adaptive skill development, and equipment 
evaluation. Occupational Therapists are certified through a National Certification Board. 

 
Parent Advocate 
Parent Advocates can be parents, teachers, and/or professionals trained to provide practical 
information and support to parents whose children are participating in the special education 
programs. 

Parent Surrogate 
Parent Surrogates are selected by the district to act as the parent when: 

● No parent can be identified. 
● The district cannot discover the whereabouts of the parent; 
● The child is a ward of the state. A person assigned as a surrogate may not be an 

employee of a public agency which is involved in the education or care of the child. 
 

Physical Therapy (PT) 
Physical Therapy is a physician prescribed specialized rehabilitative therapy utilizing multiple 
treatment methods which focuses upon the following general areas: gross-motor skill 
development, balance and equilibrium, progressive ambulation, and equipment evaluation. 
Physical Therapists are licensed through the California State Board of Medical Quality 
Assurance. 

 
Special Education 
The district provides a continuum of program options which are available to meet the needs of 
individuals with exceptional needs with special education and related services. 

Special Education Director/Designee 
A Special Education Director/Designee is generally a special educator or administrator with 



79  

advanced training who consults with and coordinates specialist services of the resource 
specialist, designated instructional services (DIS) specialists, and special day class teachers. The 
Program Specialist may also coordinate placements for students whose needs cannot be met in 
their school of residence. Program Specialists may also provide special education in-service 
training. 

 
Special Education Local Planning Area (SELPA) 
The Special Education Local Planning Area (SELPA) consists of ten (10) districts in East County 
designated to function as one agency to coordinate and administrate the delivery of special 
education services for all students 0-22 years of age. 

State Special School for Deaf and Blind 
The State Special School for Deaf and Blind is a residential school option available for students 
whose primary handicap is deaf, blind, or deaf/blind. There are two in the state of California, 
Riverside and Fremont. 

 
Student Success or Study Team (SST) 
The Student Success or Study Team is a school-based, problem-solving group whose purpose is 
to help teachers in the areas of curriculum, instructional techniques, and classroom 
management systems to meet the needs of referred students. 

 
Additional Abbreviations 
ADD/ADHD……………………………. Attention Deficit (Hyperactivity Disorder) 
AT…………………………………………. Assistive Technology 
BER………………………………………. Behavior Emergency Report 
BIP………………………………………… Behavior Intervention Plan 
CP…………………………………………. Cerebral Palsy 
DNQ……………………………………… Does Not Qualify 
EL…………………………………………. English Learner 
ELD…………………………………….…. English Language Development 
ELL………………………………………… English Language Learner 
FBA……………………………………….. Functional Behavior Assessment 
IDEA………………………………………. Individuals with Disabilities Education Act 
LCI……………………...…………………. Licensed Children’s Institution 
LEA…………………………………….….. Local Education Agency 
LEP/NEP…………………………………. Limited English Proficiency/Non-English 
Proficiency 
LSH………………………………………….. Language, Speech, and Hearing 
MD………………………………………….. Muscular Dystrophy 
MHS………………………………………… Mental Health Services 
NPS…………………………………………. Nonpublic School 
SDC………………………………………… Special Day Class 
SLP………………………………………….. Speech and Language Pathologist 

 
Organizations and Services 
AASE…………………………………..……. American Association of Special Educators 
ASA………………………………………….. Autism Society of America 



80  

ACLD ……………………………………….. Association for Children with Learning Disabilities 
AAIDD………………………………………. American Association on Intellectual and Developmental 
Disabilities 
AESP………………………………………... American Association for the Education of the 
Severely/Profoundly Handicapped 
AAMR…..................................... American Association on Mental Retardation 
ACB…………………………………………   American Council for the Blind 
ASHA………………………………………..  American Speech/Language and Hearing Association 
CAL CASE ......................................... California Council: Administrators of Special Education 
CARS +……………………………………… California Association of Resource Specialist Plus 
CASP………………………………………… California Association of School Psychologists 
CCS………………………………………..… California Children Services 
CEC.…………………………….…………… Council for Exceptional Children 
CHADD……………………………………… Children and Adults with Attention Deficit/Hyperactivity 
Disorder 
CSHA…......................................... California Speech and Hearing Association 
EFRC………………………………………... Exceptional Family /Resource Center 
HT…………………………………………… Home Tutor 
SANDCASE…............................... San Diego Council for Administrators of Special Education 
TASH…….………………………………….. The Association for Severely Handicapped 
UCP…………………………………………. United Cerebral Palsy 

 
 
 
 
 

 

  



81  

Section 12: Forms/Checklists 



 

Cumulative File Checklist / Contents Order 
 

Student Name  
Previous School District  
Previous School Contact   

 
 

 
Item Requested 

By 
Date 
Requested 

Date 
Received 

Sign Off 

Records Data Disclosure Form     

Transfer Information     

Contents Order of Student Cumulative Record Form     

Student Registration Form/Parental Affirmation Regarding Student’s 
Previous Suspension or Expulsion 

    

Birth Information – From birth certificate, record the exact spelling of the 
student’s legal name, birth date, birthplace and gender and birth 
certificate number. This information must be recorded on the cumulative 
folder. Give the copy of the birth certificate back to parent. Do not keep 
copy of birth certificate 

    

Record the social security number on the cumulative folder. If a wavier is 
needed the signed waiver form in the cumulative folder. Do Not Keep 
Copy of the Social Security Card. 

    

Guardianship and Custody Documents     

Medical Examination form with Immunization certified by health 
professional 

    

Student Health History Form     

New Entrant Screening Form (most recent on top) This will be for vision, 
hearing, speech and language, fine and gross motor skills. 

    

Photo Eye Evaluation Permission Form     

Home Language Survey     

Test Data Sheet     

Report Cards (most recent on top)     

Formal Correspondence regarding the specific student     

All Special Education Information     

All 504 Information     

Acceptable Computer System Use Agreement     

Publication Permission Form     

Handbook Parent Signature Page     

     

 
 

All Documents Complete Date:  
Principal Sign Off:    



 

Child’s Name:       Today’s Date:       
 
Parent/Guardian completing form:   

 
Intake Questions: 

Do you have any concerns in the area of reading, reading comprehension, please give specific 
examples ? 

Do you have any concerns for math, please give specific examples ? 
 

Do you have any concerns for writing, please give specific examples ? 

Do you have any concerns for social/emotional, please provide examples ? 

Is your child able to care for his own personal needs ? 

When was your child’s last physical, vision & hearing screening ? 

Does your child have any medical diagnosis ? 

Does your child take any vitamins, supplements and/or medication (if so for what)? 

How many hours does your child sleep at night ? 

Does your child wear glasses, use an EpiPen, etc. ? 

Does your child receive any type of outside therapy/counseling ? 
 

Is there anything else you would like to share with us that we didn’t ask ? 



 

No Facsimiles will be 
Accepted for Release of 

Medical Information 
 

East County SELPA 
AUTHORIZATION FOR USE AND/OR 

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION 
 
 

Student’s Name (list other names used) Medical Record Number (if applicable) Date of Birth 

 
Student’s Address Phone Number Other Phone Number 

I authorize the following individual or organization to disclose the above named individual’s medical/educational information as described below: 

 
 
 

 

Disclosing/Receiving Party 

Address 

 
 

City, State, Zip Code 
 

Telephone   FAX   
Not valid for medical information. 

 
 

 

Disclosing/Receiving Party 

Address 

 
 

City, State, Zip Code 
 

Telephone   FAX   
Not valid for medical information. 

 
Duration This authorization shall become effective immediately and shall remain in effect until   or for one 

year from the date of signature, if no date is entered. (Date) 

Revocation I understand that I have the right to revoke this authorization, in writing, at any time by sending such written 
notification to the releasing agency. Written revocation will be effective upon receipt, but will not apply to information 
that has already been released in response to this authorization. 

 
Redisclosure I understand that health information used or disclosed pursuant to this authorization may be subject to redisclosure 

by the recipient and it is no longer protected by federal laws and regulations regarding the privacy of protected health 
information. I further understand the confidentiality of the information when released to a public educational agency 
is protected as a student record under the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA), and the recipient 
may not redisclose the information without parental consent. 

 
Health Info I understand that authorizing the disclosure of health information is voluntary. I can refuse to sign this authorization, 

and I do not need to sign this form in order to assure medical treatment. 

Specify Record(s) Indicate type of information to be disclosed: 
 

Medical Medication Psychiatric Mental Health 

Drug/Alcohol STD/HIV Test Results Educational Other   
 

Any and all information with regard to the above records may be released, except as specifically listed here: 
 
 
 

I request that the information released pursuant to this authorization be used for the following purposes only: 

 Educational Assessment  Educational Planning  Other   
 

A copy of this authorization is as valid as an original. 
I understand that I have a right to receive a copy of this authorization for my records. 

 

 
Student’s Signature or Representative Relationship to Student Date 

 
06/04/09 



 

Page  of    
 
 

 
EAST COUNTY SELPA 

IEP TEAM MEMBER EXCUSAL 
 

 
Student Name: Birthdate: IEP Date: 

By mutual agreement between the parent/adult student, and designated representative of the local education agency, the presence and 
participat ion of the Individual Education Program team member(s) identified below is/are not necessary and has/have been excused from 
being present and participat ing in the meeting scheduled on  . 

The excused team member and parent/adult student have conferred and (1) the member’s area of the curriculum or related services is not 
being modified or discussed in the meeting or (2) the meeting involves a modificat ion to or discussion of the member’s area of curriculum 
or related services and the member submitted, in writing to the parent and the IEP team, input into the development of the IEP prior to the 
meeting. 

 
Individual Educat ion Program Team Member(s) 

 
   Written input has been  
   submitted to the parent and  
  Area Of Curriculum Or the IEP team prior to the  
 Area Of Curriculum Related Services is meeting regarding Area Of The IEP team member is 
Individual Education Program Or Related Not Being Discussed Curriculum Or Related being mutually excused 
Team Member(s) Services Or Modified Services from the IEP meeting 
    whole in part 
    whole in part 
    whole in part 
    whole in part 
    whole in part 
    whole in part 

By mutual agreement the IEP team members identified above, have been excused from being present and participat ing in my child’s IEP 
meeting. 

Check the relationship to student, sign, and date below. 
Signature of Parent Guardian Surrogate    Date:   

Signature of Parent Guardian Surrogate    Date:   
 
Signature of Adult Student (ages 18-21): 

 
   

 
Date:   

Signature of Designated District Representative:    Date:   
 

Title/Position:   



For Office Use Only

-FILED-
File No.: BA20242074187

Date Filed: 11/20/2024























 

Governing Board               Governance Policy #7A 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE 

Adoption 

The Governing Board hereby adopts this Conflict of Interest Code (“Code”), which shall apply to 

all governing board members, candidates for member of the board, and all other designated 

employees of the Barona Indian Charter School (“School”).   

The Political Reform Act (Government Code section 8100, et seq.) requires local government 

agencies to adopt and promulgate conflict of interest codes.  The Fair Political Practices 

Commission has adopted a regulation (2 California Code of Regulations section 18730) that 

contains the terms of a standard conflict of interest code, which can be incorporated by reference 

in an agency’s code.  After public notice and hearing, the standard code may be amended by the 

Fair Political Practices Commission to conform to the amendments in the Political Reform Act.  

Therefore, the terms of 2 C.C.R. section 18730 and any amendments to it duly adopted by the Fair 

Political Practices Commission are hereby incorporated by reference.  This regulation and the 

attached Appendices, designating positions and establishing disclosure categories, shall constitute 

the conflict of interest code of the School.   

 

Definitions 

“Designated Persons” are board members, officers and employees of the School who hold 

positions that involve the making or participation in making decisions that may foreseeably have 

a material effect on any financial interest of that individual.  Designated positions within the School 

are listed in Appendix A attached to this Code and incorporated herein by reference.   

 

“Disclosure Categories” are the descriptions of the types of financial interests Designated Persons 

in one or more job classifications must disclose on their Form 700.  The categories must be tailored 

to the financial interests affected, and must not require public officials to disclose private financial 

information that does not relate to their School employment.  The Disclosure Categories are listed 

in Appendix B. 

 

“Form 700” is the Statement of Economic Interest, Form 700 disclosing the reportable 

investments, interests in real property, business positions, & income required to be reported under 

the category or categories to which the Designated Person’s position is assigned in Appendix A. 

 

Disclosure Statements 

Designated Persons designated positions shall file their Form 700 with the School, which will 

make the statements available for public inspection and reproduction.  Upon receipt of the 

statements for designated members and employees, the School shall make and retain copies and 

forward the originals to the County of San Diego Clerk of the Board of Supervisors.  All other 

statements will be retained by the School.   

 

 

Adopted: October 18, 2021 

 

Amended: 

 

  



 

APPENDIX A 

Designated Positions 

I. Persons occupying the following positions are designated employees and must disclose 

financial interests in all categories defined in Appendix B (i.e. categories 1, 2, and 3).   

 A. Members of the Governing Board 

 B. Candidates for Member of the Governing Board 

 C. Members of Committees of the Governing Board1 

 D. Director of Charter School 

 E. Principal/Director 

 I. Consultants2 

 J. Other Employees3 

II. Persons occupying the following positions are designated employees and must disclose 

financial interests defined in Category 1 of Appendix B. 

A. Purchasing Manager 

B. Assistant Business Officer 

C. Other Employees4 

III. Persons occupying the following positions are designated employees and must disclose 

financial interests defined in Categories 2 and 3 of Appendix B. 

A. Information Systems Technician 

B. Contractor 

C. Other Employees5 

 
1  This category must be included if the committee has members that are not otherwise covered by the other identified 

categories and the committee possesses decision making authority.  Decision making authority is present when the committee:  a. 

may make a final decision; b. may compel a governmental decision or it may prevent a decision either by reason of an exclusion 

power to initiate the decision or by reason of a veto that may not be overridden; or c. makes substantial recommendations that are, 

and over an extended period have been, regularly approved without significant amendment or modified by another designated 

employee.   
2    A consultant will occupy a “designated position” when he/she is contracting with the agency to do the following:  1) 

Make a governmental decision wither to, among other things, (a) authorize the agency to enter into, modify or renew a contract 

provided it is the type of contract that requires agency approval; (b) grant agency approval to a contract that requires agency 

approval and to which the agency is a party, or to the specifications for such a contract; (c) grant agency approval to a plan, design, 

report, study or similar item; or (d) adopt or grant agency approval of, policies, standards or guidelines for the agency or for any 

subdivision thereof; or 2) Serve in a staff capacity with the agency and in that capacity participates in making a governmental 

decision or performs the same or substantially all the same duties for the agency that would otherwise be performed by an individual 

holding a designated position.   
3    “Other Employees” include any employee occupying a position that requires the employee to make a governmental 

decision that foreseeably and materially affects a personal financial interest, source of income, or a business position in a business 

entity. 
4    “Other Employees” include any employee with authority to make purchases that may foreseeably and materially affect 

an investment and/or business position in business entities or who are in a position to influence a governmental decision that may 

foreseeably and materially affect an investment and/or business position in a business entity. 
5    “Other Employees include employees with authority to make purchases that may foreseeably and materially affect 

investments and business positions in business entities which provide services, supplies, materials, or equipment in which the 

employee has authority to purchase. 



 

APPENDIX B 

Disclosure Categories 

Category 1 Reporting: 

A. Interest in real property which is located in whole or in part within the geographical service 

area of the School, including any leasehold, beneficial or ownership interests or option to 

acquire such interest in real property, if the fair market value of the interest is greater than 

$2,000.   

(Interests in real property of an individual include a business entity’s share of interest in 

real property of any business entity or trust in which the designated employee or his or her 

spouse owns, directly, indirectly, or beneficially, a ten percent interest or greater.) 

B. Investments in or income from persons or business entities (including gifts, loans and travel 

payments) which are contractors or sub-contractors which are or have been within the 

previous two-year period engaged in the performance of building construction or design 

within the geographical service area of the School. 

C. Investments in or income from persons or business entities engaged in the acquisition or 

disposal of real property within the geographical service area of the School. 

(Investment includes any financial interest in or security issued by a business entity, 

including but not limited to common stock, preferred stock, rights, warrants, options, debt 

instruments and any partnership interest or other ownership interests.) 

(Investments of any individual include a pro rata share of investments of any business 

entity or trust in which the designated employee or his or her spouse owns, directly, 

indirectly or beneficially, a ten percent interest or greater.) 

(Investment does not include a time or demand deposit in a financial institution, shares in 

a credit union, any insurance policy, or any bond or other debt instrument issued by any 

government or government agency.) 

(No investment or interest in real property is reportable unless its fair market value exceeds 

$2,000.  No source of income is reportable unless the income received by or promised to 

the public official aggregates $500 or more in value or $50 or more in value if the income 

was a gift during the preceding 12-month reporting period.  

Category 2 Reporting: 

A. Investments in or income from persons or business entities (including gifts, loans and travel 

payments) which manufacture or sell supplies, books, machinery or equipment of the type 

utilized by the department for which the designated employee is Manager or Director. 

Investments include interests described in Category 1. 

Category 3 Reporting: 

A. Investments in or income from persons or business entities (including gifts, loans and travel 

payments) which are contractors or sub-contractors engaged in the performance of work or 

services of the type utilized by the department for which the designated employee is 

Manager or Director.  Investments include the interests described in Category 1. 

 



STUDENT POLICY #6 –PUPIL SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION POLICY 

© Charter Schools Development Center (CSDC), 2020 Page 1 of 13  
Materials in this publication were adapted under license and with permission from the CSDC and remain copyright © 2020 CSDC, all rights reserved. 

No part of this publication may be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system, resold, or transmitted in any form or by any means, electronic, mechanical, 
photocopying, recording, scanning or otherwise except as permitted under Section 107 or 108 of the 1976 United States Copyright Act or without the 

prior written permission of the CSDC. 

 

Students Student Policy #6 

PUPIL SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION POLICY 

I. Introduction 

This Pupil Suspension and Expulsion Policy (the “Policy”) for Barona Indian Charter School 

(“School”) has been established in order to promote learning and protect the safety and well-being 

of all students. When the Policy is violated, it may be necessary to suspend or expel a student from 

regular classroom instruction. At the same time, the School intends to provide effective 

interventions for pupils who engage in acts of problematic behavior to help them change their 

behavior and avoid exclusion from the School. 

Staff shall enforce disciplinary rules and procedures fairly and consistently amongst all students. 

The Policy will be printed and distributed as part of the Student Handbook and will clearly describe 

discipline expectations. The Principal/Director shall ensure that students and their 

parents/guardians are notified in writing upon enrollment of all discipline policies and procedures. 

The notice shall state that this Policy is available on request at the Principal/Director’s office. 

Discipline includes, but is not limited to, advising and counseling students, conferring with 

parents/guardians, detention during and after school hours, community service on or off campus, 

the use of alternative educational environments, suspension and expulsion. Corporal punishment 

shall not be used as a disciplinary measure against any student. Corporal punishment includes the 

willful infliction of, or willfully causing the infliction of, physical pain on a student. For purposes 

of the Policy, corporal punishment does not include an employee’s use of reasonable force 

necessary to protect the employee, students, staff or other persons or to prevent damage to school 

property. 

A student has the right to be free from the use of seclusion and behavioral restraints of any form 

imposed as a means of coercion, discipline, convenience, or retaliation by staff. This right includes, 

but is not limited to, the right to be free from the use of a drug administered to the student in order 

to control the student’s behavior or to restrict the student’s freedom of movement, if that drug is 

not a standard treatment for the student’s medical or psychiatric condition. School staff may use 

seclusion or a behavior restraint only to control behavior that poses a clear and present danger of 

serious physical harm to the pupil or others that cannot be immediately prevented by a response 

that is less restrictive. School staff shall avoid, whenever possible, the use of seclusion or 

behavioral restraint techniques. 

School staff shall not do any of the following: 

➢ Use seclusion or a behavioral restraint for the purpose of coercion, discipline, 

convenience, or retaliation 
➢ Use locked seclusion, unless it is in a facility otherwise licensed or permitted by state 

law to 



STUDENT POLICY #6 –PUPIL SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION POLICY 

© Charter Schools Development Center (CSDC), 2020 Page 2 of 13  
Materials in this publication were adapted under license and with permission from the CSDC and remain copyright © 2020 CSDC, all rights reserved. 

No part of this publication may be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system, resold, or transmitted in any form or by any means, electronic, mechanical, 
photocopying, recording, scanning or otherwise except as permitted under Section 107 or 108 of the 1976 United States Copyright Act or without the 

prior written permission of the CSDC. 

 

use a locked room 

➢ Use a physical restraint technique that obstructs a pupil's respiratory airway or impairs 

the 
pupil's breathing or respiratory capacity, including techniques in which a staff member 

places pressure on a pupil's back or places his or her body weight against the pupil's 

torso or back 

➢ Use a behavioral restraint technique that restricts breathing, including, but not limited 

to, 
using a pillow, blanket, carpet, mat, or other item to cover a pupil's face 

➢ Place a pupil in a facedown position with the pupil's hands held or restrained 

behind the pupil's back 
➢ Use a behavioral restraint for longer than is necessary to contain the behavior that poses 

a clear 
and present danger of serious physical harm to the pupil or others. 

 

A student identified as an individual with disabilities or for whom the School has a basis of 

knowledge of a suspected disability pursuant to the Individuals with Disabilities in Education Act 

(“IDEA”) or who is qualified for services under Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 

(“Section 504”) is subject to the same grounds for suspension and expulsion and is accorded the 

same due process procedures applicable to regular education students except when federal and 

state law mandates additional or different procedures. The School will follow Section 504, the 

IDEA, the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (“ADA”) and all applicable federal and state 

laws when imposing any form of discipline on a student identified as an individual with disabilities 

or for whom the School has a basis of knowledge of a suspected disability or who is otherwise 

qualified for such services or protections in according due process to such students. 

 

A foster child’s educational rights holder, attorney, and county social worker and an Indian child’s 

tribal social worker and, if applicable, county social worker shall have the same rights a parent or 

guardian of a child has to receive a suspension notice, expulsion notice, manifestation 

determination notice, involuntary transfer notice, and other documents and related information. 
 

II. Suspension 

A. Definition 

Suspension is the temporary removal of a pupil from class instruction for adjustment or 

disciplinary reasons. Suspension does not mean any of the following: 

➢ Reassignment to another education program or class at the School where the pupil 

will receive continuing instruction for the length of day prescribed by the Board for 

pupils of the same grade level; 
➢ Referral to a certificated employee designated by the Principal/Director to advise 

pupils; 



STUDENT POLICY #6 –PUPIL SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION POLICY 

© Charter Schools Development Center (CSDC), 2020 Page 3 of 13  
Materials in this publication were adapted under license and with permission from the CSDC and remain copyright © 2020 CSDC, all rights reserved. 

No part of this publication may be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system, resold, or transmitted in any form or by any means, electronic, mechanical, 
photocopying, recording, scanning or otherwise except as permitted under Section 107 or 108 of the 1976 United States Copyright Act or without the 

prior written permission of the CSDC. 

 

➢ Removal from the class, but without reassignment to another class for the 

remainder of the class period without sending the pupil to the Principal/Director or 

designee. 
 

Suspended students shall be excluded from all School and School-related activities unless 

otherwise agreed during the period of suspension. The School shall consider suspension from 

School when other means of correction fail to bring about proper conduct or where the student’s 

presence would constitute any likelihood of risk to persons or property or seriously disrupt any 

educational process. 

B. Authority 

The Principal/Director or designee may suspend a student from class, classes or the school for a 

period not to exceed 10 days. The Principal/Director or designee may extend a student’s 

suspension pending final decision by the Board of Directors of the School on a recommendation 

for expulsion.  

On a recommendation for expulsion, the Board of Directors may suspend a special education 

student being considered for expulsion in accordance with the laws relating to expulsion of special 

education students. 

A pupil may not be suspended or expelled for any of the acts enumerated in this Policy unless the 

act is related to school activity or school attendance of Barona Indian Charter School. A pupil may 

be suspended or expelled for acts that are enumerated in this Policy and related to school activity 

or attendance that occur at any time, including, but not limited to any of the following: 

➢ While on school grounds 
➢ While going to or coming from school 
➢ During the lunch period, whether on or off the school campus 
➢ During, or while going to or coming from a school sponsored activity 

➢ All acts related to school activity or school attendance occurring within the School. 
 

C. Grounds 

The Principal/Director may use their discretion to provide alternatives to suspension or expulsion 

recommendations that are age appropriate and designed to address and correct the student’s 

specific misbehavior. Alternatively, students may be suspended or recommended for expulsion for 

any of the following acts (whether completed, attempted or threatened) when it is determined the 

pupil: 

➢ Caused physical injury to another person or willfully used force or violence upon the 

person of another, except in self-defense 

➢ Possessed, sold or otherwise furnished any firearm, knife, explosive or other dangerous 

object 



STUDENT POLICY #6 –PUPIL SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION POLICY 

© Charter Schools Development Center (CSDC), 2020 Page 4 of 13  
Materials in this publication were adapted under license and with permission from the CSDC and remain copyright © 2020 CSDC, all rights reserved. 

No part of this publication may be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system, resold, or transmitted in any form or by any means, electronic, mechanical, 
photocopying, recording, scanning or otherwise except as permitted under Section 107 or 108 of the 1976 United States Copyright Act or without the 

prior written permission of the CSDC. 

 

unless, in the case of possession of any object of this type, the student had obtained written 

permission to possess the item from an authorized certificated school employee, with the 

Principal/Director or designee’s written concurrence 

➢ Unlawfully possessed, used, sold or otherwise furnished, or was under the influence of, 

any 

➢ controlled substance as defined in Health and Safety Code sections 11053-11058 

(including, but not limited to, opiates, hallucinogenic substances, stimulants, depressants 

and narcotic drugs), alcoholic beverage or intoxicant of any kind 

➢ Unlawfully offered, arranged or negotiated to sell any controlled substance as defined in 

Health 

➢ and Safety Code sections 11053-11058, alcoholic beverage or intoxicant of any kind, and 

then sold, delivered or otherwise furnished to any person another liquid substance or 

material and represented the same as a controlled substance, alcoholic beverage or 

intoxicant 

➢ Committed or attempted to commit robbery or extortion 

➢ Caused or attempted to cause damage to school property or private property 

➢ Stole or attempted to steal school property or private property (as used in this policy, 

“school property” includes but is not limited to electronic files and databases) 

➢ Possessed or used tobacco or any products containing tobacco or nicotine products, 

including but not limited to cigars, cigarettes, miniature cigars, clove cigarettes, 

smokeless tobacco, snuff, 

➢ chew packets, betel and e-cigarettes, whether or not they contain tobacco. However, this 

section does not prohibit the use or possession by a pupil of his or her own prescription 

products 

➢ Committed an obscene act or engaged in habitual profanity or vulgarity 

➢ Unlawfully possessed or offered, arranged, or negotiated to sell any drug paraphernalia, 

as defined in Health and Safety Code section 11014.5 

➢ Disrupted school activities or otherwise willfully defied the valid authority of 

supervisors, teachers, administrators, other school officials or other school personnel 

engaged in the performance of their duties (only to the extent permitted under Education 

Code section 48901.1).  

➢ Knowingly received stolen school property or private property 

➢ Possessed an imitation firearm, i.e., a replica of a firearm that is so substantially similar 

in physical properties to an existing firearm as to lead a reasonable person to conclude 

that the replica is a firearm 

➢ Committed a sexual assault as defined in Penal Code sections 261, 266c, 286, 288, 288a, 

289, or former section 288a, or committed a sexual battery as defined in Penal Code 

section 243.4 



STUDENT POLICY #6 –PUPIL SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION POLICY 

© Charter Schools Development Center (CSDC), 2020 Page 5 of 13  
Materials in this publication were adapted under license and with permission from the CSDC and remain copyright © 2020 CSDC, all rights reserved. 

No part of this publication may be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system, resold, or transmitted in any form or by any means, electronic, mechanical, 
photocopying, recording, scanning or otherwise except as permitted under Section 107 or 108 of the 1976 United States Copyright Act or without the 

prior written permission of the CSDC. 

 

➢ Harassed, threatened or intimidated a student who is a complaining witness or witness in 

a school disciplinary proceeding for the purpose of preventing that student from being a 

witness and/or retaliating against that student for being a witness 

➢ Unlawfully offered, arranged to sell, negotiated to sell or sold the prescription drug Soma 

➢ Engaged in, or attempted to engage in, hazing. “Hazing” means a method of initiation or 

pre- initiation into a pupil organization or body, whether or not the organization or body 

is officially recognized by an educational institution,  which is likely to cause serious  

bodily injury or personal degradation or disgrace resulting in physical or mental harm to a 

former, current or prospective pupil. “Hazing” does not include athletic events or school-

sanctioned events. 

➢ Engaged in an act of bullying. “Bullying” means any severe or pervasive physical or 

verbal act or conduct, including communications made in writing or by means of an 

electronic act, and including one or more acts committed by a pupil or group of pupils 

directed toward one or more pupils that has or can be reasonably predicated to have the 

effect of one or more the of the following: 

o Placing a reasonable pupil(s) in fear of harm to that pupil(s)’ person or property; 

o Causing a reasonable pupil to experience a substantially detrimental effect on the 
pupil’s physical or mental health; 

o Causing a reasonable pupil to experience substantial interference with the 

pupil’s academic performance; 

o Causing a reasonable pupil to experience substantial interference with the pupil’s 

ability to participate in or benefit from the services, activities, or privileges 

provided by a school. 

An electronic act, for purposes of the immediately preceding paragraph, means the 

transmission, by means  of an electronic device,  including  but  not  limited to,  a    

telephone, wireless telephone, or other wireless communication device, computer, or 

pager, of a communication, including but not limited to, any of the following: 

o A message, text, sound or image 
o A post on a social network Internet website including, but not limited to: 

▪ Posting to or creating a burn page. “Burn page” means an Internet Web 

site created for the purpose of having one or more of the effects listed 

above 

▪ Creating a credible impersonation of another actual pupil for the purpose 

of having one or more of the effects listed above. “Credible 

impersonation” means 

to knowingly and without consent impersonate a pupil for the purpose of 

bullying the pupil and such that another pupil would reasonably believe, 

or has reasonably believed, that the pupil was or is the pupil who was 

impersonated 

▪ Creating a false profile for the purpose of having one or more of the effects 

listed 

above. “False profile” means a profile of a fictitious pupil or a profile 



STUDENT POLICY #6 –PUPIL SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION POLICY 

© Charter Schools Development Center (CSDC), 2020 Page 6 of 13  
Materials in this publication were adapted under license and with permission from the CSDC and remain copyright © 2020 CSDC, all rights reserved. 

No part of this publication may be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system, resold, or transmitted in any form or by any means, electronic, mechanical, 
photocopying, recording, scanning or otherwise except as permitted under Section 107 or 108 of the 1976 United States Copyright Act or without the 

prior written permission of the CSDC. 

 

using the likeness or attributes of an actual pupil other than the pupil who 

created the false profile. 
o An act of cyber sexual bullying 

▪ For purposes of this section, “cyber sexual bullying” means the 

dissemination of, or the solicitation or incitement to disseminate, a 

photograph or other visual 

recording by a pupil to another pupil or to school personnel by means of 

an electronic act that has or can be reasonably predicted to have one or 

more of the effects described above. A photograph or other visual recording 

shall include the depiction of a nude, semi-nude or sexually explicit 

photograph or other visual recording of a minor where the minor is 

identifiable from the photograph, visual recording or other electronic act 

▪ Cyber sexual bullying does not include a depiction, portrayal, or image 

that has 

any serious literary, artistic, educational, political or scientific value or 

that involves athletic events or school-sanctioned activities. 

o An electronic act shall not constitute pervasive conduct solely on the basis that it 
has been transmitted on the Internet or is currently posted on the Internet 

o A “reasonable pupil” means a pupil, including, but not limited to, an exceptional 

needs pupil, who exercises average care, skill and judgment in conduct for a 

person that age, or for a person of that age with the pupil’s exceptional needs. 

➢ Made terrorist threats against school officials and/or school property. For the purpose of 

this section, “terroristic threat” shall include any statement, whether written or oral, by 

a person 

who willfully threatens to commit a crime which will result in death, great bodily injury to 

another person, or property damage in excess of $1,000.00, with the specific intent that the 

statement is to be taken as a threat, even if there is no intent of actually carrying it out, 

which, on its face and under the circumstances in which it is made, is so unequivocal, 

unconditional, immediate and specific as to convey to the person threatened, a gravity of 

purpose and an immediate prospect of execution of the threat, and thereby causes that 

person reasonably to be in sustained fear for his or her own safety or for his or her 

immediate family’s safety, or for the protection of charter school property, or the personal 

property of the person threatened or his/her immediate family 
➢ For students in grades 4 to 8, committed sexual harassment 

➢ Caused or participated in an act of hate violence 

➢ Carried, possessed, sold or otherwise furnished an electronic signaling device 

➢ Committed vandalism/malicious mischief 

➢ Violated academic ethics 

➢ Falsified or misinterpreted notes or phone calls of parents or guardians 

➢ Falsely activated fire alarm 

➢ Habitually violated the dress code 

➢ Intentionally harassed, threatened or intimidated a student or group of students to the 

extent of having the actual and reasonably expected effect of materially disrupting class 



STUDENT POLICY #6 –PUPIL SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION POLICY 

© Charter Schools Development Center (CSDC), 2020 Page 7 of 13  
Materials in this publication were adapted under license and with permission from the CSDC and remain copyright © 2020 CSDC, all rights reserved. 

No part of this publication may be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system, resold, or transmitted in any form or by any means, electronic, mechanical, 
photocopying, recording, scanning or otherwise except as permitted under Section 107 or 108 of the 1976 United States Copyright Act or without the 

prior written permission of the CSDC. 

 

work, creating substantial disorder and invading student rights by creating an intimidating 

or hostile educational environment 

➢ Discriminated against, harassed, intimidated, and/or bullied any person or groups of 

persons based on the following actual or perceived characteristics: disability, gender, 

nationality,  race or ethnicity, religion, sexual orientation, gender identity, gender 

expression or association with one or more of these actual or perceived characteristics. 

This policy applies to all acts related to school activity or school attendance occurring 

within the school 

➢ A pupil who aids or abets, as defined in section 31 of the Penal Code, the infliction or 

attempted infliction of physical injury to another person may be subject to suspension, 

but not expulsion, pursuant to this policy, except that a pupil who has been adjudged by a 

juvenile court to have committed, as an aider and abettor, a crime of physical violence in 

which the victim suffered great bodily injury or serious bodily injury may be 

recommended for expulsion. 

Attendance of Suspended Child’s Parent or Guardian for Portion of School Day - A teacher 

and/or the Principal/Director may require a parent or guardian of a pupil who has been suspended 

by a teacher pursuant to Section 48910 for either committing an obscene act or engaging in habitual 

profanity or vulgarity to attend a portion of a school day in the classroom in the classroom of his 

or her child or ward. 

D. Procedures Required to Suspend 

Step One 

The Principal/Director shall investigate the incident and determine whether or not it merits 

suspension. 

Searches: In order to investigate an incident, a student’s attire,1 personal property, vehicle or 

school property, including books, desks, school lockers, computers and other electronic devices, 

may be searched by the Principal/Director or designee who has reasonable suspicion that a student 

has violated or is violating the law or the rules of the school. Illegally possessed items shall be 

confiscated and turned over to the police. 

Step Two 

Unless a student poses a continuing danger to persons or property or an ongoing threat of disrupting 

the academic process, a suspension will be preceded by an informal conference between the 

Principal/Director and the student in which the student shall be orally informed of the reason for 

the suspension, the evidence against the student, the other means of correction that were attempted 

before the suspension and be given the opportunity to present informal proof of their side of the 

story. If the student poses a continuing danger to persons or property or an ongoing threat of 

                                                      
1 This does not include removing clothing to permit visual inspection of the under clothing, 

breasts, buttocks or genitalia of the pupil. 
 



STUDENT POLICY #6 –PUPIL SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION POLICY 

© Charter Schools Development Center (CSDC), 2020 Page 8 of 13  
Materials in this publication were adapted under license and with permission from the CSDC and remain copyright © 2020 CSDC, all rights reserved. 

No part of this publication may be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system, resold, or transmitted in any form or by any means, electronic, mechanical, 
photocopying, recording, scanning or otherwise except as permitted under Section 107 or 108 of the 1976 United States Copyright Act or without the 

prior written permission of the CSDC. 

 

disrupting the academic process, the informal conference will be held within two school days, 

unless the pupil waives this right or is physically unable to attend for any reason, including, but 

not limited to, hospitalization or detention in a correctional facility. 

At the time of the suspension, a School employee shall make a reasonable effort to contact the 

parent/guardian by telephone or in person to inform them of the suspension and the reasons therefor 

and it may state the date and time when the student may return to school. 

If a student is suspended without the informal conference, both the student and the parent/guardian 

will be notified of a student’s right to return to school for the purpose of a conference. 

Step Three 

The Principal/Director determines the appropriate length of the suspension (up to 10 days). When 

suspensions do not include a recommendation for expulsion, they shall not exceed 10 consecutive 

school days per suspension. 

Step Four 

The Principal/Director fills out a Notice of Suspension Form, a copy of which will be sent to the 

student’s parent/guardian and to the student. A copy of this form is also placed in the student’s 

cumulative file at the School. The Notice of Suspension Form shall state the fact of suspension, its 

duration and the specific offense committed by the student. In addition, the notice may state the 

date and time when the student may return to school. Additionally, if the School officials wish to 

ask the parent/guardian to confer regarding matters pertinent to the suspension, the notice may 

request the parent/guardian to respond to such requests without delay. 

Step Five 

The Principal/Director determines whether the offense warrants a police report. The 

Principal/Director will report certain offenses identified under Education Code section 48902 to 

law enforcement authorities. 

When Principal/Director releases a minor pupil to a peace officer for the purpose of removing the 

minor from the school premises, the Principal/Director shall take immediate steps to notify the 

parent, guardian or responsible relative of the minor regarding the release of the minor to the 

officer and regarding the place to which the minor is reportedly being taken, unless the minor has 

been taken into custody as a victim of suspected child abuse.  

Step Six 

The Principal/Director may require the student and their parent/guardian to sign a contract that 

states the conditions that the student is expected to meet while at the School. Copies of the signed 

contract are kept by the school and given to the parent/guardian. 

Step Seven 

Upon the request of a parent/guardian/educational rights holder/student, a teacher shall provide to 

a student in any of grades 1 to 8 who has been suspended from the School for two or more 



STUDENT POLICY #6 –PUPIL SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION POLICY 

© Charter Schools Development Center (CSDC), 2020 Page 9 of 13  
Materials in this publication were adapted under license and with permission from the CSDC and remain copyright © 2020 CSDC, all rights reserved. 

No part of this publication may be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system, resold, or transmitted in any form or by any means, electronic, mechanical, 
photocopying, recording, scanning or otherwise except as permitted under Section 107 or 108 of the 1976 United States Copyright Act or without the 

prior written permission of the CSDC. 

 

schooldays, the homework that the pupil would otherwise have been assigned. If a homework 

assignment that is requested and turned into the teacher by the student either upon the student’s 

return to school from suspension or within the timeframe originally prescribed by the teacher, 

whichever is later, is not graded before the end of the academic term, that assignment shall not be 

included in the calculation of the student’s overall grade in the class. 

Special Education and Section 504 Student Suspensions 

When suspensions involve special education students or students with a 504 plan, a manifestation 

determination meeting shall be held within ten (10) school days of any decision to change the 

placement of a student with a disability because of a violation of a code of student conduct. The 

Principal/Director shall notify the student’s special education teacher or regular education teacher 

when the student’s cumulative days of suspension for that school year reaches eight. That teacher 

shall promptly notify Principal/Director or Special Education Teacher/Director of the potential 

need for the manifestation determination meeting. The manifestation determination meeting shall 

include School officials, the parent, and relevant members of the student’s IEP Team or 504 Plan 

Team (as determined by the parent and School). 

The student shall be treated as a general education student for disciplinary purposes, except to the 

extent that educational services must continue, if at the manifestation determination meeting the 

following are both determined in the negative, after reviewing all relevant information in the 

student’s file, including the student’s IEP or 504 Plan, any teacher observations and any relevant 

information provided by the parents: 1) the conduct in question was caused by, or had a direct and 

substantial relationship to, the student’s disability under the IDEA or section 504; or 2) the conduct 

in question was the direct result of School’s failure to implement the IEP or 504 Plan. If it is 

determined at the manifestation determination meeting that 1) or 2) is answered in the affirmative, 

the conduct is deemed a manifestation of the disability. 

If the conduct is deemed a manifestation of the disability, the IEP Team or 504 Plan Team must 

conduct a functional behavioral assessment (or other appropriate assessment for the 504 student), 

create a plan and implement it, or if the plan is preexisting, review it and modify it as necessary to 

address the behavior. 

In the case of a manifestation of a disability, the student will be returned to the placement from 

which they were removed, unless School and parent agree to a change of placement as part of the 

modification of the behavioral intervention plan or updated 504 Plan. 

The special education student may be removed from school to an interim alternative educational 

setting for not more than 45 school days without regard to whether the behavior is determined to 

be a manifestation of the student’s disability if the student: 1) carries a weapon to or possesses a 

weapon at school, on school premises or to or at a school function under the jurisdiction of School; 

2) knowingly possesses or uses illegal drugs or sells or solicits the sale of a controlled substance, 

while at school, on school premises, or at a school function under the jurisdiction of School; or 3) 

has inflicted serious bodily injury upon another person while at school, on school premises, or at 



STUDENT POLICY #6 –PUPIL SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION POLICY 

© Charter Schools Development Center (CSDC), 2020 Page 10 of 13  
Materials in this publication were adapted under license and with permission from the CSDC and remain copyright © 2020 CSDC, all rights reserved. 

No part of this publication may be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system, resold, or transmitted in any form or by any means, electronic, mechanical, 
photocopying, recording, scanning or otherwise except as permitted under Section 107 or 108 of the 1976 United States Copyright Act or without the 

prior written permission of the CSDC. 

 

a school function under the jurisdiction of School. 

School is required to notify parents of a disciplinary decision and to provide them with the 

procedural safeguards notice described in 34 C.F.R. § 300.504. 

III. Expulsion 

A. Definition 

Expulsion means removal of a student from (1) the immediate supervision and control, or (2) the 

general supervision, of school personnel. 

B. Authority 

A student may be expelled either by the Board following a hearing before it or by the Board upon 

a recommendation of an Administrative Panel to be assigned by the Board Chair as needed. The 

Panel may recommend expulsion of any student found to have committed an expellable offense. 

The Board, upon voting to expel a pupil, may suspend the enforcement of the expulsion order for 

a period of not more than one calendar year and may, as a condition of the suspension of 

enforcement, assign the pupil to a school, class or program that is deemed appropriate for the 

rehabilitation of the pupil [or other conditions such as good behavior, attendance, etc.]. The 

rehabilitation program to which the pupil is assigned may provide for the involvement of the 

pupil’s parent or guardian in their child’s education in ways that are specified in the rehabilitation 

program. A parent or guardian’s refusal to participate in the rehabilitation program shall not be 

considered in the Board’s determination as to whether the pupil has satisfactorily completed the 

rehabilitation program. 

C. Grounds for Expulsion 

Category I Expulsions – Mandatory Recommendation for Expulsion 

The Principal/Director shall immediately suspend a student, and recommend for expulsion, a 

student who has committed one or more of the following acts: 

➢ Possessing, selling or otherwise furnishing a firearm when a school employee verifies 

firearm possession, unless the student obtained prior written permission to possess the 

firearm from a certificated school employee, which is concurred in by the principal or 

designee 
➢ Brandishing a knife at another person 
➢ Unlawfully selling a controlled substance 
➢ Committing or attempting to commit a sexual assault or committing a sexual battery 

➢ Possession of an explosive 



STUDENT POLICY #6 –PUPIL SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION POLICY 

© Charter Schools Development Center (CSDC), 2020 Page 11 of 13  
Materials in this publication were adapted under license and with permission from the CSDC and remain copyright © 2020 CSDC, all rights reserved. 

No part of this publication may be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system, resold, or transmitted in any form or by any means, electronic, mechanical, 
photocopying, recording, scanning or otherwise except as permitted under Section 107 or 108 of the 1976 United States Copyright Act or without the 

prior written permission of the CSDC. 

 

Category II Expulsions – Recommendation for Expulsion Required, Unless Inappropriate 

Under the Circumstances 

A student who has committed one of the following acts of misconduct must be recommended for 

expulsion, unless the Principal/Director determines that expulsion should not be recommended under the 

circumstances or that an alternative means of correction would address the conduct. 

➢ Causing physical injury to another person, except in self-defense 

➢ Possession of any knife, explosive or other dangerous object of no reasonable use to the student 

➢ Unlawful possession of any controlled substance, except for the first offense for the possession of 

not more than one ounce of marijuana, other than concentrated cannabis or for possession of 

over-the-counter medication for use by the pupil for medical purposes or medication prescribed 

for the pupil by a physician 

➢ Robbery or extortion 

➢ Assault or battery on a school employee 

Category III Expulsions – Discretionary Expulsion Recommendation 

In the discretion of the Principal/Director or designee, any act that warrants suspension may warrant 

expulsion.  

In no event, however, will a student be expelled for disrupting school activities or otherwise willfully 

defying the valid authority of supervisors, teachers, administrators, other school officials or other school 

personnel engaged in the performance of their duties. 

D. Procedures to Expel a Student  

Step One 

Principal/Director investigates the incident and determines whether the offense results in a suspension. If 

so, the Principal/Director follows the procedures to suspend the student as outlined above. 

Step Two 

In the discretion of Principal/Director, a student’s suspension may be extended pending expulsion.  

A meeting is held within 2 school days of the student’s suspension to extend the suspension. The student 

and their parent/guardian are invited to attend this meeting with Principal/Director or designee. The Chair 

of the Board or designee may also be present. 

At this meeting, the offense and the repercussions are discussed. An extension of the suspension may be 

granted only if the Principal/Director or designee has determined, after the meeting, that the presence of 

the student at the School would cause a risk to persons or property or a threat of disrupting the instructional 

process. If the student has committed an offense that requires a mandatory expulsion recommendation, 

this is discussed so that it is understood by all parties. The purpose of the meeting is to decide upon the 

extension of the suspension order and may be held in conjunction with the initial meeting with the parents 

after the suspension. 

Step Three 

The School shall send a letter to the student and parent/guardian regarding the expulsion hearing. The 



STUDENT POLICY #6 –PUPIL SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION POLICY 

© Charter Schools Development Center (CSDC), 2020 Page 12 of 13  
Materials in this publication were adapted under license and with permission from the CSDC and remain copyright © 2020 CSDC, all rights reserved. 

No part of this publication may be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system, resold, or transmitted in any form or by any means, electronic, mechanical, 
photocopying, recording, scanning or otherwise except as permitted under Section 107 or 108 of the 1976 United States Copyright Act or without the 

prior written permission of the CSDC. 

 

expulsion hearing shall be held no later than 30 school days of the date that expulsion is recommended, 

unless a brief extension is requested by the student or their parent/guardian. 

The letter shall be sent via certified mail to the student and their parent/guardian to the address reflected 

in the pupil’s student file at least 10 calendar days before the date of the hearing. The letter shall notify 

the student and parent/guardian when and where the expulsion hearing will take place and the rights of the 

student with respect to the hearing, including: 

➢ The date and place of the expulsion hearing; 

➢ A statement of the facts, charges and offenses upon which the proposed expulsion is based; 

➢ A copy of the School’s disciplinary rules relating to the alleged violation; 

➢ Notification of the student’s or parent/guardian’s obligation to provide information about the 

student’s status at the School to any other school district or school to which the student seeks 

enrollment; 

➢ The opportunity for the student or the student’s parent/guardian to appear in person and/or to 

employ and be represented by counsel or an advocate; 

➢ The right to inspect and obtain copies of all documents to be used at the hearing; 

➢ The  opportunity  to  present  testimony,  evidence  and  witnesses  and  confront  and question 

witnesses who testify at the hearing; If the revelation of the name of a student witness or 

requiring that the student testify could subject the student to risk, statements and reports of such 

students may be relied on in lieu of live testimony and student’s names do not have to be 

revealed; 

➢ The opportunity to question all evidence presented and to present oral and documentary 

evidence on the student’s behalf, including witness testimony. 



STUDENT POLICY #6 –PUPIL SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION POLICY 

© Charter Schools Development Center (CSDC), 2020 Page 13 of 13  
Materials in this publication were adapted under license and with permission from the CSDC and remain copyright © 2020 CSDC, all rights reserved. 

No part of this publication may be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system, resold, or transmitted in any form or by any means, electronic, mechanical, 
photocopying, recording, scanning or otherwise except as permitted under Section 107 or 108 of the 1976 United States Copyright Act or without the 

prior written permission of the CSDC. 

 

Step Four 

The Principal/Director shall maintain documents that may be used at the hearing and make them available 

for review by the student and/or their parent/guardian. These papers may include, but are not limited to, 

the following: A record of previous infractions; a statement of the facts surrounding the case made by 

Principal/Director; a statement of the facts surrounding the case made by a witness; a law enforcement 

agency’s report; and any other relevant matter. 

Step Five 

An expulsion hearing shall be held before the Barona Indian Charter School Board of Directors or an 

Administrative Panel. A record of the hearing shall be made and may be maintained by any means, 

including electronic recording, as long as a reasonably accurate and a complete written transcription of the 

proceedings can be made. 

While the technical rules of evidence do not apply to expulsion hearings, evidence may be admitted and 

used as proof only if it is the kind of evidence on which reasonable persons can rely in the conduct of 

serious affairs. A decision by the Board of Directors to expel must be supported by substantial evidence 

that the student committed an expellable offense. 

Findings of fact shall be based solely on evidence produced at the hearing. While hearsay evidence is 

admissible, no decision to expel shall be based solely on hearsay evidence, although sworn declarations 

may be admitted as testimony from witnesses who are determined by the Board of Directors that disclosure 

of their identity or live testimony at the hearing may subject them to an unreasonable risk of physical or 

psychological harm. 

If, due to a written request by the expelled pupil, the hearing is held at a public meeting, and the charge is 

committing or attempting to commit a sexual assault or committing a sexual battery as defined in 

Education Code section 48900, a complaining witness shall have the right to have his or her testimony 

heard in a session closed to the public. 

Step Six 

If an Administrative Panel conducts the hearing, the Panel’s recommendation to the Board of Directors 

shall be in writing, with findings of fact, and the Board of Directors will make a final determination 

regarding the expulsion. The final decision by the Board of Directors shall be made within 10 days 

following the conclusion of the hearing, or within 40 school days after the date of the pupil's removal from 

the School for the incident for which the recommendation for expulsion is made. If the Board of Directors 

decides not to recommend expulsion, the pupil shall be reinstated and permitted to return to classroom 

programs. The decision of the Board of Directors shall be final. 

Step Seven 

The Principal/Director, or designee, following a decision of the Board of Directors to expel a student, shall 

send written notice of the decision to expel, including the Board of Director’s findings of fact, to the 

student or parent/guardian. The notice shall include the following: 

➢ Notice of the specific offense committed by the student; 



STUDENT POLICY #6 –PUPIL SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION POLICY 

© Charter Schools Development Center (CSDC), 2020 Page 14 of 13  
Materials in this publication were adapted under license and with permission from the CSDC and remain copyright © 2020 CSDC, all rights reserved. 

No part of this publication may be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system, resold, or transmitted in any form or by any means, electronic, mechanical, 
photocopying, recording, scanning or otherwise except as permitted under Section 107 or 108 of the 1976 United States Copyright Act or without the 

prior written permission of the CSDC. 

 

➢ Notice of the student’s or parent/guardian’s obligation to inform any new district in which the 
student seeks to enroll of the student’s status within the charter school; and  

➢ The date when the student can be reviewed for readmission, and a description of the process by 

which readmission is conducted. 

 
Within 30 days of the decision to expel, the Principal/Director shall send written notice of the decision to 

expel to the student’s district of residence and the Lakeside Union School District. This notice shall include 

the student’s name and the specific expellable offense committed by the student. 

Step Eight 

Expelled students are responsible for seeking alternative education programs, including but not limited to, 

programs within the County or their school district of residence. 

Step Nine 

The school shall maintain records of all student suspensions and expulsions at the school site. Such records 

shall be made available for Lakeside Union School District’s review upon request. 

Students who are expelled from the charter school shall be given a rehabilitation plan upon expulsion as 

developed by the Board of Directors, or its designee, at the time of the expulsion order, which may include, 

but is not limited to, a periodic review as well as assessment at the time of review for readmission. The 

rehabilitation plan should include a date not later than one year from the date of expulsion when the pupil 

may reapply to the school for readmission. 

The decision to readmit a pupil or to admit a previously expelled pupil from another school district or 

charter school shall be in the sole discretion of the Board of Directors or its designee following a meeting 

with the Principal/Director and the pupil and parent/guardian to determine whether the pupil has 

successfully completed the rehabilitation plan and to determine whether the pupil poses a threat to others 

or will be disruptive to the school environment. The Principal/Director shall make a recommendation to 

the Board of Directors or designee following the meeting regarding their determination. The pupil’s 

readmission is also contingent upon the school’s capacity and any other admission requirements in effect 

at the time the student seeks admission or readmission. 

 

 

 

 

Adopted: May 23, 2022  

Amended: September 16, 2024 
















































































































































































































































































































































































































































	2.13.25 Board Agenda
	Feb. Packet
	Barona Public Hearing
	Barona Renewal Packet
	Minutes-January 16, 2025
	CSBA Delegate Assembly
	Love of Reading Resolution
	ESY Dates
	PAO 2025-10
	MOU Southern Illinois
	Commercial Warrant Listing
	Revolving Cash Register
	Purchase Orders/Change Orders
	Pcard Report
	American Modular Relo Purchase
	ASES Grant
	Cerebrate License
	ESS Turf Purchase-Winter Gardens
	Contracts
	2024-25 Donations
	Adoption BP/AR 3515.5
	Adoption BB 9240
	BP/AR 1250: Visitors/Outsiders
	Enrollment Report 
	Quarterly Investment Report
	First Reading BP 5030: Student Wellness
	First Reading BP/AR 3100 Budget
	First Reading BP/AR 3280: Sale or Lease of District Owned Property
	First Reading BP 3320: Claims and Actions Against the District
	First Reading AR 5116.1 Intradistrict Open Enrollment




